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Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 6-K contains forward-looking statements. James Hardie Industries plc (the “company”) may from time to time make forward-looking statements in its periodic
reports filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission, on Forms 20-F and 6-K, in its annual reports to shareholders, in offering circulars, invitation
memoranda and prospectuses, in media releases and other written materials and in oral statements made by the company’s officers, directors or employees to analysts,
institutional investors, existing and potential lenders, representatives of the media and others. Statements that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements and
such forward-looking statements are statements made pursuant to the Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Examples of forward-looking statements include:

. statements about the company’s future performance;

. projections of the company’s results of operations or financial condition;

. statements regarding the company’s plans, objectives or goals, including those relating to strategies, initiatives, competition, acquisitions, dispositions and/or its
products;

. expectations concerning the costs associated with the suspension or closure of operations at any of the company’s plants and future plans with respect to any
such plants;

. expectations concerning the costs associated with the significant capital expenditure projects at any of the company’s plants and future plans with respect to any
such projects;

. expectations regarding the extension or renewal of the company’s credit facilities including changes to terms, covenants or ratios;

. expectations concerning dividend payments and share buy-backs;

. statements concerning the company’s corporate and tax domiciles and structures and potential changes to them, including potential tax charges;

. statements regarding tax liabilities and related audits, reviews and proceedings;

. expectations about the timing and amount of contributions to Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund (AICF), a special purpose fund for the compensation of
proven Australian asbestos-related personal injury and death claims;

. expectations concerning the adequacy of the company’s warranty provisions and estimates for future warranty-related costs;

. statements regarding the company’s ability to manage legal and regulatory matters (including but not limited to product liability, environmental, intellectual

property and competition law matters) and to resolve any such pending legal and regulatory matters within current estimates and in anticipation of certain third-
party recoveries; and

. statements about economic conditions, such as changes in the US economic or housing recovery or changes in the market conditions in the Asia Pacific region,
the levels of new home construction and home renovations, unemployment levels, changes in consumer income, changes or stability in housing values, the
availability of mortgages and other financing, mortgage and other interest rates, housing affordability and supply, the levels of foreclosures and home resales,
currency exchange rates, and builder and consumer confidence

" " " ” » » "«

Words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “expect,” “intend,” “target,” “estimate,” “project,” “predict,” “forecast,” “guideline,” “aim,” “will,” “should,” “likely,” “continue,” “may,”
“objective,” “outlook” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements but are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements and all such forward-looking statements are qualified in their entirety by reference to the following
cautionary statements.

" " " » " ”

Forward-looking statements are based on the company’s current expectations, estimates and assumptions and because forward-looking statements address future results,
events and conditions, they, by their very nature, involve inherent risks and uncertainties, many of which are unforeseeable and beyond the company’s control. Such known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors may cause actual results, performance or other achievements to differ materially from the anticipated results, performance
or achievements expressed, projected or implied by these forward-looking statements. These factors, some of which are discussed under “Risk Factors” in Section 3 of the
Form 20-F filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on 19 May 2016, include, but are not limited to: all matters relating to or arising out of the prior manufacture of
products that contained asbestos by current and former company subsidiaries; required contributions to AICF, any shortfall in AICF and the effect of currency exchange rate
movements on the amount recorded in the company’s financial statements as an asbestos liability; governmental loan facility to AICF; compliance with and changes in tax
laws and treatments; competition and product pricing in the markets in which the company operates; the consequences of product failures or defects; exposure to
environmental, asbestos, putative consumer class action or other legal proceedings; general economic and market conditions; the supply and cost of raw materials; possible
increases in competition and the potential that competitors could copy the company’s products; reliance on a small number of customers; a customer’s inability to pay;
compliance with and changes in environmental and health and safety laws; risks of conducting business internationally; compliance with and changes in laws and
regulations; currency exchange risks; dependence on customer preference and the concentration of the company’s customer base on large format retail customers,
distributors and dealers; dependence on residential and commercial construction markets; the effect of adverse changes in climate or weather patterns; possible inability to
renew credit facilities on terms favorable to the company, or at all; acquisition or sale of businesses and business segments; changes in the company’s key management
personnel; inherent limitations on internal controls; use of accounting estimates; and all other risks identified in the company’s reports filed with Australian, Irish and US
securities regulatory agencies and exchanges (as appropriate). The company cautions you that the foregoing list of factors is not exhaustive and that other risks and
uncertainties may cause actual results to differ
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materially from those referenced in the company’s forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made and are statements of
the company’s current expectations concerning future results, events and conditions. The company assumes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements or
information except as required by law.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

James Hardie Industries plc
Date: 19 May 2016 By: /s/ Natasha Mercer

Natasha Mercer
Company Secretary
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Exhibit 99.1

Results for Announcement to the Market

James Hardie Industries plc
ARBN 097 829 895

Appendix 4E - Preliminary Final Report Year Ended 31 March 2016

Key Information Year Ended 31 March
2016 2015 Movement
US$M US$M
Net Sales From Ordinary Activities 1,728.2 1,656.9 Up 4%
Profit From Ordinary Activities After Tax Attributable to Shareholders 244.4 291.3 Down 16%
Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders 244.4 291.3 Down 16%
Net Tangible (Liabilities) Assets per Ordinary Share USS$(0.51) US(80.46) Down 11%

Dividend Information

. An FY2016 second half ordinary dividend (‘FY2016 second half dividend”) of US29.0 cents per security is payable to CUFS holders on 5 August 2016.
. An FY2016 first half ordinary dividend (“FY2016 first half dividend”) of US9.0 cents per security was paid to CUFS holders on 26 February 2016.

. The record date to determine entitlements to the FY2016 second half dividend is 9 June 2016 (on the basis of proper instruments of transfer received by the Company’s
registrar, Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd, Level 4, 60 Carrington Street, Sydney NSW 2000, Australia, by 5:00pm if securities are not CHESS approved, or security
holding balances established by 5:00pm or such later time permitted by ASTC Operating Rules if securities are CHESS approved).

. The FY2016 first half dividend, the FY2016 second half dividend and future dividends will be unfranked for Australian taxation purposes.

. The company will be required to deduct Irish DWT (currently 20% of the gross dividend amount) from this dividend and future dividends, unless the beneficial owner has
completed and returned a non-resident declaration form (DWT Form).

. The Australian currency equivalent amount of the FY2016 second half dividend to be paid to CUFS holders will be announced after the record date. The amount payable to
shareholders who have elected to receive their dividend in NZ dollars or British pounds will also be announced on the same date.

. No dividend reinvestment plan is in operation for this FY2016 second half dividend.

. The FY2015 second half ordinary dividend of US27.0 cents per security and the special dividend of US22.0 cents per security were paid to share/CUFS holders on 7 August
2015.
Movements in Controlled Entities during Year Ended 31 March 2016

There were no movements in controlled entities during Year ended 31 March 2016.

Audit

The results and financial information included within this Preliminary Final Report have been prepared using US GAAP and have been subject to an independent audit by external auditors.

Results for the 4th Quarter and Year Ended 31 March 2016
Contents

Media Release

Management’s Analysis of Results
Management Presentation
Consolidated Financial Statements

N =

James Hardie Industries plc is incorporated under the laws of Ireland with its corporate seat in Dublin, Ireland. The liability of members is limited. The information contained in the above documents should be read in conjunction with
the James Hardie 2016 Annual Report which can be found on the company website at www.jameshardie.com.
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19 May 2016

James Hardie Announces Adjusted Net Operating Profit1 of
US$57.9 million for Q4 Fiscal 2016 and US$242.9 million for
the full year ended 31 March 2016

James Hardie announces a FY 2016 second half dividend of US29.0 cents per security.

James Hardie today announced results for the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2016 and the full year ended 31 March 2016:

° Group Adjusted net operating profit of US$57.9 million for the quarter and US$242.9 million for the full year, an increase 1% and 10%,
respectively, compared to the prior corresponding periods (“pcp”);

° Group Adjusted EBIT1 of US$83.7 million for the quarter and US$350.7 million for the full year, an increase of 4% and 15%,
respectively, compared to pcp;

° Group net sales of US$435.8 million for the quarter and US$1.7 billion for the full year, an increase of 6% and 4%, respectively,
compared to pcp;

° North America and Europe Fiber Cement Segment2 net sales of US$356.9 million for the quarter and US$1.4 billion for the full year, an
increase of 10% and 9%, respectively, compared to pcp;

° North America and Europe Fiber Cement Segment EBIT margin of 23.2% for the quarter and 24.6% for the full year

° Asia Pacific Fiber Cement Segment A$ EBIT margin of 25.3% 3 for the quarter and 23.8%3 for the full year; and

° The company announced today a new share buyback program (the “fiscal 2017 program”) to acquire up to US$100.0 million of its
issued capital in the twelve months through May 2017.

CEO Commentary

“Our North America and Europe segment continues to provide strong financial results. For the quarter and full year, net sales in North America and Europe
increased 10% and 9%, respectively, driven primarily by higher volumes. Additionally, EBIT for the quarter and full year increased 4% and 19%, respectively,
and remains at the high end of our target range of 20% to 25% EBIT margin,” said James Hardie CEO Louis Gries.

He added, “The Asia Pacific Fiber Cement business delivered a good year with higher volume, an increase in average net sales price, and the start up of the
new manufacturing facility in Carole Park. These highlights, on a reported basis, were partially offset by a strong US dollar that had an adverse effect on the
group’s consolidated results.”

“Our full year consolidated group results reflected an overall strong financial performance highlighted by a 10% increase in Adjusted net operating profit, a 45%
increase in net cash provided by operating activities, and US$268.8 million of capital returned to shareholders through a combination of dividends and the
previously announced share buyback program,” concluded Mr. Gries.

1 The Company may present financial measures that are not considered a measure of financial performance under US GAAP and should not be considered to be more meaningful than the equivalent US GAAP measure.
Management has included such measures to provide investors with an alternative method for assessing its operating results in a manner that is focused on the performance of its ongoing operations. Additionally, management uses
such non-GAAP financial measures for the same purposes. However, these non-GAAP financial measures are not prepared in accordance with US GAAP, may not be reported by all of the Company’s competitors and may not be
directly comparable to similarly titled measures of the Company’s competitors due to potential differences in the exact method of calculation. For additional information regarding the Non-GAAP financial measures presented in this
Media Release, including a reconciliation of each non-GAAP financial measure to the equivalent US GAAP measure, see the sections titled “Definition and Other Terms” and “Non-US GAAP Financial Measures” included in the
Company’s Management’s Analysis of Results for the fourth quarter and full year ended 31 March 2016.

fed il Release: James Hardie — 4* Quarter and Full Year Fiscal 2016
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2 Previously referred to as USA and Europe Fiber Cement Segment.

3 Excluding the impact of New Zealand weathertightness claims.

Outlook

The Company expects to see moderate growth in the US housing market in fiscal year 2017, based on a forecast for new construction in the US of between 1.2
and 1.3 million starts. The Company expects the North America and Europe Fiber Cement Segment EBIT to grow and EBIT margins to remain at the high end of
the target range of 20% to 25% for fiscal year 2017. This expectation is based upon the Company continuing to achieve strong operating performance in its
plants, consistent with recent quarters, and stable exchange rates and input cost trends.

Net sales from the Australian business are expected to trend ahead of the average growth of the domestic repair and remodel and single detached housing
markets in the eastern states of Australia, in fiscal year 2017 with total detached starts expected to range from 100,000 to 110,000 in calendar 2016. Similarly,
the New Zealand business is expected to deliver improved results supported by a growth in residential markets in the North Island. The Philippines business
has experienced growth over the past year, which is expected to continue into fiscal year 2017.

Further Information

Readers are referred to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and Management’s Analysis of Results for the three months and full year ended
31 March 2016 for additional information regarding the Company’s results, including information regarding income taxes, the asbestos liability and contingent
liabilities.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Media Release contains forward-looking statements and information that are necessarily subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Many factors
could cause the actual results, performance or achievements of James Hardie to be materially different from those expressed or implied in this release,
including, among others, the risks and uncertainties set forth in Section 3 “Risk Factors” in James Hardie’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended
31 March 2016; changes in general economic, political, governmental and business conditions globally and in the countries in which James Hardie does
business; changes in interest rates, changes in inflation rates; changes in exchange rates; the level of construction generally; changes in cement demand and
prices; changes in raw material and energy prices; changes in business strategy and various other factors. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those described herein. James Hardie assumes no
obligation to update or correct the information contained in this Media Release except as required by law.

END

Media

micdia
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Media/Analyst Enquiries:

Sean O’ Sullivan Telephone: +61 2 8845 3352
Vice President Investor and Media Relations Email: media@jameshardie.com.au

Media Release: James Hardie— 4™ Quarter and Full Year Fiscal 2016
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Fourth Quarter and Full Year Ended
31 March 2016

Management’s Analysis of Results

This Management’s Analysis of Results forms part of a package of information about James Hardie Industries plc’s results. It should be read in
conjunction with the other parts of this package, including the Media Release, the Management Presentation and the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Except as otherwise indicated in this Management’s Analysis of Results, James Hardie Industries plc is referred to as “JHI plc.” JHI plc,
together with its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, are collectively referred to as “James Hardie,” the “Company,” “we,” “our,” or “us.”
Definitions for certain capitalized terms used in this Management’s Analysis and Results can be found in the sections titled “Definitions and Other
Terms” and “Non-GAAP Financial Measures.”

These documents, along with an audio webcast of the Management Presentation on 19 May 2016, are available from the Investor Relations area of
our website at hitp:/www.ir jameshardie.com.au

NOTE TO THE READER:

Beginning with Q3 of fiscal year 2016, the Company changed the name of its USA and Europe Fiber Cement segment to North America and Europe
Fiber Cement segment to better reflect the segment’s geographic nature. However, the composition of the segment remains the same.

Media/Analyst Enquiries:
Sean O’ Sullivan
Vice President Investor and Media Relations

Telephone: +61 2 8845 3352
Email: media@jameshardie.com.au

In this Management’s Analysis of Results, James Hardie may present financial measures, sales volume terms, financial ratios, and Non-US GAAP financial measures included in the
“Definitions and Other Terms”, and “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” sections of this document. We present financial measures that we believe are customarily used by our Australian
investors. Specifically, these financial measures, which are equivalent to or derived from certain US GAAP measures as explained in the definitions section, include “EBIT”, “EBIT margin”,
“Operating profit before income taxes” and “Net operating profit”. We may also present other terms for measuring our sales volume (“million square feet” or “mmsf” and “thousand square
feet” or “msf”); and Non-US GAAP financial measures (“Adjusted EBIT”, “Adjusted EBIT margin”, “Adjusted net operating profit”, “Adjusted diluted earnings per share”, “Adjusted operating
profit before income taxes”, “Adjusted income tax expense”, “Adjusted effective tax rate”, “Adjusted EBITDA” and, “Adjusted selling, general and administrative expenses and Adjusted return
on capital employed”). Unless otherwise stated, results and comparisons are of the fourth quarter and full year of the current fiscal year versus the fourth quarter and full year of the prior fiscal
year. For additional information regarding the financial measures presented in this Management’s Analysis of Results, including a reconciliation of each non-GAAP financial measures to the
equivalent US GAAP measure, see the sections titled “Definition and Other Terms” and “Non-US GAAP Financial Measures.”

.-F'Il-;g_mnt'sﬂnafylllofﬁeau]ts:dam Hardie — 4" Quarterand Full Year Fiscal 2016
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James Hardie Industries plc
Results for the 4th Quarter and Full Year Ended 31 March

US$ Millions

Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Asbestos adjustments

EBIT

Net interest expense

Other (expense) income

Operating profit before income taxes
Income tax (expense) benefit

Net operating profit

Earnings per share - basic (US cents)
Earnings per share - diluted (US cents)

Volume (mmsf)

Net sales of US$435.8 million for the quarter and US$1,728.2 million for the full year
increased 6% and 4%, respectively, when compared to the prior corresponding periods.
For the quarter, net sales in local currencies were favorably impacted by higher sales
volumes in the North America and Europe Fiber Cement segment and higher average net
sales price in Asia Pacific Fiber Cement segment.

For the full year, net sales in local currencies were favorably impacted by higher volume in
the North America and Europe Fiber Cement segment and higher volume and average net
sales price in Asia Pacific Fiber Cement segments, excluding Australian Pipes. For the
quarter and the full year, net sales were adversely impacted by the strengthening US
dollar, which had a 4% unfavorable effect on group net sales for the full year.

Gross profit of US$160.1 million for the quarter and US$632.2 million for the full year
increased 5% and 9%, respectively, when compared with the prior corresponding periods.
Gross profit margin of 36.7% for the quarter decreased 0.4 percentage points when
compared with the prior corresponding period. Gross profit margin of 36.6% for the full
year increased 1.7 percentage points when compared with the prior corresponding period.

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses of US$68.7 million for the
quarter were flat when compared to the prior corresponding period primarily due to higher
SG&A expenses in the business units offset by lower general corporate cost. SG&A of
US$254.2 million for the full year increased 4% when compared with the prior
corresponding period primarily driven by higher SG&A expenses in the business units in
local currencies; partially offset by the favorable impact of the strengthening US dollar.

Research and development (“R&D”) expenses of US$8.1 million for the quarter
increased 7% when compared to the prior

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 Change % FY16 FY15 Change %
$ 4358 | $ 4113 6|S$ 17282 |8  1,656.9 4
(275.7) (258.8) (W) (1,096.0) (1,078.1) 2
160.1 152.5 & 632.2 578.8 9
(68.7) (68.8) - (254.2) (245.5) 4)
(8.1) (7.6) (7) (29.5) (31.7) 7
(27.0) (63.5) 57 5.5 334 (84)
56.3 12.6 354.0 335.0 6
(6.4) (4.0) (60) (25.6) (7.5)
(1.9 (1.0) 90) 2.1 4.9
48.0 7.6 330.5 3226 2
(19.2) 20.1 (86.1) (31.3)
$ 288 | $ 27.7 418 2444 | $ 291.3 (16)
6 6 55 65
6 6 55 65
630.9 588.1 7 2.450.1 2,305.9 6

corresponding period primarily due to an increase in the number of R&D projects being
worked on by the R&D team; partially offset by the strengthening US dollar.

R&D expenses of US$29.5 million for the full year decreased 7% when compared to the
prior corresponding period as a result of the strengthening US dollar; partially offset by an
increase in the number of R&D projects being worked on by the R&D team.

Asbestos adjustments for both the quarter and full year decreased compared to prior
corresponding periods. For the full year, the primary driver is the US$8.1 million favorable
movement in the actuarial adjustment recorded at year end in line with KPMGA's actuarial
report; partially offset by US$2.6 million unfavorable impact of the appreciating AUD/USD
spot exchange rate between balance sheet dates.

Other (expense) income for the quarter reflects unrealized gains and losses on interest
rate swaps and unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses. Other (expense) income for
the full year reflects unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses, unrealized gains and
losses on interest rate swaps and the gain on the sale of the Australian pipes business in
the first quarter of fiscal year 2016.

Net operating profit for the quarter increased compared to the prior corresponding
period, primarily due to the favorable underlying performance of the operating business
units and a decrease in unfavorable asbestos adjustments, partially offset by higher
income tax expense. Net operating profit for the full year decreased compared to the prior
corresponding period, primarily due to higher income tax expense, higher interest
expense and an unfavorable change in the asbestos adjustments; partially offset by the
favorable underlying performance of the operating business units.

Results: James Hardie - 4" Quarter and Full Year Fiscal 2016



North America and Europe Fiber Cement Segment

'James Hardie

Operating results for the North America & Europe Fiber Cement segment were as follows:

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 Change FY16 FY15 Change
Volume (mmsf) 5255 474.1 11% 2,000.5 1,849.7 8%
Average net sales price per unit (per msf) US$664 US$670 (1%) US$676 US$675 FLAT
Net sales (US$ Millions) 356.9 325.1 10% 1,386.3 1,276.5 9%
Gross profit 7% 15%
Gross margin (%) (0.9 pts) 2.2 pts
EBIT (US$ Millions) 82.7 79.6 4% 340.6 285.9 19%
EBIT margin (%) 232 24.5 (1.3 pts) 24.6 224 2.2 pts

Net sales for the quarter and full year were favorably impacted by higher volumes. The increase in our sales volume for both the quarter and full
year, compared to the prior corresponding periods, was primarily driven by growth in the repair and remodel and new construction markets and
modest market penetration.

For the quarter, average net sales price decreased slightly when compared to the prior corresponding period. For the full year, average net sales
price was flat, when compared to the prior corresponding period. For the quarter and full year, gross price was up in line with our price increase
effective 1 March 2015; offset by the unfavorable impact of foreign exchange, mix and the overall price performance in Europe.

We note that there are a number of data sources that measure US housing market growth, most of which have reported steady double-digit growth
in recent quarters when compared to prior corresponding periods. However, at the time of filing our results for the quarter ended 31 March 2016,
only US Census Bureau data was available. According to the US Census Bureau, single family housing starts for the quarter were 171,000, or 19%
above the prior corresponding period, and for the full year ended 31 March 2016, single family housing starts were 745,700, or 17% above the prior
corresponding period.

While we have provided US Census Bureau data above, we note that it typically trends higher than other indices we use to measure US housing
market growth, namely the McGraw-Hill Construction Residential Starts Data (also known as Dodge), the National Association of Home Builders and
Fannie Mae.

The change in gross margin for the quarter and full year can be attributed to the following components:

For the Three Months Ended 31 March 2016:

Lower average net sales price (0.5)
Higher production costs ] 04
Total percentage point change in gross margin . (0.9 pts)

For the Full Year Ended 31 March 2016:

Higher average net sales price 0.4
Lower production costs ] 1.8
Total percentage point change in gross margin . 2.2 pts

: James Hardie — 4™ Quarter and Full Fiscal 2016
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Production costs in the quarter were higher when compared to the prior corresponding period due to an isolated production matter at one of our US
plants and asset disposals; partially offset by lower freight and lower input costs for pulp and utilities.

Production costs in the full year were lower when compared to the prior corresponding period primarily as a result of our manufacturing plant
network’s improved performance, as well as lower freight and lower input costs for pulp and utilities.

EBIT of US$82.7 million for the quarter increased by 4% when compared to the prior corresponding period, reflecting lower freight, lower unit costs
and increased volumes; partially offset by higher segment SG&A expenses and higher production costs.

EBIT of US$340.6 million for the full year increased by 19% when compared to the prior corresponding period, reflecting lower freight, improved
plant performance, lower unit costs and increased volumes; partially offset by higher segment SG&A expenses.

For the quarter and full year, EBIT was impacted by higher SG&A, primarily reflecting higher employee costs and marketing expenses. As a
percentage of segment sales, SG&A increased by 0.2 percentage points for the quarter and remained flat for the full year.

EBIT margin for the quarter decreased 1.3 percentage points to 23.2%. The decrease for the quarter was driven by higher production costs; partially
offset by higher net sales.

EBIT margin for full year increased 2.2 percentage points to 24.6%. The increase for the full year was driven by higher net sales and lower
production costs; partially offset by the adverse impact of the strengthening US dollar and overall performance of the European business.

Asia Pacific Fiber Cement Segment

Operating results for the Asia Pacific Fiber Cement segment in US dollars were as follows:

Tlm\/lonths and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 Chang_e FY16 FY15 Change

Volume (mmsf) 105.4 114.0 (8%) 449.6 456.2 (1%)
Volume (mmsf) excluding 1 105.4 103.0 2% 439.8 414.7 6%
Net Sales (US$ Millions) 78.9 86.2 (8%) 3419 380.4 (10%)
US$ Gross Profit (3%) (11%)
US$ Gross Margin (%) 2.1 pts (0.5 pts)
EBIT (US$ Millions) 19.8 20.0 (1%) 80.9 94.1 (14%)
New Zealand weathertightness claims (US$ millions) - 0.1 (0.5) 4.3

EBIT excluding (US$ Millions)2 19.8 19.9 (1%) 81.4 89.8 (9%)
US$ EBIT Margin excluding (%)2 25.1 23.1 2.0 pts 23.8 23.6 0.2 pts

1 Excludes Australian Pipes business sold in the first quarter of fiscal year 2016
2 Excludes New Zealand weathertightness claims

"'ﬁfim: James Hardie — 4™ Quarter and Full Fiscal 2016
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The Asia Pacific Fiber Cement segment results in US dollars were unfavorably impacted for the quarter and full year by an 8% and 19% change in
the weighted average AUD/USD foreign exchange rate, respectively, when compared the prior corresponding periods. The impact of the
unfavorable foreign exchange rate movements are detailed in the table below:

Q4 FY16 Full Year FY16
. . Impact of foreign . . Impact of foreign
Results in AUD Results in USD exchange Results in AUD Results in USD exchange
Net Sales FLAT v 3% (8 pts) 7% ¥ 10% (17 pts)
Gross Profit A v 3% (9 pts) b 5% Y 1% (16 pts)
EBIT I v 1% (10 pts) a2y ¥ 14% (16 pts)
EBIT excluding & 10% U (11 pts) a3y w9y (17 pts)
1 Excludes New Zealand weathertightness claims
Operating results for the Asia Pacific Fiber Cement segment in Australian dollars were as follows:
Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 Chan&e FY16 FY15 Change

Volume (mmsf) 105.4 114.0 (8%) 449.6 456.2 (1%)
Volume (mmsf) excluding1 105.4 103.0 2% 439.8 414.7 6%
Average net sales price per unit (per msf) A$1,025 A$946 8% A$1,020 A$942 8%
Net Sales (A$ Millions) 109.4 109.2 - 464.2 4345 7%
A$ Gross Profit 6% 5%
A$ Gross Margin (%) 2.0 pts (0.5 pts)
EBIT (A$ Millions) 27.6 254 9% 110.0 107.4 2%
New Zealand weathertightness claims (A$ millions) (0.1) 0.2 (0.7) 4.9
EBIT excluding (A$ millions) 2 27.7 25.2 10% 110.7 102.5 8%
A$ EBIT Margin excluding (%) 2 253 23.1 2.2 pts 23.8 23.6 0.2 pts

1 Excludes Australian Pipes business sold in the first quarter of fiscal year 2016
2 Excludes New Zealand weathertightness claims

APAC segment results

Volume for both the quarter and full year was lower compared to the prior corresponding periods, due to the sale of the Australian Pipes business at
the end of the first quarter of fiscal year 2016. For both the quarter and full year, our average net sales price increased, primarily driven by the effects
of our annual price increase, favorable product and regional mix and the appreciation of the Philippines currency against the Australian dollar, when
compared to the prior corresponding periods.

Net sales in Australian dollars for the quarter remained flat due to the sale of the Australian Pipes business. Net sales in Australian dollars for the full
year increased primarily due to higher average net sales price, when compared to the prior corresponding period.

Country analysis

In our Australian business the key drivers of net sales growth, for both the quarter and full year, were favorable conditions in our addressable
markets, favorable impact of our price increase and favorable product mix. In our New Zealand business, volume grew across most regions;
however, net sales growth was partially offset by a lower net average selling price due to unfavorable product mix. In our Philippines business, net
sales were higher for both the quarter and full year compared to the prior corresponding periods driven by growth in our addressable markets,
continued market penetration and favorable impact of our price increase.

According to Australian Bureau of Statistics data, approvals for detached houses, which are a key driver of the Asia Pacific business’ sales volume,
were 26,363 for the quarter, a decrease of 3%, when compared to the prior
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corresponding quarter. For the twelve months, approvals for detached houses were 116,962, a slight decrease compared to the prior corresponding
period. The other key driver of our sales volume is the alterations and additions market, which decreased 2% for the three months ended 31 March
2016 when compared to the prior corresponding period. For the twelve months ended 31 March 2016, the alterations and additions market
increased 5% compared to the prior corresponding period.

According to Statistics New Zealand data, consents for dwellings excluding apartments, which are the primary driver of the New Zealand business’
net sales, were 4,813 for the quarter, an increase of 16%, when compared to the prior corresponding quarter. For the twelve months, consents for
dwellings excluding apartments, were 15,167 an increase of 13%, compared to the prior corresponding period.

In Australian dollars, the change in gross margin for the quarter and full year can be attributed to the following components:

For the Three Months Ended 31 March 2016:

Higher average net sales price 5.3
Higher production costs i 3.3)
Total percentage point change in gross margin . 2.0 pts

For the Full Year Ended 31 March 2016:

Higher average net sales price 5.5
Higher production costs i (6.0)
Total percentage point change in gross margin . (0.5 pts)

For the quarter, production costs increased compared to the prior corresponding period, largely due to the cost associated with the startup of our
Carole Park sheet machine and higher input prices driven by the unfavorable impact of the weakening of the Australian dollar on the price of USD
denominated pulp.

For the full year, production costs increased compared to the prior corresponding period, largely due to the cost associated with the startup of our
Carole Park sheet machine and higher input prices driven by the unfavorable impact of the weakening of the Australian dollar on the price of USD
denominated pulp. Additionally, during December 2014, we purchased the land and buildings previously leased at our Rosehill, New South Wales
facility for A$45.0 million. As a result of the purchase, we released remediation and straight line rent provisions required as a lessee, resulting in a
favorable impact to cost of goods sold of A$3.0 million for the full year fiscal 2015. As a result, production costs were higher for the current year,
compared to the prior corresponding period.

In Australian dollars, EBIT for the quarter increased by 9% when compared to prior corresponding period, driven by improved gross profit; partially
offset by higher SG&A expenses related to marketing and higher employee costs. EBIT for the full year increased by 2% when compared to the prior
corresponding period, primarily due to the improved gross profit; partially offset by New Zealand weathertightness and higher SG&A expenses
primarily related to marketing and compensation costs.

For the full year, we recorded an expense related to New Zealand Weathertightness, compared to a benefit in the prior corresponding period. As a
percentage of segment sales, in Australian dollars SG&A expenses for the
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quarter and full year increased 0.1 and 0.6 percentage points, respectively. Excluding New Zealand weathertightness, SG&A expenses as a
percentage of segment sales, in Australian dollars, for the quarter and full year decreased by 0.2 and 0.7 percentage points, respectively.

In Australian dollars, EBIT excluding New Zealand weathertightness claims, for both the quarter and full year increased by 10% and 8%,
respectively, compared to the prior corresponding periods, to A$27.7 million and A$110.7 million, respectively.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2016, we finalized the sale of our Australian Pipes business, recognizing a gain on the sale of US$1.7 million, recorded in
other (expense) income in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income for fiscal year 2016. Due to the immaterial
contribution of the Australian Pipes business to the segment results, the results of operations from the Australian Pipes business have not been
presented as discontinued operations in the consolidated financial statements.

Research and Development Segment

We record R&D expenses depending on whether they are core R&D projects that are designed to benefit all business units, which are recorded in
our R&D segment; or commercialization projects for the benefit of a particular business unit, which are recorded in the individual business unit’s
segment results. The table below details the expenses of our R&D segment:

USS$ Millions Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 Change % FY16 FY15 Change %
Segment R&D expenses $ 58] s (5.9) 2]s @1 s (24.2) 10
Segment R&D SG&A expenses (0.6) (0.4) (50) (2.2) (1.8) (22)
Total R&D EBIT s 64| s (6.3) of's 239 s (26.0) 3

The change in segment R&D expenses for the quarter and full year compared to the prior corresponding periods is a result of the adverse impact of
the strengthening US dollar and the number of core R&D projects being worked on by the R&D team. The expense will fluctuate period to period
depending on the nature and number of core R&D projects being worked on and the average AUD/USD exchange rates during the period.

Other R&D expenses associated with commercialization projects were US$2.3 million for the quarter and US$7.8 million for the full year, compared
to US$1.7 million and US$7.5 million for the prior corresponding periods, respectively.
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General Corporate

Results for General Corporate for the quarter and full year ended 31 March were as follows:

USS$ Millions Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 Change % FY16 FY15 Change Yo
General Corporate SG&A expenses $ (124) $ (16.6) 2518 @4 s (49.9) 5
Asbestos:
Asbestos Adjustments (27.0) (63.5) 57 55 334 (84)
AICF SG&A Expenses 1 (0.4) (0.6) 33 (1.7) (2.5) 32
General Corporate EBIT $ (39.8)] $ (80.7) 5118 (4368 (19.0

1 Relates to non-claims related operating costs incurred by AICF, which we consolidate into our financial results due to our pecuniary and contractual interests in AICF. Readers are referred to Notes 2 and 11 of our 31 March 2016
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information on the Asbestos Adjustments

For the quarter, General Corporate SG&A expenses decreased by US$4.2 million, compared to the prior corresponding period. The decrease in
General Corporate SG&A expenses is primarily driven by the non-recurring stamp duty of US$4.2 million incurred in the fourth quarter of fiscal year
2015.

For the full year, General Corporate SG&A expenses decreased by US$2.5 million, compared to the prior corresponding period. The decrease in
General Corporate SG&A expenses is primarily driven by the non-recurring stamp duty of US$4.2 million incurred in the fourth quarter of fiscal year
2015; partially offset by higher stock compensation expenses of US$2.6 million driven by an increase in the USD stock price.

Asbestos adjustments for both periods reflect a change in the actuarial estimate of the asbestos liability, insurance receivables, AICF claims
handling costs and the foreign exchange translation impact of the Australian denominated asbestos related assets and liabilities being recorded on
our consolidated balance sheet in US dollars at the reporting date for each respective period.

For fiscal years 2016 and 2015, the asbestos adjustments recorded by the Company were made up of the following components:

Full Year ended 31 March
USS$ Millions FY16 FY15 % Change
Change in actuarial estimate $ 8118 (111.3)
Effect of foreign exchange rate movements (2.6) 144.7
Asbestos adjustments $ 5518 33.4 (84)

Per the KPMGA actuarial report, the undiscounted and uninflated central estimate net of insurance recoveries decreased to A$1.434 billion at
31 March 2016 from A$1.566 billion at 31 March 2015. The change in the undiscounted and uninflated central estimate of A$132.0 million or 8% is
primarily due to the decrease in the projected future number of non-mesothelioma claims and lower average claims sizes and lower average defense
legal cost assumptions for most disease types. This was partially offset by the change in legislation in Victoria, which allowed for gratuitous services
costs to be included in certain types of future claims which had a A$56.9 million adverse impact on the central estimate.
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During fiscal year 2016, mesothelioma claims reporting activity was marginally below actuarial expectations for the first year in the past four years.
One of the more significant assumptions is the estimated peak period of mesothelioma disease claims, which is currently assumed to occur in the
period 2014/2015 to 2016/2017. Potential variation in this estimate has an impact much greater than the other assumptions used to derive the
discounted central estimate. In performing the sensitivity assessment of the estimated period of peak claims reporting for mesothelioma, if the peak
claims reporting period was shifted two years from the currently assumed 2016/2017 (i.e. assuming that claim reporting begins to reduce after
2018/2019), together with increased claims reporting from 2026/2027 onwards, relative to current actuarial projections, the discounted central
estimate could increase by approximately 30% on a discounted basis.

At 31 March 2016, KPMGA has formed the view that, due to the stable claims reporting in fiscal year 2016, no change to the assumption of
mesothelioma claims is required. However, changes to the valuation assumptions may be necessary in future periods should mesothelioma claims
reporting escalate or decline. Due to the uncertainty over the past four years, further volatility in relation to the valuation should be anticipated for at
least the next few years.

Asbestos claims paid of A$154.7 million for fiscal year 2016 were lower than the actuarial expectation of A$176.3 million. All figures provided in this
Claims Data section are gross of insurance and other recoveries.

The AUD/USD spot exchange rates are shown in the table below:

FY16 FY15
31 March 2015 0.7636| 31 March 2014 0.9220
31 March 2016 0.7657] 31 March 2015 0.7636
Change ($) 0.0021| Change ($) (0.1584)
Change (%) - Change (%) (17%)

Readers are referred to Note 2 and 11 of our 31 March 2016 Consolidated Financial Statements for further information on Asbestos.
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EBIT

The table below summarizes the segment EBIT results as discussed above:

USS$ Millions Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 Change % FY16 FY15 Change %

USA and Europe Fiber Cement $ 827 ($ 79.6 418 3406 | $ 285.9 19
Asia Pacific Fiber Cement! 19.8 19.9 (1) 81.4 89.8 9)
Research & Development (6.4) (6.3) ) (23.9) (26.0) 8
General Corporate2 (12.4) (12.4) - (47.4) (45.7) (4)
Adjusted EBIT 83.7 80.8 4 350.7 304.0 15
Asbestos:

Asbestos adjustments (27.0) (63.5) 57 5.5 33.4 (84)

AICF SG&A expenses (0.4) (0.6) 33 (1.7) (2.5) 32
New Zealand weathertightness claims - 0.1 (0.5) 43
Non-recurring stamp duty - (4.2) - (4.2)
EBIT $ 563 | $ 12.6 $ 3540 | $ 335.0 6

1 Excludes New Zealand weathertightness claims
2 Excludes Asbestos-related expenses and adjustments and non-recurring stamp duty

Net Interest Expense

USS Millions Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 Change % FY16 FY15 Change %
Gross interest expense $ (6.5) $ 4.9) (33) $ (27.0) $ ©.7)
Capitalized Interest 0.7 1.1 (36) 32 1.7
Interest income 0.1 - - 0.4 0.4 -
Realised loss on interest rate swaps (0.5) (0.6) 17 (1.9 (1.3) (46)
Net AICF interest (expense) income 0.2) 0.4 (0.3) 14
Net interest expense S 64| s (4.0) 0] s @s6| s a:s)

Gross interest expense for the quarter and full year increased US$1.6 million and US$17.3 million, respectively, when compared to the prior
corresponding periods, primarily as a result of interest incurred on our senior notes, which we issued in February 2015.

Other (Expense) Income

During the quarter, other expense increased by US$0.9 million to US$1.9 million when compared to the prior corresponding period. The change
was driven by unfavorable movement of US$0.6 million and US$0.3 million in unrealized gains and losses related to our interest rate swaps and net
foreign exchange forward contracts, respectively.

For the full year, other (expense) income moved from a loss of US$4.9 million in the prior corresponding period to income of US$2.1 million. The
US$7.0 million favorable change in other (expense) income compared to the prior corresponding period is due to a US$3.3 million favorable change
in net foreign exchange forward contracts, a US$2.0 million favorable change in the unrealized gains and losses related to our interest rate swaps
and a US$1.7 million gain on the sale of the Australian Pipes business in the first quarter of fiscal year 2016.
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Income Tax

Income tax (expense) benefit (US$ Millions)
Effective tax rate (%)

Adjusted income tax expense1 (US$ Millions)
Adjusted effective tax rate1 (%)
I Adjusted income tax expense represents income tax on net operating profit

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 FY16 FY15
(19.2) 20.1 (86.1) (31.3)
40.0 (264.5) 26.1 9.7
(17.7) 18.1) (84.6) (68.8)
234 24.0 25.8 23.7

asbestos New Zealand , non-recurring stamp duty and other tax adjustments

During the quarter, income tax moved from a benefit of US$20.1 million to an expense of US$19.2 million. The US$39.3 million unfavorable change
was driven primarily by the decrease in unfavorable asbestos adjustments from US$63.5 million in the prior corresponding quarter to US$27.0

million in the current quarter.

Total income tax expense for the full year increased by US$54.8 million from the prior corresponding period. The change was primarily due to a
reduction in the change in actuarial estimate compared to fiscal year 2015. Total Adjusted income tax expense for the year increased by US$15.8
million from the prior corresponding period, primarily due to an increase in Adjusted operating profit before income taxes, combined with an increase
in the Adjusted effective tax rate, primarily due to a higher proportion of taxable earnings in jurisdictions with higher rates, in particular the USA.

Readers are referred to Note 15 of our 31 March 2016 consolidated financial statements for further information related to income tax.

Net Operating Profit

US$ Millions

EBIT

Net interest expense

Other (expense) income
Income tax (expense) benefit
Net operating profit

Excluding:
Asbestos:

Asbestos adjustments

AICF SG&A expenses

AICF interest expense (income), net
New Zealand weathertightness claims
Non-recurring stamp duty
Asbestos and other tax adjustments
Adjusted net operating profit

Adjusted diluted earnings per share (US cents)

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March
Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 Change % FY16 FY15 Change %
$ 563 | $ 12.6 $ 3540 | § 335.0 6
(6.4) (4.0) (60) (25.6) (7.5)
(1.9) (1.0) 90) 2.1 4.9)
(19.2) 20.1 (86.1) (31.3)
28.8 27.7 4 244.4 291.3 (16)
27.0 63.5 (57 (5.5) (33.4) 84
0.4 0.6 33) 1.7 2.5 32)
0.2 (0.4) 0.3 (1.4)
- 0.1) 0.5 (4.3)
- 42 - 42
1.5 (38.2) 1.5 (37.5)
$ 579 | $ 573 1]8$ 2429 | § 2214 10
13 13 54 50
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Adjusted net operating profit of US$57.9 million for the quarter increased US$0.6 million, or 1%, compared to the prior corresponding period,
primarily due to the underlying performance of the operating business units as reflected in the US$2.9 million increase in adjusted EBIT. The
improved underlying performance of the business was partially offset by an increase in gross interest expense of US$1.6 million and other expense
of US$0.9 million.

Adjusted net operating profit of US$242.9 million for the full year increased US$21.5 million, or 10%, compared to the prior corresponding period,
primarily due to the underlying performance of the operating business units as reflected in the US$46.7 million increase in Adjusted EBIT and the
favorable movement in other income (expense) of US$7.0 million; partially offset by an increase in Adjusted income tax expense of US$15.8 million
and gross interest expense of US$17.3 million.
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Cash Flow

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities increased US$80.9 million to US$260.4 million. The increase in cash provided by operating activities was
primarily driven by a US$44.1 million increase in net income adjusted for non-cash items and a lower contribution to AICF as compared to the prior
year, partially offset by an unfavorable change in working capital of US$12.7 million. The unfavorable change in working capital was due to normal
variations related to timing in accounts receivable and accounts payable of US$67.4 million as the result of timing of collections and payments
between periods. This was partially offset by a US$54.7 million change in cash provided by inventory, driven by inventory management strategies,
which decreased inventory balances by US$16.2 million in the current period as opposed to an increase in the inventory balances of US$38.5
million in the prior corresponding period.

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities decreased US$211.3 million to US$66.6 million, as we completed our Australian capacity expansion projects and
are nearing completion of our US capacity expansion projects, while continuing to invest in maintenance capital expenditure programs. Included in
investing activities was US$10.4 million in proceeds from the sale of the Blandon facility and the Australian Pipes business.

Financing Activities
Cash used in financing activities increased US$149.8 million to US$154.4 million. The increase in cash used in financing activities was primarily

driven by a US$282.4 million decrease in net proceeds from borrowings, partially offset by a US$143.6 million decrease in dividends paid.

Capacity Expansion

We are nearing completion of our previously announced US capacity expansion projects. We continually evaluate the demand in the US housing
market and estimated commissioning dates of our capacity related projects. Currently, we have deferred the sheet machine commissioning at our
Plant City and Cleburne facilities, subject to our continued monitoring of the US housing market recovery.

During the second quarter our Carole Park, Queensland facility commissioned the sheet machine and finishing line, essentially completing
machinery additions associated with the Australian capacity expansion project.

. . Full Year FY16

Project Description Project Spend

Plant City, Florida - 4th sheet machine and ancillary facilities US$6.8 million
Cleburne, Texas - 3rd sheet machine and ancillary facilities US$4.6 million
Carole Park, Queensland - Capacity expansion project US$8.4 million
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Liquidity and Capital Allocation

Our cash position increased from US$67.0 million at 31 March 2015 to US$107.1 million at 31 March 2016.

On 10 December 2015, James Hardie International Finance Limited and James Hardie Building Products Inc., each a wholly-owned subsidiary of
JHI plc, entered into a new US$500.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”) with certain commercial banks and
HSBC Bank USA, National Association, as administrative agent. The Revolving Credit Facility replaced prior bilateral loan facilities of US$590.0
million, which were scheduled to mature in 2016, 2017 and 2019. The Revolving Credit Facility expires in December 2020 and the size of the facility
may be increased by up to US$250.0 million.

At 31 March 2016, the Company held two forms of debt; an unsecured revolving credit facility and senior unsecured notes. The effective weighted
average interest rate on the Company’s total debt was 4.5% and 5.0% at 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively. The weighted average term of all
debt, including undrawn facilities, is 5.6 years and 4.4 years at 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Based on our existing cash balances, together with anticipated operating cash flows arising during the year and unutilized committed credit facilities,
we anticipate that we will have sufficient funds to meet our planned working capital and other expected cash requirements for the next twelve
months.

We have historically met our working capital needs and capital expenditure requirements from a combination of cash flow from operations and credit
facilities. Seasonal fluctuations in working capital generally have not had a significant impact on our short or long term liquidity.

Capital Management and Dividends

The following table summarizes the dividends declared or paid in respect of fiscal years 2014, 2015 and 2016:

USS$ Millions us Ce{.ltS/ USS Total Announcement Record Date Payment Date
Security Amount Date

FY 2016 second half dividend 0.29 129.1 19 May 2016 9 June 2016 5 August 2016
FY 2016 first half dividend 0.09 39.7 19 November 2015 23 December 2015 26 February 2016
FY 2015 special dividend 0.22 92.8 21 May 2015 11 June 2015 7 August 2015
FY 2015 second half dividend 0.27 114.0 21 May 2015 11 June 2015 7 August 2015
FY 2015 first half dividend 0.08 342 19 November 2014 23 December 2014 27 February 2015
FY 2014 special dividend 0.20 89.0 22 May 2014 12 June 2014 8 August 2014
FY 2014 second half dividend 0.32 142.3 22 May 2014 12 June 2014 8 August 2014
125 year anniversary special dividend 0.28 124.6 28 February 2014 21 March 2014 30 May 2014
FY 2014 first half dividend 0.08 35.5 14 November 2013 19 December 2013 28 March 2014
FY 2013 special dividend 0.24 106.1 23 May 2013 28 June 2013 26 July 2013
FY 2013 second half dividend 0.13 57.5 23 May 2013 28 June 2013 26 July 2013

Share Buyback

The company announced today a new share buyback program (the “fiscal 2017 program”) to acquire up to US$100.0 million of its issued capital in

the twelve months through May 2017.
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In May 2015, the Company announced a fiscal 2016 share buyback program to acquire up to 5% of its issued capital within the 12 month period to
May 2016. Under this program, the Company repurchased and cancelled 1,653,247 shares of its common stock during the second quarter of the
current fiscal year. The aggregate cost of the shares repurchased and cancelled was A$30.0 million (US$22.3 million), at an average market price of
A$18.14 (US$13.50).

We will continue to review our capital structure and capital allocation objectives and expect the following prioritization to remain:

invest in R&D and capacity expansion to support organic growth;

provide ordinary dividend payments within the payout ratio of 50-70% of net operating profit, excluding asbestos;
maintain flexibility for accretive and strategic inorganic growth and/or flexibility to manage through market cycles; and
consider other shareholder returns when appropriate.

Other Asbestos Information

Claims Data

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

Q4 FY 16 Q4 FY 15 Change % FY16 FY15 Change %
Claims received 122 158 23 571 665 13
Actuarial estimate for the period 164 152 (8) 658 610 (8)
Difference in claims received to actuarial estimate 42 (6) 81 (55)
Average claim settlement? (A$) 287,000 278,000 3) 248,000 254,000 2
Actuarial estimate for the period 2 302,000 289,000 (4) 302,000 289,000 (4)
Difference in claims paid to actuarial estimate 15,000 11,000 (36) 54,000 35,000 (54)

1 Average claim settlement is derived as the total amount paid divided by the number of non-nil claim settiements
2 This actuarial estimate is a function of the assumed experience by disease type and and the relative mix of settlements assumed by disease type. Any variances in the assumed mix of settlements by disease type will have an
impact on the average claim settlement experience

For the quarter and full year ended 31 March 2016, we noted the following related to asbestos-related claims:

Claims received during the current quarter and full year were 26% and 12% below actuarial estimates, respectively;

Claims received during the quarter and full year were 23% and 13% lower than prior corresponding periods, respectively;

Mesothelioma claims reported for the full year are 1% below actuarial expectations and are 4% below the prior corresponding period;

The average claim settlement for both the quarter and full year is lower by 5% and 18%, respectively, versus actuarial estimates;

Average claim settlement sizes are generally lower across all disease types compared to actuarial expectations for fiscal year 2016; and
The decrease in average claim settlement for the quarter and full year versus actuarial estimates is largely attributable to a lower number
of large mesothelioma claims being settled compared to the prior corresponding period.
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AICF Funding

On 1 July 2015, we made a payment of A$81.1 million (US$62.8 million) to AICF, representing 35% of our free cash flow for fiscal year 2015. Free
cash flow, as defined in the AFFA, was equivalent to our fiscal year 2015 operating cash flows of US$179.5 million.

We anticipate that we will make a contribution of approximately US$91.1 million to AICF on 1 July 2016. This amount represents 35% of our free
cash flow for fiscal year 2016, as defined by the AFFA.

From the time AICF was established in February 2007 through 19 May 2016, we have contributed approximately A$799.2 million to the fund.

Readers are referred to Note 2 and 11 of our 31 March 2016 Consolidated Financial Statements for further information on Asbestos.
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Non-financial Terms

AFFA — Amended and Restated Final Funding Agreement.
AICF — Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund Ltd.

Legacy New Zealand weathertightness claims (“New Zealand weathertightness claims”) — Expenses arising from defending and resolving
claims in New Zealand that allege poor building design, inadequate certification of plans, inadequate construction review and compliance

certification and deficient work by sub-contractors.
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Financial Measures — US GAAP equivalents

This document contains financial statement line item descriptions that are considered to be non-US GAAP, but are consistent with those used by
Australian companies. Because we prepare our Consolidated Financial Statements under US GAAP, the following table cross-references each non-
US GAAP line item description, as used in Management’s Analysis of Results and Media Release, to the equivalent US GAAP financial statement
line item description used in our Consolidated Financial Statements:

Management’s Analysis of Results and Media Release Consolidated Statements of Operations and Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss) (US GAAP)

Net sales Net sales
Cost of goods sold Cost of goods sold

Gross profit Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses Research and development expenses
Asbestos adjustments Asbestos adjustments

EBIT* Operating income (loss)
Net interest income (expense)* Sum of interest expense and interest income
Other income (expense) Other income (expense)

Operating profit (loss) before income taxes* Income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax (expense) benefit Income tax (expense) benefit

Net operating profit (loss)* Net income (loss)
*- Represents non-US GAAP descriptions used by Australian companies.

EBIT — Earnings before interest and tax.

EBIT margin — EBIT margin is defined as EBIT as a percentage of net sales.

Sales Volume

mmsf — million square feet, where a square foot is defined as a standard square foot of 5/16” thickness.

msf — thousand square feet, where a square foot is defined as a standard square foot of 5/16” thickness.
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This Management’s Analysis of Results includes certain financial information to supplement the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements
which are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“US GAAP”). These financial measures are
designed to provide investors with an alternative method for assessing our performance from on-going operations, capital efficiency and profit
generation. Management uses these financial measure for the same purposes. These financial measures include:

* Adjusted EBIT;

+ Adjusted EBIT margin;

« Adjusted net operating profit;

* Adjusted diluted earnings per share;

»  Adjusted operating profit before income taxes;

+ Adjusted income tax expense;

+ Adjusted effective tax rate;

«  Adjusted EBITDA;

« Adjusted selling, general and administrative expenses (“Adjusted SG&A”); and
+  Adjusted return on capital employed (“Adjusted ROCE”).

These financial measures are or may be non-US GAAP financial measures as defined in the rules of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
and may exclude or include amounts that are included or excluded, as applicable, in the calculation of the most directly comparable financial
measures calculated in accordance with US GAAP. These financial measures are not meant to be considered in isolation or as a substitute for
comparable US GAAP financial measures and should be read only in conjunction with the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements prepared
in accordance with US GAAP. In evaluating these financial measures, investors should note that other companies reporting or describing similarly
titled financial measures may calculate them differently and investors should exercise caution in comparing the Company’s financial measures to
similar titled measures by other companies.
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NON-US G NANCIAL MEASURES

@'Jamen Hardie

USS$ Millions

EBIT
Asbestos:
Asbestos adjustments
AICF SG&A expenses
New Zealand weathertightness claims
Non-recurring stamp duty
Adjusted EBIT
Net sales
Adjusted EBIT margin

USS$ Millions

Net operating profit
Asbestos:

Asbestos adjustments

AICF SG&A expenses

AICF interest expense (income), net
New Zealand weathertightness claims
Non-recurring stamp duty
Asbestos and other tax adjustments
Adjusted net operating profit

Adjusted net operating profit (US$ millions)
Weighted average common shares outstanding -
Diluted (millions)

Adjusted diluted earnings per share (US cents)

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 FY16 FY15
$ 56.3 $ 12.6 $ 3540 $ 3350
27.0 63.5 (5.5) (33.4)
04 0.6 1.7 25
- ©.1) 0.5 @.3)
B} 42 - 42
$ 83.7 $ 80.8 $ 3507 $ 3040
4358 4113 1,728.2 1,656.9
19.2% 19.6% 20.3% 18.3%

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

Q4FY16 Q4 FY15 FY16 FY15
$ 288 s 277 $ 2444 $ 2913
27.0 63.5 (5.5) (33.4)
04 0.6 17 2.5
0.2 (0.4) 03 (1.4)
- (0.1) 0.5 4.3)
= 42 - 4.2
L5 (38.2) 1.5 (37.5)
$ 579 S 513 S 2429 s 2214

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 FY16 FY15
$ 57.9 $ 573 $ 242.9 $ 221.4
447.1 446.4 447.2 446.4
13 13 54 50

ﬂf@hulls: James Hardie — 4™ Quarter and Full Fiscal 2016




USS$ Millions

Operating profit before income taxes
Asbestos:

Asbestos adjustments

AICF SG&A expenses

AICF interest expense (income), net
New Zealand weathertightness claims
Non-recurring stamp duty
Adjusted operating profit before income taxes

Income tax (expense) income
Asbestos and other tax adjustments
Adjusted income tax expense
Effective tax rate

Adjusted effective tax rate

USS$ Millions

EBIT
Depreciation and amortization
Adjusted EBITDA

US$ Millions

SG&A expenses

Excluding:
New Zealand weathertightness claims
AICF SG&A expenses
Non recurring stamp duty

Adjusted SG&A expenses

Net Sales

SG&A expenses as a percentage of net sales

Adjusted SG&A expenses as a percentage of net sales

USS$ Millions

Numerator

Adjusted EBIT

Denominator
Gross capital employed (GCE)
Adjustments to GCE

Adjusted gross capital employed
Adjusted Return on Capital Employed

@Jams Hardie

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 FY16 FY15
$ 480 | $ 76 | $ 3305 | $ 322.6
27.0 63.5 (5.5) (33.4)
0.4 0.6 1.7 2.5
0.2 0.4) 0.3 (1.4)
- 0.1) 0.5 4.3)
s 42 s 42
$ 756 | $ 754 | $ 3275 | $ 290.2
$ (192) | $ 201 | $ 86.1) | $ (31.3)
1.5 (38.2) 1.5 (37.5)
$ a77n | s (as81n | s (84.6) | $ (68.8)
40.0% (264.5%) 26.1% 9.7%
23.4% 24.0% 25.8% 23.7%

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 FY16 FY15
$ 563 | $ 126 | § 3540 | $ 335.0
24.7 18.9 79.8 70.9
$ 810 | $ 315 | § 4338 | $ 405.9

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

Q4 FY16 Q4 FY15 FY16 FY15
$ 68.7 | $ 688 | $ 2542 | $ 245.5
- 0.1 (0.5) 43
0.4) (0.6) (1.7) 2.5)
B (4.2) - “4.2)
$ 683 | $ 641 | $ 2520 | $ 243.1
$ 4358 | $ 4113 | $ 1,7282 | $ 1,656.9
15.8% 16.7% 14.7% 14.8%
15.7% 15.6% 14.6% 14.7%

Full Year Ended 31 March1

FY16 FY15
$ 3057 | s 304.0
1,102.7 1,042.1

405 20.0

$ 1,1432 | $ 1,062.1
30.7% 28.6%

1 Adjusted ROCE is used to asses annual financial results and therefore is not presented for the three months ending 31 March 2016
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AL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

'-larnes Hardie

As set forth in Note11 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, the net AFFA liability, while recurring, is based on periodic actuarial determinations,

claims experience and currency fluctuations. The company’s management measures its financial position, operating performance and year-over-
year changes in operating results with and without the effect of the net AFFA liability. Accordingly, management believes that the following non-

GAAP information is useful to it and investors in evaluating the company’s financial position and ongoing operating financial performance. The
following non-GAAP table should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes contained therein.

James Hardie Industries plc
Supplementary Financial Information
31 March 2016
(Unaudited)

Total Fiber

Cement —

Excluding

Asbestos Asbestos As Reported
USS$ Millions Compensation Compensation (US GAAP)
Restricted cash and cash equivalents — Asbestos $ -1$ 170 | $ 17.0
Insurance receivable — Asbestos’ - 165.7 165.7
Workers compensation asset — Asbestos’ - 50.9 50.9
Deferred income taxes — Asbestos’ - 384.9 384.9
Asbestos liability’ $ -1$ 1,302.2 | $ 1,302.2
Workers compensation liability — Asbestos® - 50.9 50.9
Income taxes payable 244 (19.6) 4.8
Asbestos adjustments $ -1 5518 5.5
Selling, general and administrative expenses (252.5) (1.7) (254.2)
Net interest expense (25.3) 0.3) (25.6)
Income tax expense (84.4) (1.7) (86.1)

' The amounts shown on these lines are a summation of both the current and non-current portion of the respective asset or liability as presented on our

consolidated balance sheets
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; STATEMENTS @.James Hardie

This Management’s Analysis of Results contains forward-looking statements. James Hardie Industries plc (the “company”) may from time to time make forward-looking statements in its
periodic reports filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission, on Forms 20-F and 6-K, in its annual reports to shareholders, in offering circulars, invitation memoranda
and prospectuses, in media releases and other written materials and in oral statements made by the company’s officers, directors or employees to analysts, institutional investors, existing
and potential lenders, representatives of the media and others. Statements that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements and such forward-looking statements are statements
made pursuant to the Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Examples of forward-looking statements include:

statements about the company’s future performance;

projections of the company’s results of operations or financial condition;

statements regarding the company’s plans, objectives or goals, including those relating to strategies, initiatives, competition, acquisitions, dispositions and/or its products;

expectations concerning the costs associated with the suspension or closure of operations at any of the company’s plants and future plans with respect to any such plants;

expectations concerning the costs associated with the significant capital expenditure projects at any of the company’s plants and future plans with respect to any such projects;
expectations regarding the extension or renewal of the company’s credit facilities including changes to terms, covenants or ratios;

expectations concerning dividend payments and share buy-backs;

statements concerning the company’s corporate and tax domiciles and structures and potential changes to them, including potential tax charges;

statements regarding tax liabilities and related audits, reviews and proceedings;

expectations about the timing and amount of contributions to Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund (AICF), a special purpose fund for the compensation of proven Australian asbestos-
related personal injury and death claims;

expectations concerning the adequacy of the company’s warranty provisions and estimates for future warranty-related costs;

statements regarding the company’s ability to manage legal and regulatory matters (including but not limited to product liability, environmental, intellectual property and competition law
matters) and to resolve any such pending legal and regulatory matters within current estimates and in anticipation of certain third-party recoveries; and

= statements about economic conditions, such as changes in the US economic or housing recovery or changes in the market conditions in the Asia Pacific region, the levels of new home
construction and home renovations, unemployment levels, changes in consumer income, changes or stability in housing values, the availability of mortgages and other financing,
mortgage and other interest rates, housing affordability and supply, the levels of foreclosures and home resales, currency exchange rates, and builder and consumer confidence.

Words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “expect,” “intend,” “target,” “estimate,” “project,” “predict,” “forecast,” “guideline,” “aim,” “will,” “should,” “likely,” “continue,” “may,” “objective,”
“outlook” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements but are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements. Readers are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on these forward-looking statements and all such forward-looking statements are qualified in their entirety by reference to the following cautionary statements.

Forward-looking statements are based on the company’s current expectations, estimates and assumptions and because forward-looking statements address future results, events and
conditions, they, by their very nature, involve inherent risks and uncertainties, many of which are unforeseeable and beyond the company’s control. Such known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors may cause actual results, performance or other achievements to differ materially from the anticipated results, performance or achievements expressed,
projected or implied by these forward-looking statements. These factors, some of which are discussed under “Risk Factors” in Section 3 of the Form 20-F filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on 19 May 2016, include, but are not limited to: all matters relating to or arising out of the prior manufacture of products that contained asbestos by current and former
company subsidiaries; required contributions to AICF, any shortfall in AICF and the effect of currency exchange rate movements on the amount recorded in the company’s financial
statements as an asbestos liability; governmental loan facility to AICF; compliance with and changes in tax laws and treatments; competition and product pricing in the markets in which the
company operates; the consequences of product failures or defects; exposure to environmental, asbestos, putative consumer class action or other legal proceedings; general economic and
market conditions; the supply and cost of raw materials; possible increases in competition and the potential that competitors could copy the company’s products; reliance on a small number
of customers; a customer’s inability to pay; compliance with and changes in environmental and health and safety laws; risks of conducting business internationally; compliance with and
changes in laws and regulations; currency exchange risks; dependence on customer preference and the concentration of the company’s customer base on large format retail customers,
distributors and dealers; dependence on residential and commercial construction markets; the effect of adverse changes in climate or weather patterns; possible inability to renew credit
facilities on terms favorable to the company, or at all; acquisition or sale of businesses and business segments; changes in the company’s key management personnel; inherent limitations
on internal controls; use of accounting estimates; and all other risks identified in the company’s reports filed with Australian, Irish and US securities regulatory agencies and exchanges (as
appropriate). The company cautions you that the foregoing list of factors is not exhaustive and that other risks and uncertainties may cause actual results to differ materially from those
referenced in the company’s forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made and are statements of the company’s current expectations
concerning future results, events and conditions. The company assumes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements or information except as required by law.
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DISCLAIMER

This Management Presentation contains forward-looking statements. James Hardie Industries ple (the “company™) may from time to time make forward-looking statements in its
periodic reports filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission, on Forms 20-F and 8-K, in its annual reports to shareholders, in offering circulars, invitation
memaoranda and prospectuses, in media releases and other written materials and in oral statements made by the company’s officers, directors or employees to analysts, institutional
investors, existing and potential lenders, representatives of the media and others. Statements that are not historical facts are forward-locking statements and such forward-looking
statements are statements made pursuant to the Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,

Examples of forward-looking statements include:

. statements about the company’s future performance;

E projections of the company's results of operations or financial condition;

" statements regarding the company's plans, objectives or goals, including those relating to strategies, initiatives, competition, acquisitions, dispositions and/or its products;

. expectations concerning the costs associated with the suspension or closure of operations at any of the company’s plants and future plans with respect to any such plants;

. expectations concerning the costs associated with the significant capital expenditure projects at any of the company’s plants and future plans with respect to any such projects;

# expectations regarding the extension or renewal of the company’s credit facilities including changes to terms, covenants or ratios;

- expectations concerning dividend payments and share buy-backs;

. staternents concerning the company’s corporate and tax domiciles and structures and potential changes to them, including potential tax charges;

* statements regarding tax liabilities and related audits, reviews and proceedings;

. expectations about the timing and amount of contributions to Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund (AICF), a special purpose fund for the compensation of proven Australian
asbestos-related personal injury and death claims;

. expectations concerning the adequacy of the company's warranty provisions and estimates for future warranty-related costs;

. statements regarding the company’s ability to manage legal and regulatory matters (including but not limited to product liability, environmental, intellectual property and
competition law matters) and to resolve any such pending legal and regulatory matters within current estimates and in anticipation of certain third-party recoveries; and

* statements about economic conditions, such as changes in the US economic or housing recovery or changes in the market conditions in the Asia Pacific region, the levels of
new home construction and home renovations, unemployment levels, changes in consumer income, changes or stability in housing values, the availability of mortgages and
ather financing, mortgage and other interest rates, housing affordability and supply, the levels of foreclosures and home resales, currency exchange rates, and builder and
consumer confidence.
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DISCLAIMER (continued)

Words such as “"believe,” “anticipate,” “plan,” "expect,” “intend,” "target,” "eslimate,” “project,” “predict,” “forecast,” “guideline,” “aim,” “will," "should,” “likely,” “continue,” “may,”
“objective,” “outlook”™ and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements but are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements and all such forward-locking statements are qualified in their entirety by reference to the following
cautionary statements.

Forward-looking statements are based on the company's current expectations, estimates and assumptions and because forward-looking statements address future results, events
and conditions, they, by their very nature, involve inherent risks and uncertainties, many of which are unforeseeable and beyond the company’s control. Such known and unknown
risks, uncertainties and other factors may cause actual results, performance or other achievements to differ materially from the anticipated results, performance or achievements
expressed, projected or implied by these forward-locking statements. These factors, some of which are discussed under “Risk Factors” in Section 3 of the Form 20-F filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on 19 May 2016, include, but are not limited to: all matters relating to or arising out of the prior manufacture of products that contained
asbestos by current and former company subsidiaries; required contributions to AICF, any shortfall in AICF and the effect of currency exchange rate movements on the amount
recorded in the company’s financial statements as an asbestos liability; governmental loan facility to AICF; compliance with and changes in tax laws and treatments; competition and
product pricing in the markets in which the company operates; the consequences of product failures or defects; exposure to environmental, asbestos, putative consumer class action
or other legal proceedings; general economic and market conditions; the supply and cost of raw materials; possible increases in competition and the potential that competitors could
copy the company's products; reliance on a small number of customers; a customer's inability to pay; compliange with and changes in environmental and health and safety laws;
risks of conducting business internationally, compliance with and changes in laws and regulations, currency exchange risks, dependence on customer preference and the
concentration of the company's customer base on large format retail customers, distributors and dealers; dependence on residential and commercial construction markets; the effect
of adverse changes in climate or weather patterns; possible inability to renew credit facilities on terms favorable to the company, or at all, acquisition or sale of businesses and
business segments; changes in the company’s key management personnel; inherent limitations on internal controls; use of accounting estimates; and all other risks identified in the
company’s reports filed with Australian, Irish and US securities regulatory agencies and exchanges (as appropriate). The company cautions you that the foregoing list of factors is not
exhaustive and that other risks and uncertainties may cause actual results to differ materially from those referenced in the company's forward-looking statements. Forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date they are made and are statements of the company's current expectations concerning future results, events and conditions. The company
assumes no obligation to update any forward-looking staterments or information except as required by law.
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* Overview and Operating Review — Louis Gries, CEO

* Financial Review — Matt Marsh, CFO and Executive VP - Corporate

. >

* Questions and Answers

In this Management Presentafion, James Hardie may present financial measures, sales volume terms, and Non-US GAAP financial measures included in the
Definitions and other terms section of this document. The company presents financial m res that it believes are customarily used by its Australian investors.
Specifically, these financial measures, which are equivalent to or derived from certain US GAAP measures as explained in the definitions, include “EBIT", "EBIT
margin", “Operating profit before income taxes”, and “Net operating profit”. The company may also present other terms for measuring its sales volume (“million
square feet” or “mmsf™ and “thousand square feet” or “msf); and Non-US GAAP financial measures ("Adjusted EBIT", "Adjusted EBIT margin", “Adjusted net
operating profit’, "Adjusted diluted earnings per share’, “Adjusted operating profit before income taxes”, "Adjusted income tax expense’, “Adjusted effective tax
rate on earnings”, and “Adjusted EBITDA". Unless otherwise sfaled, results and comparisons are of the fourth quarter and full year of the current fiscal year
versus the fourth guarter and full year of the prior fiscal year (the “prior corresponding period” or ‘pcp”).

[67] yames Hardie




‘.James Hardie

OVERVIEW AND OPERATING REVIEW
Louis Gries, CEO




GROUP OVERVIEW

Adjusted Net Operating Profit' Adjusted Diluted EPS’

4th Qtr Full Year 4th Qir Full Year

US$57.9M t 1%| US$242.9M ' 10% US13 cents FLAT | US54 cents I 8%
Adjusted EBIT 2 Net Operating Cash Flow

4th Qtr Full Year Full Year

US$83.7TM t 4%| US$350.7M t 15% US$260.4M t 45%
Adjusted EBIT Margin % 2

4th Qir Full Year

19.2% lv 0.4 pts | 20.3% ' 2.0 pts

= Higher volumes in all businesses?

» Solid net sales growth for FY16 in both segments in local currencies

» Continued focus on operational efficiency at our plants to sustain improved performance

= FY16 North America and Europe fiber cement EBIT margin of 24.6% within our target range of 20% to 25%
* Net operating cash flow increased 45% compared to pcp

+ Announced second half dividend of US29 cents per security

T Excludes Ashestos related expenses and adjustments, New Zealand weatherlightness claims, non-recurring stamp duty and tax adjustments
?  Excludes Asbestos related expenses and adjustments, New Zealand weathertightness claims and non-recurring stamp duty
¥ Excludes Australian Pipes business which was sold in Q1 FY18
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NORTH AMERICA AND EUROPE FIBER CEMENT SUMMARY

* Modest R&R and new construction market growth

Net Sales US$356.9M US$1,386.3M
' 10% 1 9% + US volume grew above marketindex, however
Sales Volume 525.5 mmsf 2,000.5 mmsf PDG continues to track below our targeted level
T 1% T 5% EBIT
Average Price US$664ier msf  US$676 per msf + Lower freight and unit costs relative to pcp
i GEAT + Sustained positive performance improvement trend
EBIT US$82.7M US$340.6M

t 4% t 19% in our manufacturing plant network for FY16
(] 0
* Higher production costs at one US plant due to an

isolated production matter in Q4

+ Higher volume compared to pcp

+ Partially offset by higher SG&A expenses relative
to pcp
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NORTH AMERICA AND EUROPE FIBER CEMENT

Quarterly EBIT and EBIT Margin?

Fri1 Friz

Full Year EBIT Margin up 220 bps to 24.6%

EBIT USSM
EBIT Margin

B EBIT =g EBIT/Sales

! Excludes asset impairment charges of US814.3 million in 4 quarter FY12, US$5.8 million in 39 quarter FY13 and US$11.1 million in 4" quarter FY13
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NORTH AMERICA AND EUROPE FIBER CEMENT

Ti0

670

USS per MSF
o
s

g

550

Average Net Sales Price

675 676

652
642

632 626

FY10 FY1l FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16

+ Gross price increased 2-3% offset by strong US dollar
+ Overall, satisfied with tactical pricing and price positioning

JH Volume (mmsf), Starts (000s Units)

Top Line Growth?

5600
$500
$400
$300

o
-

‘13

=
-

15
"16

IH Volume = Housing Starts =—JH Revenua

» Revenue up 9% in FY16 on 8% volume growth
= Continuing to outpace U.S. housing starts growth

! Rolling 12 month average of seasonally adjusted estimate of housing starts by US Census Bureau
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ASIA PACIFIC FIBER CEMENT SUMMARY

Volume

» Favorable conditions in addressable markets

Net Sales A$109.4M A%$464.2M
FLAT t 7% * Excluding the Australian Pipes business, volume increased
Sales Volume 105.4 mmsf 449.6 mmsf for both the quarter and full year
8% l. 1% .
Price
Sales Volume 105.4 mmsf 439.8 mmsf
Excluding ' t 2% t gy  ° Favorably impacted by annual price increase, mix and
Average Price A$1,025 per msf  A$1,020 per msf appreciation of Philippines currency against the AUD
8% t &  EBT
2
USS EBIT US$19.8M US$81.4M « A$ EBIT grew 10% for the quarter and 8% for the full year?
1% 9%
5 * Full year $A EBIT adversely impacted by:
A$ EBIT A$27.7TM A$110.7TM
10% t 8% = Carole Park startup costs

= Rosehill site purchase in December FY15
= Stronger USD

1 Excludes Australian Pipes business which was sold in Q1 FY16
? Excludes New Zealand weathertightness claims
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Matt Marsh, CFO and Executive VP — Corporate




RESULTS - 4" QUARTER FY16

Net sales increased 6%
Three Months Ended 31 March

+ Higher volume in both operating segments?

ussMions asis GHlS CEIChaNGE + Higher average net sales price in APAC segment
Net sal 435.8 411.3 6 ’
S « Adversely impacted by stronger USD
Gross profit 160.1 152.5 5
Gross profit margin decreased 40 bps
SG&A expenses (68.7) (68.8) - . ) )
+ Higher production costs in both US and APAC:
. e =g ) - Isolated production matter at one US plant
Net operatin
pmﬁtp e 288 277 4 = Carole Park startup costs and higher input costs
Adjusted net operating profit increased 1%
- L 83.7 80.8 4
RESIEISIEERTE + Adjusted EBIT increased 4% compared to pcp
Adjusted net . . -
57.9 57.3 1 + Higher gross interest expense of US$1.6 million

operating profit 2
+ Increase in other expense of US$0.9 million

1E penses and ad) . New Zealar tighir faims and ing stamp duty
2E A penses and . New Zealal tig claims, nen-recurming stamp duly, and tax adiustments
3 E Australan Pipe ditcth was soldin Q1 FY16
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RESULTS - FULL YEAR 2016

Full Year Ended 31 March Net sales increasac
+ Higher volume in both operating segments?

US$ Millions FY16 FY15 % Change . X . .
+ Higher average net sales prices in local currencies
Net sales 1,728.2 1,656.9 4
Gross profit margin increased 170 bps
Gross profit 632.2 578.8 9
« Lower production costs in the US business due to
SG&A 254.2 245.5 4
SRR ¢ ) ¢ ) @ manufacturing network improved performance, lower
EBIT 354.0 335.0 6 freight and lower input costs
;Jgﬁ‘:pe'a“”g 244 4 291.3 (16) SG&A expenses increased
+ Investing in both segments, partially offset by FX
Adjusted EBIT 350.7 204.0 16 + Higher stock compensation expense
: Adjusted net operating profit increased
Ay 242.9 2214 10 .
operating profit + 15% Adjusted EBIT growth
+ US$7.0 million favorable movement in other income
T i Hew Zealandusamenginess cams ananonecumgsene. o - Higher gross interest expense of US$17.3 million

2 Excludes Asbestos related expenses and adjustments, New Zealandweatherightness claims, non-recuming stamp
duty and tax acjusiments
3 Excludes Ausfralian Pipes business which was sold in QT FY16
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CHANGES IN AUD vs. USD

0w

o0 W

WW«\

3
G
H
i %MJ\.’«
L
=1
g ors
2 o W
065
o
3 Dae13 31 Mar 14 30 Jun 14 20 Sep 14 1 Dac 14 3 Mar 15 30 Jun 16 0 sapis 71 e 15 I1Mer e
USS Millions '2:':1'5'”“ 12::‘?1: % Change ﬂmms % Change $ (Unfav)/Fav %
Net Sales $ 1,728.2 16569 ~ 4% $ 17912~ 8% {2?2; : :::
Gross Profi 6322 57868 ~ 9% 535 - 13% (13.9) s
Adjusted EBIT 3507 040 -~ 15% 340~ 20% (10.7) 5%
Adjusted net operating profit  $ 2429 214~ 10% 3 2538 ~ 15%

T As Reported 12 Months FY16 figures converted using 12 Months FY15 weighted average exchange rafes
2 Reflects the difference between FY16 As Reported and FY16 using 12 Months FY15 weighted average exchange rates
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US INPUT COSTS

Quarterly US Input Costs
1200 | 10 + The price of NBSK pulp decreased by 7%
e P it VO . )
= s £ * Cement prices continue to rise, up 3% compared
g i
£ 0 = s ¥ to pcp!
& Ly &
100 3 :
~3 £ -+ Gas prices are down 27% compared to pcp!
_— —— L
- —— o}
-1
. . « Electricity prices are down 2% compared to pcp’

Q4'13 Q1'14 Q2'14 Q314 Q"4 Q1'15 Q2'15 Q3'15 Q4'15 Q1'16 Q2'16 Q3'16 Q4'16

—pulp GAS ——FIECTRC ——CEMENT ——Freight - Freight prices decreased 15% compared to pcp!

The information underlying the table above is sourced as follows:

* Pulp - Cost per ton — from RIS

+ Cement— Relative index from the Bureau of Labor Statistics

+ Gas - Cosl per thousand cubic feet for industrial users — from US Energy Information Administration

= Electric — Cost per thousand kilowatt hour for industrial users — from US Energy Information Administration
» Gas and Electric prices for Q4 FY16 are based on prior quarter actuals

«  Freight — Cost per mile — from Dial-a-Truck Solutions

! Pripr comparable period as noted above refers to input costs for Q4FY15
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SEGMENT EBIT - 4" QUARTER and FULL YEAR FY16

North America and Europe Fiber North America and Europe Fiber Cement EBIT summary

Cement « Quarter and full year EBIT increased by 4% and 19%,

respectively when compared to pcp

+ Favorable freight, improved plant performance, lower unit
= Q4 EBIT
E Full Year

costs and higher volume, partially offset by higher SG&A

Us$ Millions

expense for the full year

FY14 FY¥15 FY 186

Asia Pacific Fiber Cement' Asia Pacific Fiber Cement EBIT! summary

L « EBIT in local currency for the quarter and FY increased

89.8
10% and 8%, respectively when compared to pcp
" Q4 EBIT + Increase reflects higher volume? and higher average

WEESGaE sales price, partially offset by increased production costs

uss$ Millions
B & 28 8

(=]

FY14 FY15 FY16

! Excludes New Zealand weathertightness claims
Z Excludes Australian Pipes business which was sold in Q1 FY16
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SEGMENT EBIT — 4™ QUARTER and FULL YEAR FY16

- Research and Development R&D summary
26.0) ;
, (25 (24.4) { (23.9) + On strategy to invest between 2%-3% of sales
§ (20 : g
= :15; + Decrease impacted by strengthening US dollar
=
@ (10) " Q4 EBIT + Fluctuations reflect normal variation and timing in
> s (5.4} (63) (6.4) = Full Year
to) number of R&D projects in process in any given period
FY15 FY16
General Corporate Costs’ General Corporate Costs summary
(69) - Full year results reflect higher stock compensation
o (40)
5 expense
= (20) = Q4 EBIT
w (20) E Full Year
2
(10)
0
FY14 FY15 FY16
" Excludes Asbestos relaled P and adji ASIC exp s, and ing stamp dufy
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INCOME TAX

year

US$ Millions Q4’16 Q4’15 FY16 FY15

+ Adjusted income tax expense and adjusted ETR for the
Operating profit before taxes 480 78 3305 32268 g vear increased due to changes in geographical mix
Asbestos adjustments1 276 63.7 (3.5) (32.3) of warrikie
NZ weathertightness claims - (0.1) 0.5 4.3) 9
Non-recurring stamp duty - 4.2 - 4.2 . .
Adjusted operating profit o o, e — + Income taxes are paid and payable in Ireland, the US,
before income taxes . } . . Canada, New Zealand and the Philippines
Adjusted income tax e;;f.pense,»2 (17.7) (18.1) (84.8) (68.8) + Income taxes are not currently paid or payable in
Adjusted effective tax rate 234% 24.0% 258%  23.7%  Eyrope (excluding Ireland) or Australia due to tax
Income tax (expense) benefit (19.2) 20.1 86.1) (31.3) losses. Australian tax losses primarily result from
Income taxes paid 57.8 356  deductions relating to contributions to AICF
Income taxes payable 48 1.8

' Includes Asbestos adjustments, AICF SG&A expenses and net AICF interest expense (income)
? Excludes tax effects of Asbestos and other tax adjustments
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CASHFLOW

2444 291.3

+ 45% increase in cash flow from operations

Net Income = Increase in net income adjusted for non-cash
Adjustment for non-cash items 98.9 79 items
Annual AICF contributi 628) (1130 44 ; . I
kil o B2 ) . Difference in annual contribution to AICF
Operating working capital® (408) (279 (46) . . .
R S = Unfavorable change in working capital due to:
Other net operating activities 205 212 3 5 :
N e s e T = Normal timing variances in AR" and AP
= Partially offset by lower inventory
Purchases of property, plant and equipment® (764)  (277.9)
TGRS Tromisa ol properygplart snd 104 i . Lower capital expenditures
equipment
Acquisition of sasets ©06) ) = Australian capacity projects complete
Free Cash Flow 1938  (98.4) = Near completion of our US capacity projects
Dividends paid (2465)  (390.1) a7
Net proceeds from long-term debt 1119 3891 an « Lower financing activities
Share related activities (19.8) (3.6) . .
= Decrease in net proceeds from borrowings
Free Cash Flow after Financing Activities 394 (103.0)

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation - Partia "y offset by a decrease in dividends paid

1

2 Excludes AP related to capital expenditures

? Includes capitalized interest

4 Accounts receivable ("AR") and Accounts payable (“AP")
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

CAPEX Spend » Full year FY16 CAPEX spend of US$73.2 million
decreased US$203.0 million compared to pcp

*+ Maintenance CAPEX continues

* US capacity projects substantially complete

20

15 Commissioning of new sheet machines at our Plant
10 City and Cleburne facilites has been deferred,
5 . subject to our continued monitoring of market
b conditions

Q1 FYle Q2FYle Q3 FYle Q4 FY16

USS Millions

M Capacity M Maintenance & Other = Carole Park capacity expansion project complete

and commissioned during Q2 FY16
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SUPPORTING GROWTH

Strong Financial Disciplined Capital

: Liquidity and Funding
Management Allocation

. . Conservative leveraging of
Strong margins and operating Invest in R&D and capacity balance sheet within 1-2 times

cash flows expansion to support organic adjusted EBITDA target
growth
Strong governance and e : o P =  $500 million of revolving
transparency Maintain ordinary dividends within bank facilities; $325 million
the defined payout ratio senior unsecured notes
Investment-grade financial

management Flexibility for: Weighted average maturity

of 4.7 years on bank

" Accretive and strategic facilities; 5.6 years on total
inorganic opportunities debt

Cyclical market volatility 62% liquidity as of Q4 FY16

on bank debt
Further shareholder returns

when appropriate

Financial management consistent with investment grade credit.
Ability to withstand market cycles and other unanticipated events.
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LIQUIDITY PROFILE

Debt Profile
UssS Millions

$500

drawn at Q4 FY16;

} $190m bank facilities
$107.1m held in cash

$325 $323

Available Debt Qutstanding at Q4 FY16

W Senior Notes ® Bank Facilities = Cash (3 Accordion

1 Incremental liquidity of up to US$250 million may be accessed via an accordion feature, which is
provided for under the terms of the syndicaled revolving credil facilify agreement, but not credit

approved
2 Callabie from 15 February 2018; callable at par from 15 February 2021

3 Qriginal issue discount (OID) USS2.2 million at 31 March 2016
4 Excludes Short-term debt - Asbestos
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- Corporate debt structure
«  US$500 million revolving credit facility, with a
December 2020 maturity

»  US$325 million 8 year senior unsecured

notes2?

- Strong balance sheet
=« US$107.1 million cash
«  US$405.7 million net debt* at Q4 FY16
= 62% liquidity on bank debt at Q4 FY16

+ Interest rate swaps resulted in an average 54% fixed /
46% floating ratio on drawn bank facilities

+ 1x net debt to EBITDA excluding asbestos at the

bottom of the target leverage range of 1-2 times




ASBESTOS COMPENSATION

KEY POINTS

»  Updated actuarial report completed as at 31 March 2016
= Undiscounted and uninflated central estimate decreased to A$1.434 billion from A$1.566 billion
= Change in estimate: NPV is now A$1,904 million

» Decreased from A$2,143 million at 31 March 2015

« A$239 million decrease reflects A$112 million due to payments made and reduced time value discounting
and A$127 million decrease arising from actuarial valuation assumption changes

»  Total contributions of US$62.8 million were made to AICF during FY2016 from our FY2015 free cash flow
*  From the time AICF was established in February 2007, we have contributed A$799.2 million to the fund

= We anticipate we will make a further contribution of approximately US$91.1 million to AICF on 1 July 2016. This
amounts represents 35% of our free cash flow for financial year 2016, as defined by the AFFA
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FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS

Claims Received

*  FY16 claims received were 12% below

577 665 658 610
actuarial estimates and 13% lower than pcp
+  Claims reporting for mesothelioma:
= 4% lower than previous year
= 1% lower than actuarial estimates

Claims Received Actuarial Estimate
. Claims reporting for non-mesothelioma:

= 31% lower than prior year
Average Claim Settlement’ = 33% lower than actuarial estimates

+  FY16 average claim settlement decreased

BFY16 mFY15

302,000 289,000

248,000 254,000 18% compared to FY15 due to:
= Lower average claim settlement sizes
across most disease types
= Large mesothelioma claims are lower in
number and average claim size than
actuarial estimates

Average Claim Settlement (AS) Actuarial Estimate

WFYle WMFY15
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FY2017 KEY PLANNING ASSUMPTIONS

+ The Company expects to see moderate growth in the US housing market in fiscal year 2017
* US Residential Starts forecasted to be between 1.2 and 1.3 million starts
+ North America and Europe Fiber Cement Segment EBIT expected to grow
= EBIT margins expected to remain at the high end of the target range of 20% to 25%
= Expectation is based upon the Company continuing to achieve strong operating performance in its
plants, consistent with recent quarters, and stable exchange rates and input cost trends

« Australian total detached started forecasted to be between 100,000 to 110,000 in calendar 2016

+ New Zealand and Philippines businesses’ growth expected to continue into fiscal year 2017
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SUMMARY

Adjusted Net Operating Profit’' Adjusted Diluted EPS"

4th Qtr Full Year 4th Qtr

US$57.9M t 1%| US$242.9M t 10% US13cents FLAT
Adjusted EBIT ? Net Operating Cash Flow
4th Qtr Full Year

US$83.7M ' 4% | US$350.7M t 15%

*  Overall strong financial performance for FY16 highlighted by:
= 10% increase in adjusted net operating profit
= 45% increase in cash flow from operations

= US$268.8 million of capital returned to shareholders

Excludes Asbestos related expenses and adjustments, New Zealand weatherlightness claims and non-recurring stamp duty
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Full Year

US54cents

Full Year

US$260.4M

Announced Fiscal 2017 share buyback program to acquire up to US$100.0 million of issued capital

Excludes Asbestos related expenses and adjustments, New Zealand weathertightness claims, non-recurring stamp duty and tax adjustments

8%

45%

PAGE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Three Months and Full Year Ended Ended 31 March

USS$ Millions Q4'16 Q4'15 % Change FY16 FY15 % Change

Net Sales

North America and Europe Fiber Cement $ 3569 % 3251 10 $ 13863 $ 12765 9

Asia Pacific Fiber Cement 78.9 86.2 (8) 3419 3804 (10)
Total Net Sales $ 4358 § 4113 6 §$ 17282 § 1,656.9 4

EBIT - US$ Millions

North America and Europe Fiber Cement § 827 $ 79.6 4 $ 3406 $ 2859 19

Asia Pacific Fiber Cement’ 19.8 19.9 (1) 814 89.8 (9)
Research & Development (6.4) (6.3) (2) (23.9) (26.0) 8

General Corporate’ (12.4) (12.4) - (47.4) (45.7) (4)
Adjusted EBIT $ 83.7 § 80.8 4 $ 3507 $ 304.0 15

Net interest expense excluding AICF interestincome (6.2) (4.4) (41) (25.3) (8.9)

Other (expense) income (1.9) (1.0) (90) 2.1 (4.9)

Adjusted income tax expense (17.7) (18.1) 2 (84.6) (68.8) (23)
Adjusted net operating profit $ 579 $ 57.3 1 $§ 2429 $§ 2214 10

! Excludes New Zealand weathertightness claims
2 Excludes Asbestos related expenses and adjustments and non-recurring stamp duty
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NET POST-TAX UNFUNDED ASBESTOS LIABILITY

[67] yames Hardie

A$ millions (except where stated) FY16

FY15
Central Estimate — Undiscounted and Uninflated 1,433.8 1,565.9
Provision for claims handling costs of AICF 322 33.7
Other US GAAP adjustments 87.4 28.3
Net assets of AICF (24.2) (11.1)
Contributions for asbestos research and education 0.6 21
Effect of tax (528.3) (555.8)
Net post-tax unfunded liability in A$ 1,001.5 1,063.1
Exchange rate US$ per A$1.00 0.7657 0.7636
Net post-tax unfunded liability in US$ millions 766.8 811.7




ASBESTOS CASH MOVEMENTS FOR FULL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

A% millions

AICF cash and investments - 31 March 2015 289
Contributions to AFFA by James Hardie 81.1
Insurance recoveries 234
Loan Drawdowns 84.0
Loan Repayments (35.5)
Interest income, net (0.5)
Claims paid (154.7)
Operating costs (4.0)
Other (0.5)
AICF cash and investments - 31 March 2016 222
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UPDATED ACTUARIAL ESTIMATE
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A% million

7.000

6,000

5,000

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000

N

1@; !

.I—

=

1536 B85 1568 1517 1555

1,782 1|59:t

1426 1537 478 1580

1,355

30Jun 31 Mar 30 June 31 Mar 30 Sept 31Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar
2004 2005 2005 2006 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

{27223 Sensitivity Range (net, undiscounted) —+— Discounted central estimate (net) —#— Undiscounted central estimate (net)




DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Q4'16 Q4'15 FY16 FY15
Depreciation and amortization
North America and Europe Fiber Cement $ 205 § 157 % 69.2 § 60.9
Asia Pacific Fiber Cement 4.2 3.2 10.6 10.0
Total depreciation and amortization $ 247 $ 189 $ 79.8 $ 70.9
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DEFINITIONS AND OTHER TERMS

This Management Presentation forms part of a package of information about the company’s results. It should be read in conjunction with the other parts of this package, including the
Management's Analysis of Results, Media Release and Consolidated Financial Statements

Definitions
Non-financial Terms
AFFA - Amended and Restated Final Funding Agreement

AICF - Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund Ltd

NBSHK - Morthern Bleached Soft Kraft; the company's benchmark grade of pulp

3 3 N 5") = Expenses arising from defending and resolving claims in New Zealand that allege
pn-or buuld:ng demgn, madequale cemﬁcatuon of plans madequale oonslruchnn rewew and mmphance certification and deficient work by sub-contractors

Financial Terms

EBIT — Earnings before interest and taxes

EBIT margin — EBIT margin is defined as EBIT as a percentage of net sales

Sales Volumes

mmsf - million square feet, where a square foot is defined as a standard square foot of 5/16” thickness

msf — thousand square feet, where a square foot is defined as a standard square foot of 5/16" thickness
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DEFINITIONS AND OTHER TERMS

Financial Measures — US GAAP equivalents

This document contains financial statement line item descriptions that are considered to be non-US GAAP, but are consistent with those
used by Australian companies. Because the company prepares its Consolidated Financial Statements under US GAAP, the following
table cross-references each non-US GAAP line item description, as used in Management's Analysis of Results, Media Release, and
Management Presentation to the equivalent US GAAP financial statement line item description used in the company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements:

Management's Analysis of Results and Consolidated Statements of Operations
Media Release and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
{US GAAP)

Net sales Net sales
Cost of goods sold Cost of goods sold

Gross profit Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses Research and development expenses
Asbestos adjustments Ashestos adjustments

EBIT" Operating income (loss)
Net interest income (expense)” Sumn of interest expense and interest income
Other income (expense) Other income (expense)

Operating profit (1055) before income taxes™ Income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax (expense) benefit Income tax (expense) benefit

Net operating profit (1055)" Net income (l03s)
*- Represents non-US GAAP descriptions used by Australian companies.
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NON-US GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

This Management Presentation includes certain financial information to supplement the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements
which are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“US GAAP”). These financial
measures are designed to provide investors with an alternative method for assessing our performance from on-going operations, capital
efficiency and profit generation. Management uses these financial measure for the same purposes. These financial measures include:

. Adjusted EBIT;

. Adjusted EBIT margin;

. Adjusted net operating profit;

. Adjusted EBITDA;

*  Adjusted diluted earnings per share;

«  Adjusted operating profit before income taxes
. Adjusted income tax expense; and

. Adjusted effective tax rate

These financial measures are or may be non-US GAAP financial measures as defined in the rules of the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission and may exclude or include amounts that are included or excluded, as applicable, in the calculation of the most directly
comparable financial measures calculated in accordance with US GAAP. These financial measures are not meant to be considered in
isolation or as a substitute for comparable US GAAP financial measures and should be read only in conjunction with the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements prepared in accordance with US GAAP. In evaluating these financial measures, investors should
note that other companies reporting or describing similarly titled financial measures may calculate them differently and investors should
exercise caution in comparing the Company's financial measures to similar titled measures by other companies.
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NON-US GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Q4’16 Q4'15 FY16 FY15

EBIT $ 56.3 $ 126 § 354.0 $ 335.0
Asbestos:

Asbestos adjustments 27.0 63.5 (5.5) (33.4)

AICF SG&A expenses 0.4 0.6 1.7 2.5
New Zealand weathertightness claims - (0.1) 0.5 (4.3)
Non-recurring stamp duty - 4.2 - 4.2
Adjusted EBIT 83.7 80.8 350.7 304.0
Net sales 3 4358 § 4113 § 1,728.2 3 1,656.9
Adjusted EBIT margin 19.2% 19.6% 20.3% 18.3%

Q4'16 Q4'15 FY16 FY15

Net operating profit $ 288 § 277 % 2444 $ 291.3
Asbestos:

Asbestos adjustments 27.0 63.5 (5.5) (33.4)

AICF SG&A expenses 0.4 0.6 1.7 25

AICF interest expense (income), net 0.2 (0.4) 0.3 (1.4)
New Zealand weathertightness claims - (0.1) 0.5 (4.3)
Non-recurring stamp duty - 4.2 - 4.2
Asbestos and other tax adjustments 15 (38.2) 15 (37.5)
Adjusted net operating profit $ 579 § 573 $ 2429 $ 2214
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NON-US GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES
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Q4'16 Q4'15 FY16 FY15
EBIT $ 56.3 § 126 § 3540 § 335.0
Depreciation and amortization 24.7 18.9 79.8 70.9
Adjusted EBITDA $ 81.0 $§ 315 § 4338 $ 405.9

Three Months and Full Year Ended 31 March

Q4'16 Q415 FY16

FY15
Adjusted net operating profit (US$ Millions) $ 579 § 573 § 2429 § 2214
Weighted average common shares outstanding - 4471 446.4 447.2 446.4

Diluted (millions) ' ' ' '
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (US cents) 13 13 54 50




NON-US GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Q416 Q415 FY16 FY15

Operating profit before income taxes $ 48.0 $ 76 § 3305 $ 322.6
Asbestos:

Asbestos adjustments 27.0 63.5 (5.5) (33.4)

AICF SG&A expenses 0.4 0.6 1.7 25

AICF interest expense (income), net 0.2 (0.4) 0.3 (1.4)
New Zealand weathertightness claims - (0.1) 0.5 (4.3)
Non-recurring stamp duty - 4.2 - 4.2
Adjusted operating profit before income taxes $ 756 $ 754 $ 3275 % 290.2
Income tax (expense) income $ (19.2) $ 201 % (86.1) $ (31.3)
Asbestos-related and other tax adjustments 15 (38.2) 15 (37.5)
Adjusted income tax expense $ (17.7) $ (18.1) $ (84.6) $ (68.8)
Effective tax rate 40.0% (264.5%) 26.1% 9.7%
Adjusted effective tax rate 23.4% 24.0% 25.8% 23.7%
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
James Hardie Industries plc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of James Hardie Industries plc as of 31 March 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 March
2016. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of James Hardie Industries plc
at 31 March 2016 and 2015, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 March 2016, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Irvine, California
19 May 2016



James Hardie Industries plc
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Millions of US dollars)

31 March 31 March
2016 2015
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 107.1 $ 67.0
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5.0 5.0
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - Asbestos 17.0 22.0
Accounts and other receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of US$1.1 million and US$0.8 million as of 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015,
respectively 173.3 1333
Inventories 193.0 218.0
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 19.7 243
Insurance receivable - Asbestos 16.7 16.7
Workers’ compensation - Asbestos 4.1 4.5
Deferred income taxes - 17.3
Deferred income taxes - Asbestos - 15.9
Total current assets 535.9 524.0
Property, plant and equipment, net 867.0 880.1
Insurance receivable - Asbestos 149.0 161.9
Workers’ compensation - Asbestos 46.8 45.5
Deferred income taxes 25.9 12.9
Deferred income taxes - Asbestos 384.9 389.3
Other assets 30.9 30.8
Total assets $ 2,040.4 $ 2,044.5
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Deficit
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 127.2 $ 149.6
Short-term debt - Asbestos 50.7 13.6
Accrued payroll and employee benefits 63.0 60.6
Accrued product warranties 12.2 8.9
Income taxes payable 4.8 1.8
Asbestos liability 1259 131.6
Workers’ compensation - Asbestos 4.1 4.5
Other liabilities 11.9 7.3
Total current liabilities 399.8 3779
Long-term debt 512.8 397.5
Deferred income taxes 82.1 88.9
Accrued product warranties 33.1 263
Asbestos liability 1,176.3 1,290.0
Workers’ compensation - Asbestos 46.8 45.5
Other liabilities 14.7 21.0
Total liabilities 2,265.6 2,247.1
Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)
Shareholders’ deficit:
Common stock, Euro 0.59 par value, 2.0 billion shares authorized; 445,579,351 shares issued at 31 March 2016 and 445,680,673 shares issued at
31 March 2015 2314 231.2
Additional paid-in capital 164.4 153.2
Accumulated deficit (621.8) (586.6)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 0.8 (0.4)
Total shareholders’ deficit (225.2) (202.6)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ deficit $ 2,040.4 $ 2,044.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars, except per share data) 2016 2015 2014
Net sales $ 1,728.2 $ 1,656.9 $ 1,493.8
Cost of goods sold (1,096.0) (1,078.1) (987.4)
Gross profit 632.2 578.8 506.4
Selling, general and administrative expenses (254.2) (245.5) (224.4)
Research and development expenses (29.5) (31.7) (33.1)
Asbestos adjustments 5.5 334 (195.8)
Operating income 354.0 335.0 53.1
Interest expense, net of capitalized interest (26.6) (9.8) 4.5)
Interest income 1.0 2.3 3.4
Other income (expense) 2.1 (4.9) 2.6
Income before income taxes 330.5 322.6 54.6
Income tax (expense) benefit (86.1) (31.3) 44.9
Net income $ 2444 $ 2913 $ 99.5
Income per share - basic:
Basic $ 0.55 $ 0.65 $ 0.22
Diluted $ 0.55 $ 0.65 $ 0.22
Weighted average common shares outstanding
(Millions):
Basic 445.3 445.0 442.6
Diluted 447.2 446.4 444.6
Comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net income $ 2444 § 2913 $ 99.5
Pension and post-retirement benefit adjustments 0.3 - -
Cash flow hedges - (0.6) 0.9
Currency translation adjustments 0.9 (32.9) (15.2)
Comprehensive income: $  245.6 $ 2578 $ 85.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015 2014
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income $ 244.4 $ 291.3 $ 99.5
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 79.8 70.9 61.4
Deferred income taxes (0.1) (37.4) (70.7)
Stock-based compensation 10.3 9.2 8.5
Asbestos adjustments (5.5) (33.4) 195.8
Excess tax benefits from share-based awards (0.4) (1.4) (5.6)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 14.8 - -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 100.3 107.8 99.9
Restricted short-term investments - Asbestos - 0.2 6.3
Payment to AICF (62.8) (113.0) -
Accounts and other receivables (39.9) (5.1) 49
Inventories 16.2 (38.5) (22.1)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 3.9 9.2 35
Insurance receivable - Asbestos 17.2 29.1 25.7
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (16.9) 15.7 36.2
Asbestos liability (114.9) (136.7) (133.6)
Other accrued liabilities 21.8 11.6 13.1
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 260.4 $ 179.5 $ 322.8
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment $ (73.2) $ (276.2) $ (115.4)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 10.4 - 0.7
Capitalized interest 3.2) (1.7) -
Acquisition of assets (0.6) - (4.1)
Net cash used in investing activities $ (66.6) $ (277.9) $ (118.8)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings $ 528.0 $ 717.0 $ -
Repayments of borrowings (413.0) (642.0) -
Proceeds from senior unsecured notes - 3224 -
Debt issuance costs 3.1 (8.3) -
Proceeds from issuance of shares 2.1 4.1 29.3
Excess tax benefits from share-based awards 0.4 1.4 5.6
Common stock repurchased and retired (22.3) 9.1) (22.1)
Dividends paid (246.5) (390.1) (199.1)
Net cash used in financing activities $ (154.4) $ (46) $ (186.3)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash $ 0.7 $ 2.5 $ (3.9)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 40.1 (100.5) 13.8
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 67.0 167.5 153.7
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 107.1 $ 67.0 $ 167.5

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at bank $ 94.5 $ 60.0 $ 70.9
Short-term deposits 12.6 7.0 96.6
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 107.1 $ 67.0 $ 167.5

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Activities
Cash paid during the year for interest 20.5
Cash paid during the year for income taxes, net $ 57.8

@

4.6

35.6 11.6

@
@

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-6



James Hardie Industries plc
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit)

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Paid-in Accumulated Treasury Comprehensive

(Millions of US dollars) Stock Capital Deficit Stock Income (loss) Total
Balances as of 31 March 2013 $ 2273 $ 101.1 $ (357.6) $ - $ 47.4 18.2
Net Income - - 99.5 - - 99.5
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (14.3) (14.3)
Stock-based compensation 1.0 7.5 - - - 8.5
Tax benefit from stock options exercised - 5.6 - - - 5.6
Equity awards exercised 33 26.0 - - - 29.3
Dividends declared - - (323.7) - - (323.7)
Treasury stock purchased - - - (22.1) - (22.1)
Treasury stock retired (1.0) (0.5) (20.6) 22.1 - -
Balances as of 31 March 2014 $  230.6 $ 1397 $ (6024) $ - $ 33.1 (199.0)
Net Income - - 2913 - - 291.3
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (33.5) (33.5)
Stock-based compensation 0.6 8.6 - - - 9.2
Tax benefit from stock options exercised - 1.4 - - - 1.4
Equity awards exercised 0.4 3.7 = o = 4.1
Dividends declared - - (267.0) - - (267.0)
Treasury stock purchased - - - 9.1) - 9.1)
Treasury stock retired (0.4) (0.2) (8.5) 9.1 - -
Balances as of 31 March 2015 $ 2312 $ 1532 $ (586.6) $ - $ (0.4) $  (202.6)
Net income - - 244.4 - - 244.4
Other comprehensive income - - - - 1.2 1.2
Stock-based compensation 0.8 9.5 - - - 10.3
Tax benefit from stock options exercised - 0.4 - - - 0.4
Equity awards exercised 0.2 1.9 - - - 2.1
Dividends declared - - (258.7) - - (258.7)
Treasury stock purchased - - - (22.3) - (22.3)
Treasury stock retired (0.8) (0.6) (20.9) 22.3 - -
Balances as of 31 March 2016 $ 2314 $ 1644 $ (621.8) $ - $ 0.8 $ (2252

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Background and Basis of Presentation

Nature of Operations

James Hardie Industries plc (“JHI plc”) manufactures and sells fiber cement building products for interior and exterior building construction applications, primarily
in the United States, Canada, Australia, New Zealand, the Philippines and Europe.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements represent the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of JHI plc and its wholly-owned subsidiaries and
variable interest entity (“VIE”). Unless the context indicates otherwise, JHI plc and its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries and VIE (as of the time
relevant to the applicable reference) are collectively referred to as “James Hardie”, the “James Hardie Group” or the “Company”. The consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”). The US dollar is used as
the reporting currency.

Reporting Segments
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company changed the name of its USA and Europe segment to the North America and Europe segment to better
reflect the segment’s geographic nature; however, the composition of the segment remained the same. Refer to Note 18 for further details on segment reporting.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reclassifications

In the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Company reclassified certain tax accounts between Accounts
payable and accrued liabilities and Other accrued liabilities, both of which are included in operating assets and liabilities within the operating activities section of
the cash flow, to conform to the current year presentation.

Within the financing activities section of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company reclassified deferred
financing fees which were previously included within Proceeds from senior unsecured notes, net of deferred financing fees, and separated these costs in Debt
issuance costs, to conform to current year presentation.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of JHI plc, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and VIE. All intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

AVIE is an entity that is evaluated for consolidation using more than a simple analysis of voting control. The analysis is based on (i) what party has the power to
direct the most significant activities of the VIE that impact its economic performance, and (ii) what party has rights to receive benefits or is obligated to absorb
losses that are significant to the VIE. The analysis of the party that consolidates a VIE is a continual assessment.

In February 2007, the Company’s shareholders approved the Amended and Restated Final Funding Agreement (the “AFFA”), an agreement pursuant to which
the Company provides long-term funding to Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund (“AICF”), a special purpose fund that provides compensation for
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James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

the Australian-related personal injuries for which certain former subsidiary companies of James Hardie in Australia (being Amaca Pty Ltd (“Amaca”), Amaba Pty
Ltd (“Amaba”) and ABN 60 Pty Limited (“ABN 60”) (collectively, the “Former James Hardie Companies”)) are found liable. JHI plc owns 100% of James Hardie
117 Pty Ltd (the “Performing Subsidiary”), which, under the terms of the AFFA, has an obligation to make payments to AICF on an annual basis subject to the
provisions of the AFFA. JHI plc guarantees the Performing Subsidiary’s obligation. Additionally, the Company appoints three AICF directors and the New South
Wales (“NSW”) Government appoints two AICF directors.

Although the Company has no ownership interest in AICF, for financial reporting purposes the Company consolidates AICF as a VIE as defined under US
GAAP due to its pecuniary and contractual interests in AICF as a result of the funding arrangements outlined in the AFFA. The Company’s consolidation of AICF
results in certain assets and liabilities being recorded on its consolidated balance sheets and certain income and expense transactions being recorded in the
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income. These items are Australian dollar-denominated and are subject to remeasurement into US
dollars at each reporting date.

For the fiscal years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Company did not provide financial or other support to AICF that it was not previously contractually
required to provide.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Foreign Currency Translation

All assets and liabilities are translated or remeasured into US dollars at current exchange rates while revenues and expenses are translated or remeasured at
average exchange rates in effect for the period. The effects of foreign currency translation adjustments are included directly in other comprehensive income in
shareholders’ equity (deficit). Gains and losses arising from foreign currency transactions are recognized in income currently.

The Company has recorded on its balance sheets certain Australian assets and liabilities, including asbestos-related assets and liabilities under the terms of the
AFFA, that are denominated in Australian dollars and subject to translation (Australian entities) or remeasurement (AICF entity) into US dollars at each
reporting date.

F-9



James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Unless otherwise noted, the exchange rates used to convert Australian dollar denominated amounts into US dollars in the consolidated financial statements are
as follows:

31 March
(US$1 = A$) 2016 2015 2014
Assets and liabilities 1.3060 1.3096 1.0845
Statements of operations 1.3577 1.1419 1.0716
Cash flows - beginning cash 1.3096 1.0845 0.9597
Cash flows - ending cash 1.3060 1.3096 1.0845
Cash flows - current period movements 1.3577 1.1419 1.0716

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents generally relate to amounts subject to letters of credit with insurance companies, which restrict the cash from use for
general corporate purposes.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is generally determined under the first-in, first-out method, except that the cost of raw materials and
supplies is determined using actual or average costs. Cost includes the costs of materials, labor and applied factory overhead. On a regular basis, the Company
evaluates its inventory balances for excess quantities and obsolescence by analyzing demand, inventory on hand, sales levels and other information. Based on
these evaluations, inventory costs are adjusted to net realizable value, if necessary.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Property, plant and equipment of businesses acquired are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
acquisition. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings 40
Building improvements 5to 10
Manufacturing machinery 51020
General equipment 5to 10
Office furniture and equipment 3to0 10
Computer equipment, software, and software development 3to7



James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Depreciation and Amortization

The Company records depreciation and amortization under both cost of goods sold and selling, general and administrative expenses, depending on the asset’s
business use. All depreciation and amortization related to plant building, machinery and equipment is recorded in cost of goods sold.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment, are evaluated each quarter for events or changes in circumstances that indicate that an asset might
be impaired because the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. These include, without limitation, a significant adverse change in the extent or
manner in which a long-lived asset or asset group is being used, a current period operating or cash flow loss combined with a history of operating or cash flow
losses, a projection or forecast that demonstrates continuing losses associated with the use of a long-lived asset or asset group and/or a current expectation
that it is more likely than not that a long lived asset or asset group will be sold or otherwise disposed of significantly before the end of its previously estimated
useful life.

When such indicators of potential impairment are identified, recoverability is tested by grouping long-lived assets that are used together and represent the lowest
level for which cash flows are identifiable and distinct from the cash flows of other long-lived assets, which is typically at the production line or plant facility level,
depending on the type of long-lived asset subject to an impairment review.

Recoverability is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset group to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset group. If the carrying amount exceeds the estimated undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized at the amount
by which the carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair value of the asset group.

The methodology used to estimate the fair value of the asset group is based on a discounted cash flow analysis that considers the asset group’s highest and
best use that would maximize the value of the asset group. In addition, the estimated fair value of an asset group also considers, to the extent practicable, a
market participant’s expectations and assumptions in estimating the fair value of the asset group. If the estimated fair value of the asset group is less than the
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized at an amount equal to the excess of the carrying value over the estimated fair value of the asset group.

See Note 7 for additional information.

Accrued Product Warranties

An accrual for estimated future warranty costs is recorded based on an analysis by the Company, which includes the historical relationship of warranty costs to
installed product at an estimated remediation cost per standard foot. Based on this analysis and other factors, the adequacy of the Company’s warranty
provisions is adjusted as necessary.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Debt

The Company’s debt consists of senior unsecured notes and an unsecured revolving credit facility. The senior unsecured notes are recorded at cost net of the
original issue discount. The related original issue discount and the borrowing costs are amortized over the term of the borrowing using the effective interest
method. The unsecured revolving credit facility is recorded at cost. The related borrowing costs are amortized over the term of the borrowing using the effective
interest method. Debt is presented as current if the liability is due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date. See Note 13 for the Company’s
fair value considerations.

In addition, the Company consolidates AICF which has a loan facility. Readers are referred to the discussion later in this footnote under Asbestos-related
Accounting Policies.

Environmental Remediation and Compliance Expenditures

Environmental remediation and compliance expenditures that relate to current operations are expensed or capitalized, as appropriate. Expenditures that relate to
an existing condition caused by past operations, and which do not contribute to current or future revenue generation, are expensed. Liabilities are recorded
when environmental assessments and/or remedial efforts are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Estimated liabilities are not discounted to
present value. Generally, the timing of these accruals coincides with completion of a feasibility study or the Company’s commitment to a formal plan of action.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when the risks and obligations of ownership have been transferred to the customer, which generally occurs at the time of
delivery to the customer. The Company records estimated reductions in sales for customer rebates and discounts including volume, promotional, cash and
other discounts. Rebates and discounts are recorded based on management’s best estimate when products are sold. The estimates are based on historical
experience for similar programs and products. Management reviews these rebates and discounts on an ongoing basis and the related accruals are adjusted, if
necessary, as additional information becomes available.

A portion of the Company’s revenue is made through distributors under a Vendor Managed Inventory agreement whereby revenue is recognized upon the
transfer of title and risk of loss.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred income taxes are recognized by applying enacted
statutory rates applicable to future years to differences between the tax bases and financial reporting amounts of existing assets and liabilities. The effect on
deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more
likely than not that all or some portion of deferred tax assets will not be realized. Interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions are recognized in
Income tax expense on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Financial Instruments

The Company calculates the fair value of financial instruments and includes this additional information in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. The
estimated fair value amounts have been determined by the Company using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However,
considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation
methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Periodically, interest rate swaps, commodity swaps and forward exchange contracts are used to manage market risks and reduce exposure resulting from
fluctuations in interest rates, commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates. Where such contracts are designated as, and are effective as, a hedge,
changes in the fair value of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are deferred and recorded in other comprehensive income. These deferred
gains or losses are recognized in income when the underlying transactions being hedged impact earnings. The ineffective portion of these hedges is recognized
in income currently. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments that are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes are recognized in income.
The Company does not use derivatives for trading purposes. Readers are referred to Note 12 for discussion on financial instruments.

Stock-based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense represents the estimated fair value of equity-based and liability-classified awards granted to employees, adjusted for
estimated forfeitures, and recognized as an expense over the vesting period. Stock-based compensation expense is included in the line item Selling, general
and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Equity awards with vesting based solely on a service condition are typically subject to graded vesting, in that the awards vest 25% after the first year, 25% after
the second year and 50% after the third year. For equity awards subject to graded vesting, the Company has elected to use the accelerated recognition method.
Accordingly, each vesting tranche is valued separately, and the recognition of stock-based compensation expense is more heavily weighted earlier in the
vesting period. Stock-based compensation expense for equity awards that are subject to performance or market vesting conditions are typically recognized
ratably over the vesting period. The Company issues new shares to award recipients upon exercise of stock options or when the vesting condition for restricted
stock units (“RSU’s”) has been satisfied.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock options on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
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James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For RSU’s subject to a service vesting condition, the fair value is equal to the market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant, adjusted for
the fair value of estimated dividends as the restricted stock holder is not entitled to dividends over the vesting period. For RSU’s subject to a scorecard
performance vesting condition, the fair value is adjusted for changes in JHI plc’'s common stock price at each balance sheet date until the end of the
performance period. For RSU’s subject to a market vesting condition, the fair value is estimated using a Monte Carlo Simulation.

Compensation expense recognized for liability-classified awards are based on the fair market value of JHI plc’s common stock on the date of grant and recorded
as a liability. The liability is adjusted for subsequent changes in JHI plc’'s common stock price at each balance sheet date.
Earnings Per Share

The Company discloses basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”). Basic EPS is calculated using net income divided by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is similar to basic EPS except that the weighted average number of common shares outstanding is
increased to include the number of additional common shares calculated using the Treasury Method that would have been outstanding if the dilutive potential
common shares, such as stock options and RSU’s, had been issued.

Basic and dilutive common shares outstanding used in determining net income per share are as follows:

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of shares) 2016 2015 2014

Basic common shares outstanding 445.3 445.0 442.6
Dilutive effect of stock awards 1.9 1.4 2.0
Diluted common shares outstanding 447.2 446.4 444.6
(US dollars) 2016 2015 2014

Net income per share - basic $ 055 $ 065 $ 022
Net income per share - diluted $ 055 $ 065 $ 022

Potential common shares of 1.3 million, 1.7 million and 1.9 million for the years ended 31 March 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, have been excluded from
the calculation of diluted common shares outstanding because the effect of their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

Unless they are anti-dilutive, RSU’s which vest solely based on continued employment are considered to be outstanding as of their issuance date for purposes
of computing diluted EPS and are included in the calculation of diluted EPS using the Treasury Method. Once these RSU’s vest, they are included in the basic
EPS calculation on a weighted-average basis.

RSU’s which vest based on performance or market conditions are considered contingent shares. At each reporting date prior to the end of the contingency
period, the Company determines the number of contingently issuable shares to include in the diluted EPS calculation, as the number of shares that would be
issuable under the terms of the RSU arrangement, if the end of the reporting period were the end of the contingency period. Once these RSU’s vest, they are
included in the basic EPS calculation on a weighted-average basis.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Asbestos-related Accounting Policies
Asbestos Liability

The amount of the asbestos liability has been recognized by reference to (but not exclusively based upon) the most recent actuarial estimate of projected future
cash flows as calculated by KPMG Actuarial Pty Ltd (‘KPMGA”), who are engaged and appointed by AICF under the terms of the AFFA. Based on their
assumptions, KPMGA arrived at a range of possible total future cash flows and calculated a central estimate, which is intended to reflect a probability-weighted
expected outcome of those actuarially estimated future cash flows projected by KPMGA to occur through 2077.

The Company recognizes the asbestos liability in the consolidated financial statements by reference to (but not exclusively based upon) the undiscounted and
uninflated central estimate. The Company considered discounting when determining the best estimate under US GAAP. The Company has recognized the
asbestos liability by reference to (but not exclusively based upon) the central estimate as undiscounted on the basis that it is the Company’s view that the timing
and amounts of such cash flows are not fixed or readily determinable. The Company considered inflation when determining the best estimate under US GAAP.
It is the Company’s view that there are material uncertainties in estimating an appropriate rate of inflation over the extended period of the AFFA. The Company
views the undiscounted and uninflated central estimate as the best estimate under US GAAP.

Adjustments in the asbestos liability due to changes in the actuarial estimate of projected future cash flows and changes in the estimate of future operating
costs of AICF are reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income during the period in which they occur. Claims paid by AICF
and claims-handling costs incurred by AICF are treated as reductions in the accrued liability balances.

Insurance Receivable

The insurance receivable recorded by the Company has been recognized by reference to (but not exclusively based upon) the most recent actuarial estimate of
recoveries expected from insurance policies and insurance companies with exposure to the asbestos claims, as calculated by KPMGA. The assessment of
recoveries is based on the expected pattern of claims against such policies less an allowance for credit risk based on credit agency ratings. The insurance
receivable generally includes these cash flows as undiscounted and uninflated, however, where the timing of recoveries has been agreed with the insurer, the
receivables are recorded on a discounted basis. The Company records insurance receivables that are deemed probable of being realized.

Adjustments in the insurance receivable due to changes in the actuarial estimate, or changes in the Company’s assessment of recoverability are reflected in the
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income during the period in which they occur. Insurance recoveries are treated as a reduction in the
insurance receivable balance.

Workers’ Compensation

An estimate of the liability related to workers’ compensation claims is prepared by KPMGA as part of the annual actuarial assessment. This estimate contains
two components, amounts that will be met by a workers’ compensation scheme or policy, and amounts that will be met by the Former James Hardie Companies.
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The estimated liability is included as part of the asbestos liability and adjustments to the estimate are reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income during the period in which they occur. Amounts that are expected to be paid by the workers’ compensation schemes or policies are
recorded as workers’ compensation receivable. Adjustments to the workers’ compensation liability result in an equal adjustment in the workers’ compensation
receivable recorded by the Company and have no effect on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of AICF are reflected as restricted assets, as the use of these assets is restricted to the settlement of asbestos claims and payment
of the operating costs of AICF. Since cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid, the Company classifies these amounts as a current asset on the consolidated
balance sheets.

Restricted Short-Term Investments

Short-term investments consist of highly liquid investments held in the custody of major financial institutions. All short-term investments are classified as
available for sale and are recorded at market value using the specific identification method. Unrealized gains and losses on the market value of these
investments are included as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Realized gains and losses on short-term investments
are recognized in Other income on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Short-Term Debt

AICF has access to a secured loan facility (the “AICF Loan Facility”) made available by the NSW Government, which can be used by AICF to fund the payment
of asbestos claims and certain operating and legal costs of AICF and Former James Hardie Companies (together, the “Obligors”).

Interest accrues daily on amounts outstanding, is calculated based on a 365-day year and is payable monthly. AICF may, at its discretion, elect to accrue
interest payable on amounts outstanding under the AICF Loan Facility on the date interest becomes due and payable.

Deferred Income Taxes

The Performing Subsidiary is able to claim a tax deduction for its contributions to AICF over a five-year period commencing in the year the contribution is
incurred. Consequently, a deferred tax asset has been recognized equivalent to the anticipated tax benefit over the life of the AFFA.

Adjustments are made to the deferred income tax asset as adjustments to the asbestos-related assets and liabilities are recorded.

Asbestos Adjustments

The asbestos adjustments reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income reflect a change in the actuarial estimate of the
asbestos liability, insurance receivables and AICF claims handling costs. Additionally, as the asbestos-related assets and liabilities are denominated in
Australian dollars, the reported values of these asbestos-related assets and liabilities in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets in US dollars are subject to
adjustment depending on the closing exchange rate between the two currencies at the balance sheet dates, the effect of which is also included in Asbestos
adjustments in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.
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Asbestos Impact on Statement of Cash Flows

Asbestos Adjustments

The asbestos adjustments, as recorded on the consolidated statements of operations (as described above) is presented as a reconciling item from net income
to cash flows from operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Operating assets and liabilities related to Asbestos

Movements in the operating assets related to asbestos (asbestos liability, insurance receivable, restricted cash and cash equivalents, restricted short-term
investments) recorded on the balance sheets are reflected in the cash flow from operating activities section of the consolidated statements of cash flows as a
change in operating assets and liabilities.

Payment to AICF

Payments made to AICF, by the Performing Subsidiary, under the terms of the AFFA are reflected in the consolidated statements of cash flows as a change in
operating assets and liabilities.

AICF Loan Facility

Any drawings, repayments, or payments of accrued interest under the AICF Loan Facility, made by AICF, are offset against movement in restricted cash in the
cash flow from operating activities section of the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, which provides guidance
requiring companies to recognize revenue depicting the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the payment to which a company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. ASU No. 2014-09 also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in judgments and assets recognized from
costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. ASU No. 2014-09 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after 15 December 2016, and interim periods
within those years, and early adoption is not permitted. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-14, which deferred the effective date of ASU No. 2014-
09 to annual reporting periods beginning after 15 December 2017. Also, early adoption is permitted for annual reporting periods beginning after 15 December
2016. Companies may use either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach to adopt ASU No. 2014-09. In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU No.
2016-10, which provides clarification on identifying performance obligations and the licensing implementation guidance, and has the same effective date and
transition requirements for ASU No. 2014-09. In May 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-11, which rescinds certain SEC observer comments in the revenue
recognition guidance. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its financial statements and has not yet selected a transition
approach to implement these new standards.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12, which provides explicit guidance on whether to treat a performance target that could be achieved after the
requisite service period as a performance condition that affects vesting, or as a nonvesting condition that affects the grant-date fair value of an award. The
amendments in ASU No. 2014-12 are effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after 15 December 2015. The Company will
adopt ASU 2014-12 prospectively, starting with the fiscal year beginning 1 April 2016. The Company does not expect this new standard to materially impact its
consolidated financial statements.
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In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-02, which provides explicit guidance about the accounting for consolidation of certain legal entities. The
amendments in ASU No. 2015-02 are effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after 15 December 2015, with early adoption
permitted. The Company will adopt ASU 2015-02 starting with the fiscal year beginning 1 April 2016. The Company does not expect this new standard to
materially impact its consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, which requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance
sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The amendments in ASU No. 2015-03 are effective for
fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after 15 December 2015, with early adoption permitted. The new guidance shall be applied on a
retrospective basis, wherein the balance sheet of each individual period presented should be adjusted to reflect the period-specific effects of applying the new
guidance. The Company will adopt ASU 2015-03 starting with the fiscal year beginning 1 April 2016. The Company does not expect this new standard to
materially impact its consolidated financial statements.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-11, which requires inventory to be measured at the lower of cost or realizable value. The amendments in ASU No.
2015-11 are effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after 15 December 2016, with early adoption permitted. The new
guidance shall be applied on a prospective basis. The Company will adopt ASU 2015-11 starting with the fiscal year beginning 1 April 2016. The Company does
not expect this new standard to materially impact its consolidated financial statements.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-17, which requires all deferred tax assets and liabilities to be classified as noncurrent on the balance sheet.
The amendments in ASU No. 2015-17 are effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after 15 December 2016, with early
adoption permitted. The new guidance may be applied either on a prospective or retrospective basis. The Company adopted ASU 2015-17 prospectively,
starting with the quarter beginning 1 October 2015. Prior periods were not retrospectively adjusted for this change in accounting principle.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, which provides guidance on the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. New
disclosures will include qualitative and quantitative requirements to provide additional information about the amounts recorded in the financial statements.
Lessor accounting will remain largely unchanged from current guidance, however ASU 2016-02 will provide improvements that are intended to align lessor
accounting with the lessee model and with updated revenue recognition guidance. The amendments in ASU No. 2016-02 are effective for fiscal years and
interim periods within those years, beginning after 15 December 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new
guidance on its financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, which provides guidance to simplify several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment
transactions including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification on the statement of cash flows. The
amendments in ASU No. 2016-09 are effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after 15 December 2016, with early adoption
permitted. An entity that elects early adoption must adopt all of the amendments in the same period. Amendments related to the timing of when excess tax
benefits are recognized, minimum statutory
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withholding requirements, forfeitures, and intrinsic value shall be applied on a modified retrospective basis, wherein the beginning retained earnings in the
period in which the guidance is adopted should include a cumulative-effect adjustment to reflect the effects of applying the new guidance. Amendments related
to the presentation of employee taxes paid on the statements of cash flows shall be applied retrospectively. Amendments requiring recognition of excess tax
benefits and tax deficiencies in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income and the practical expedient for estimating term shall be
applied prospectively. An entity may elect to apply the amendments related to the presentation of excess tax benefits on the statements of cash flows using
either a prospective transition method or a retrospective transition method. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its financial
statements and has not yet selected the transition approaches to implement this new standard.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts on deposit in banks and cash invested temporarily in various highly liquid financial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less when acquired.

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following components:

31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015
Cash at bank and on hand $ 94.5 $ 60.0
Short-term deposits 12.6 7.0
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 107.1 $ 67.0

4. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Included in restricted cash and cash equivalents is US$5.0 million related to an insurance policy at 31 March 2016 and 2015, which restricts the cash from use
for general corporate purposes.

5. Accounts and Other Receivables

Accounts and other receivables consist of the following components:

31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015
Trade receivables $ 169.6 $ 131.0
Other receivables and advances 4.8 3.1
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1.1) (0.8)
Total accounts and other receivables $ 173.3 $ 133.3

The collectability of accounts receivable, consisting mainly of trade receivables, is reviewed on an ongoing basis. An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided
for known and estimated bad debts by analyzing specific customer accounts and assessing the risk of uncollectability based on insolvency, disputes or other
collection issues.
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The following are changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts:

31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015

Balance at beginning of period 0.8 $ 1.0
Adjustment to provision 0.5 0.1)
Write-offs, net of recoveries 0.2) (0.1)

Balance at end of period 1.1 $ 0.8
6. Inventories
Inventories consist of the following components:

31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015
Finished goods $ 144.4 $ 150.6
Work-in-process 5.7 6.6
Raw materials and supplies 50.7 67.5
Provision for obsolete finished goods and raw materials (7.8) 6.7)

Total inventories $ 193.0 $ 218.0

As of 31 March 2016 and 2015, US$32.1 million and US$28.6 million, respectively, of the Company’s finished goods inventory balance was held at third-party
locations.

F-20



James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following components:

Machinery Construction

(Millions of US dollars) and in
Cost or valuation: Land Buildings Equipment Progress 1 Total
At 31 March 2014 $ 287 $ 2125 $ 961.1 $ 1154 1,317.7
Additions 2 41.5 30.2 72.7 133.5 277.9
Disposals 3 - (1.7) (6.6) - 8.3)
Exchange differences - (1.2) (52.6) - (53.8)
At 31 March 2015 $ 702§ 2398 $ 9746 $ 248.9 1,533.5
Additions 2 - 27.0 155.5 (103.9) 78.6
Disposals 4 - (0.7) (65.8) (1.5) (68.0)
Exchange differences (0.1) (0.1) (1.9) - 2.1
At 31 March 2016 $ 70.1 $ 266.0 $ 1,062.4 $ 143.5 1,542.0
Accumulated depreciation:
At 31 March 2014 $ - $ (80.9) $ (534.0) $ - (614.9)
Charge for the year - 9.3) (60.9) - (70.2)
Disposals 3 - 0.8 6.3 - 7.1
Exchange differences - 1.2 23.4 - 24.6
At 31 March 2015 $ - $ (882) $ (565.2) $ - (653.4)
Charge for the year - (10.7) (65.6) - (76.3)
Disposals 4 - 0.5 51.1 - 51.6
Exchange differences - 0.2 2.9 - 3.1
At 31 March 2016 $ = $ 982) $ (576.8) $ - (675.0)
Net book amount:
At 31 March 2015 $ 70.2 $ 151.6 $ 409.4 $ 248.9 880.1
At 31 March 2016 $ 70.1 $ 167.8 $ 485.6 $ 143.5 867.0

1 Construction in progress is presented net of assets transferred into service.

2 Additions include US$3.2 million and US$1.7 million of capitalized interest for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively.

3 This includes the accounting impact associated with the purchase of the Company’s previously leased facility at Rosehill.

4 The US$16.4 million net book value of disposals include US$10.9 million of usage of replacement parts and US$3.5 million of impairment charges

on individual assets. The remaining net book value of disposals of US$2.0 million is related to the disposal of assets no longer in use, and do not

represent a sale of assets.

F-21



James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Depreciation expense for the years ended 31 March 2016, 2015 and 2014 was US$76.3 million, US$70.2 million and US$61.3 million, respectively.

Included in property, plant and equipment are restricted assets of AICF with a net book value of US$1.2 million and US$1.3 million as of 31 March 2016 and
2015, respectively.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company performs an asset impairment review on a quarterly basis in connection with its assessment of production capabilities and the Company’s ability
to meet market demand.

During the years ended 31 March 2016, 2015 and 2014, the Company recorded US$3.5 million, US$3.7 million and nil of impairment charges related to
individual assets which is included in Cost of goods sold on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

8. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following components:

31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015
Trade creditors $ 77.2 $ 95.1
Accrued interest 6.3 5.8
Other creditors and accruals 43.7 48.7
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 127.2 $ 149.6

9. Long-Term Debt

At 31 March 2016, the Company had two forms of debt; an unsecured revolving credit facility and senior unsecured notes. The effective weighted average
interest rate on the Company’s total debt was 4.5% and 5.0% at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, respectively. The weighted average term of all debt,
including undrawn facilities, was 5.6 years and 4.4 years at 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility

In December 2015, James Hardie International Finance Limited and James Hardie Building Products Inc., each a wholly-owned subsidiary of JHI plc, entered
into a new US$500.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility”) with certain commercial banks and HSBC Bank USA,
National Association, as administrative agent. The Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility replaced prior bilateral loan facilities of US$590.0 million, which were
scheduled to mature in 2016, 2017 and 2019. The Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility expires in December 2020 and the size of the facility may be increased
by up to US$250.0 million.

Debt issuance costs in connection with the Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility were recorded in Prepaid expenses and other current assets and Other asset s
on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets, and will be amortized as interest expense using the effective interest method over the stated term of 5 years.
At 31 March 2016, the Company’s total debt issuance costs have an unamortized balance of US$3.9 million.
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The amount drawn under the Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility was US$190.0 million at 31 March 2016. The amount drawn under the bilateral credit facilities
was US$75.0 million at 31 March 2015.

The effective weighted average interest rate on the Company’s total outstanding Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility was 2.0% at 31 March 2016. The effective
weighted average interest rate on the outstanding bilateral facilities was 1.4% at 31 March 2015. The term of the Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility was 4.7
years at 31 March 2016.

Borrowings under the Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at per annum rates equal to, at the borrower’s option, either: (i) the London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus an applicable margin for LIBOR loans; or (ii) a base rate plus an applicable margin for base rate loans. The base rate is calculated
as the highest of (x) the rate that the administrative agent announces from time to time as its prime lending rate, as in effect from time to time, (y) 1/2 of 1% in
excess of the overnight Federal Funds Rate, and (z) LIBOR for an interest period of one month plus 1.00%. The applicable margin for both base rate and
LIBOR loans is calculated based on a pricing grid that in each case is linked to the Company’s consolidated net leverage ratio. For LIBOR Loans, the
applicable margin ranges from 1.25% to 2.00%, and for base rate loans it ranges from 0.25% to 1.00%. The Company also pays a commitment fee of between
0.20% and 0.35% on the actual daily amount of the unutilized revolving loans. The applicable commitment fee percentage is based on a pricing grid linked to
our consolidated net leverage ratio.

In the event that James Hardie International Finance Limited’s or James Hardie International Group Limited’s, as applicable, long-term senior unsecured non-
credit enhanced rating from each of Standard & Poor’s Financial Group, a division of The McGraw Hill Companies (“S&P”), and Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.
(“Moody’s”) is at least BBB- from S&P, and at least Baa3 from Moody'’s, at James Hardie International Finance Limited’s election, an alternate applicable rate
may be applied to new borrowing under the Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility as follows: (a) with respect to the commitment fee, 0.25% per annum; (b) with
respect to LIBOR Loans, 1.50% per annum rate; and (c) with respect to base rate loans, 0.50% per annum.

The Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility is guaranteed by each of James Hardie International Group Limited and James Hardie Technology Limited, each of
which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of JHI plc.

The Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility agreement contains certain covenants that, among other things, restrict James Hardie International Group Limited and
its restricted subsidiaries’ ability to incur indebtedness and grant liens other than certain types of permitted indebtedness and permitted liens, make certain
restricted payments, and undertake certain types of mergers or consolidations actions. In addition, the Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility contains financial
covenants that the Company: (i) must not exceed a maximum ratio of net debt to earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization, excluding all
asbestos-related liabilities, assets, income, gains, losses and charges other than AICF payments, all AICF selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”)
expenses, all Australian Securities and Investment Commission (“ASIC”)-related expenses, all recoveries and asset impairments, and all New Zealand product
liability expenses and (ii) must meet or exceed a minimum ratio of earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization to interest charges, excluding all
income, expense and other profit and loss statement impacts of asbestos income, gains, losses and charges, all AICF SG&A expenses, all ASIC-related
expenses, all recoveries and asset impairments, and all New Zealand product liability expenses. At 31 March 2016, the Company was in compliance with all
covenants contained in the Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility agreement.
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Senior Unsecured Notes

In February 2015, James Hardie International Finance Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of JHI plc, completed the sale of US$325.0 million aggregate principal
amount of senior unsecured notes due 15 February 2023. Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on 15 February and 15 August of each year, at a rate of
5.875%.

The senior notes were sold at an offering price of 99.213% of par value, an original issue discount of US$2.6 million. Debt issuance costs of US$8.3 million were
recorded in Other Current and Other Non-Current Assets on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets in conjunction with the offering. Both the discount and
the debt issuance costs are being amortized as interest expense using the effective interest method over the stated term of 8 years. The discount and debt
issuance costs have an unamortized balance of US$2.2 million and US$7.1 million at 31 March 2016, respectively.

The senior notes are guaranteed by James Hardie International Group Limited, James Hardie Technology Limited and James Hardie Building Products Inc.,
each of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of JHI plc.

The senior notes and guarantees are senior unsecured obligations of the issuer and guarantors and rank equal in right of payment with all of the issuer’s and
guarantors’ existing and future senior debt; rank senior in right of payment to all of the issuer's and guarantors’ existing and future subordinated debt; are
structurally subordinated to all liabilities of the Company’s existing and future subsidiaries that do not guarantee the senior notes; and are effectively
subordinated in right of payment to all of the issuer's and the guarantors’ secured indebtedness to the extent of the value of the assets securing such
indebtedness.

Before 15 February 2018, the issuer may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the senior notes with the net cash proceeds of certain equity
offerings at a redemption price of 105.875% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, up to but excluding, the redemption date. The
issuer may also redeem some or all of the senior notes before 15 February 2018 at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued and
unpaid interest, plus a make whole premium equal to the greater of: (i) 1.0% of the principal amount of such note; and (ii) the excess, if any, of (x) the present
value of the sum of the principal amount and premium that would be payable on such note on 15 February 2018 and all remaining interest payments to and
including 15 February 2018, discounted on a semi-annual basis from 15 February 2018 to the redemption date at a per annum interest rate equal to the
applicable treasury rate plus 50 basis points, over (y) the outstanding principal amount of such note.

On or after 15 February 2018, the issuer may redeem all or a part of the senior notes at any time or from time to time at the redemption prices (expressed as
percentages of the principal amount) set forth in the following table plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the applicable redemption date, if redeemed
during the 12-month period beginning 15 February, of the years indicated:

Year Percentage
2018 104.406%
2019 102.938%
2020 101.469%
2021 and thereafter 100.000%
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In addition, if a change of control triggering event occurs with respect to the senior notes, as defined in the indenture, the issuer may be required to offer to
repurchase the notes at a price equal to 101% of the principal amount of the senior notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but not including, the date
of the purchase.

The indenture governing the senior notes contains covenants that, among other things, limit the ability of the guarantors and their restricted subsidiaries to incur
liens on assets, make certain restricted payments, engage in certain sale and leaseback transactions and merge or consolidate with or into other companies.

These covenants are subject to certain exceptions and qualifications as described in the indenture. At 31 March 2016, the Company was in compliance with all
of its requirements under the indenture related to the senior notes.

Global Exchange Market Listing

On 19 March 2015, the senior notes were admitted to listing on the Global Exchange Market (“GEM”) which is operated by the Irish Stock Exchange. Interest
paid on the James Hardie International Finance Limited senior unsecured notes quoted on the GEM is not subject to Irish withholding tax.

10. Product Warranties
The Company offers various warranties on its products, including a 30-year limited warranty on certain of its fiber cement siding products in the United States. A
typical warranty program requires the Company to replace defective products within a specified time period from the date of sale. It is possible that future

warranty costs could differ from those estimates.

The following are the changes in the product warranty provision:

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015

Balance at beginning of period $ 35.2 $ 314
Accruals for product warranties 28.0 16.0
Settlements made in cash or in kind (17.9) (12.2)
Balance at end of period $ 45.3 $ 35.2
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11. Asbestos

The AFFA was approved by shareholders in February 2007 to provide long-term funding to AICF. For a discussion of the AFFA and the accounting policies
utilized by the Company related to the AFFA and AICF, see Note 2.

Asbestos Adjustments

The asbestos adjustments included in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income comprise the following:

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015 2014
Change in estimates:
Change in actuarial estimate - asbestos liability $ 24 $ (129.0) $ (340.3)
Change in actuarial estimate - insurance receivable 4.5 16.6 31.2
Change in estimate - AICF claims-handling costs 1.2 1.1 0.9
Subtotal - Change in estimates 8.1 (111.3) (308.2)
Recovery of Insurance Receivables - - 15.2
(Loss) gain on foreign currency exchange (2.6) 144.7 97.2
Total Asbestos Adjustments $ 55 $ 334 $ (195.8)

Actuarial Study; Claims Estimate

AICF commissioned an updated actuarial study of potential asbestos-related liabilities as of 31 March 2016. Based on KPMGA's assumptions, KPMGA arrived
at a range of possible total cash flows and calculated a central estimate, which is intended to reflect a probability-weighted expected outcome of those actuarially
estimated future cash flows.

The following table sets forth the central estimates, net of insurance recoveries, calculated by KPMGA as of 31 March 2016:

Year Ended 31 March 2016

(Billions of US and Australian dollars, respectively) US$ A$

Central Estimate - Discounted and Inflated 1.458 1.904
Central Estimate - Undiscounted but Inflated 1.858 2.427
Central Estimate - Undiscounted and Uninflated 1.098 1.434
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The asbestos liability has been revised to reflect the most recent actuarial estimate prepared by KPMGA as of 31 March 2016.

In estimating the potential financial exposure, KPMGA has made a number of assumptions, including, but not limited to, assumptions related to the total number
of claims that are reasonably estimated to be asserted through 2077, the typical cost of settlement (which is sensitive to, among other factors, the industry in
which a plaintiff claims exposure, the alleged disease type and the jurisdiction in which the action is brought), the legal costs incurred in the litigation of such
claims, the rate of receipt of claims, the settlement strategy in dealing with outstanding claims and the timing of settiements.

Due to inherent uncertainties in the legal and medical environment, the number and timing of future claim notifications and settlements, the recoverability of
claims against insurance contracts, and estimates of future trends in average claim awards, as well as the extent to which the above named entities will
contribute to the overall settlements, the actual liability could differ materially from that which is currently recorded.

The potential range of costs as estimated by KPMGA is affected by a number of variables such as nil settlement rates, peak year of claims, past history of
claims numbers, average settlement rates, past history of Australian asbestos-related medical injuries, current number of claims, average defense and plaintiff
legal costs, base wage inflation and superimposed inflation. The potential range of losses disclosed includes both asserted and unasserted claims.

A sensitivity analysis performed by KPMGA to determine how the actuarial estimates would change if certain assumptions (i.e., the rate of inflation and
superimposed inflation, the average costs of claims and legal fees, and the projected numbers of claims) were different from the assumptions used to determine
the central estimates. The sensitivity analysis performed in the actuarial report is specifically in regards to the discounted but inflated central estimate and the
undiscounted but inflated central estimate. This analysis shows that the discounted (but inflated) central estimates could be in a range of A$1.4 billion (US$1.0
billion) to A$3.4 billion (US$2.6 billion). The undiscounted (but inflated) estimates could be in a range of A$1.7 billion (US$1.3 billion) to A$4.7 billion (US$3.6
billion) as of 31 March 2016. The actual cost of the liabilities could be outside of that range depending on the results of actual experience relative to the
assumptions made.

During fiscal year 2016, mesothelioma claims reporting activity was marginally below actuarial expectations for the first year in the past four years. One of the
more significant assumptions is the estimated peak period of mesothelioma disease claims, which is currently assumed to occur in the period 2014/2015 to
2016/2017. Potential variation in this estimate has an impact much greater than the other assumptions used to derive the discounted central estimate. In
performing the sensitivity assessment of the estimated period of peak claims reporting for mesothelioma, if the peak claims reporting period was shifted two
years from the currently assumed 2016/2017 (i.e. assuming that claim reporting begins to reduce after 2018/2019), together with increased claims reporting
from 2026/2027 onwards, relative to current actuarial projections, the discounted central estimate could increase by approximately 30% on a discounted basis.

At 31 March 2016, KPMGA has formed the view that, due to the stable claims reporting in fiscal year 2016, no change to the assumption of mesothelioma
claims is required. However, changes to the valuation assumptions may be necessary in future periods should mesothelioma claims reporting escalate or
decline.
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Claims Data

The following table shows the activity related to the numbers of open claims, new claims and closed claims during each of the past five years and the average
settlement per settled claim and case closed:

For the Years Ended 31 March

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Number of open claims at beginning of period 494 466 462 592 564
Number of new claims 577 665 608 542 456
Number of closed claims 645 637 604 672 428
Number of open claims at end of period 426 494 466 462 592
Average settlement amount per settled claim AS 248,138 AS$ 254,209 A$ 253,185 A$ 231,313 A$ 218,610
Average settlement amount per case closed A$ 218,900 AS 217,495 A$ 212,944 AS 200,561 A$ 198,179
Average settlement amount per settled claim USS 182,763 US$ 222,619 US$ 236,268 US$ 238,615 US$ 228,361
Average settlement amount per case closed USS$ 161,229 US$ 190,468 USS 198,716 US$ 206,892 Us$ 207,019

Under the terms of the AFFA, the Company has rights of access to actuarial information produced for AICF by the actuary appointed by AICF, which is currently
KPMGA. The Company’s disclosures with respect to claims statistics are subject to it obtaining such information, however, the AFFA does not provide the
Company an express right to audit or otherwise require independent verification of such information or the methodologies to be adopted by the approved
actuary. As such, the Company relies on the accuracy and completeness of the information and analysis of the approved actuary when making disclosures with
respect to claims statistics.
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Asbestos-Related Assets and Liabilities

The Company has included on its consolidated balance sheets the asbestos-related assets and liabilities of AICF under the terms of the AFFA. These amounts
are detailed in the table below, and the net total of these asbestos-related assets and liabilities is referred to by the Company as the “Net AFFA Liability.”

31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015
Asbestos liability — current $ (125.9) $ (131.6)
Asbestos liability — non-current (1,176.3) (1,290.0)
Asbestos liability - Total (1,302.2) (1,421.6)
Insurance receivable — current 16.7 16.7
Insurance receivable — non-current 149.0 161.9
Insurance receivable — Total 165.7 178.6
Workers’ compensation asset — current 4.1 4.5
Workers’ compensation asset — non-current 46.8 455
Workers’ compensation liability — current “.1) 4.5)
Workers’ compensation liability — non-current (46.8) (45.5)
Workers’ compensation — Total - -
Loan facility (50.7) (13.6)
Other net liabilities (1.0) (1.5)
Restricted cash and cash equivalents and restricted short-term investment assets of AICF 17.0 22.0
Net AFFA liability $ (1,171.2) $ (1,236.1)
Deferred income taxes — current - 15.9
Deferred income taxes — non-current 384.9 389.3
Deferred income taxes — Total 384.9 405.2
Income tax payable 19.6 19.2
Net Unfunded AFFA liability, net of tax $ (766.7) $ (811.7)

F-29



James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The following is a detailed rollforward of the Net Unfunded AFFA liability, net of tax, for the year ended 31 March 2016:

il £US doll Asbestos Insurance Deferred Tax  Other Loan ~ Restricted Other Net Unfunded
(Millions o ollars) Liability Receivables Assets Facilities Cashand  Assetsand | AFFA Liability,
Investments  Liabilities1 net of tax
Opening Balance - 31 March 2015 $ (1,4216) $ 1786  § 405.2 $ (136 $ 220 $ 177 | $ (811.7)
Asbestos claims paid2 113.9 (113.9) -
Payment received in accordance with AFFA 62.8 62.8
AICF claims-handling costs incurred (paid) 1.2 (1.2) -
AICF operating costs paid - non claims-handling (1.7) (1.7)
Change in actuarial estimate 2.4 4.5 6.9
Change in claims handling cost estimate 12 1.2
Insurance recoveries (17.2) 17.2 -
Movement in Income Tax Payable (18.9) (0.6) (19.5)
Funds received from NSW under loan agreement (60.5) 60.5 -
Funds repaid to NSW under loan agreement 273 (27.3) -
Other movements (1.7) - (0.7) 0.3 2.1
Effect of foreign exchange 0.7 (0.2) 0.3 (3.9) (0.7) 1.2 (2.6)
Closing Balance - 31 March 2016 $ (1,302.2) § 1657  § 384.9 $ (50.7) § 170§ 186 [$ (766.7)

1 Other assets and liabilities include an offset to income tax payable of US$19.6 million and US$19.2 million at 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively.
The remaining balance includes the other assets and liabilities of AICF, with a net liability of US$1.0 million and US$1.5 million at 31 March 2016 and

2015, respectively.

2 Claims paid of US$113.9 million reflects A$154.7 million converted at the average exchange rate for the period based on the assumption that these

transactions occurred evenly throughout the period.
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AICF Funding

On 1 July 2015, the Company made a payment of A$81.1 million (US$62.8 million) to AICF, representing 35% of its free cash flow for fiscal year 2015. For the
1 July 2015 payment, free cash flow, as defined in the AFFA, was equivalent to the Company’s fiscal year 2015 operating cash flows of US$179.5 million.

On 1 July 2014, the Company made a payment of A$119.9 million (US$113.0 million) to AICF, representing 35% of its free cash flow for fiscal year 2014. For
the 1 July 2014 payment, free cash flow, as defined in the AFFA, was equivalent to the Company’s fiscal year 2014 operating cash flows of US$322.8 million.

On 2 April 2012, in accordance with arrangements agreed with the NSW Government and AICF, the Company contributed US$138.7 million (A$132.3 million) to
AICF, with a further contribution of US$45.4 million (A$45.2 million) on 2 July 2012, in accordance with the terms of the AFFA. Total contributions for the year
ended 31 March 2013 were US$184.1 million (A$177.5 million). In accordance with the terms of the AFFA, and the arrangements agreed with the NSW
Government and AICF for an early contribution based on the Company’s free cash flow for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2012, the Company did not make a
contribution to AICF in fiscal year 2014 in respect of the free cash flow for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2013.

AICF — NSW Government Secured Loan Facility

AICF may borrow, subject to certain conditions, up to an aggregate amount of A$320.0 million (US$245.0 million, based on the exchange rate at 31 March
2016). The AICF Loan Facility is available to be drawn for the payment of claims through 1 November 2030, at which point, all outstanding borrowings must be
repaid. Borrowings made under the AICF Loan Facility are classified as current, as AICF intends to repay the debt within one year.

At 31 March 2016 and 2015, AICF had an outstanding balance under the AICF Loan Facility of US$50.7 million and US$13.6 million, respectively.

To the extent the NSW Government sources funding for the AICF Loan Facility from the Commonwealth of Australia (the “Commonweath”), the interest rate on
the AICF Loan Facility is calculated by reference to the cost of NSW’s borrowings from the Commonwealth for that purpose, being calculated with reference to
the Commonwealth Treasury fixed coupon bond rate for a period determined as appropriate by the Commonwealth.

To the extent that NSW’s source of funding is not from the Commonwealth, the interest rate on drawings under the AICF Loan Facility is calculated as (i) during
the period to (but excluding) 1 May 2020, a yield percent per annum calculated at the time of the first drawdown of the AICF Loan Facility by reference to the
NSW Treasury Corporation’s 6% 1/05/2020 Benchmark Bonds, (ii) during the period after 1 May 2020, a yield percent per annum calculated by reference to
NSW Treasury Corporation bonds on issue at that time and maturing in 2030, or (iii) in any case, if the relevant bonds are not on issue, a yield percent per
annum in respect of such other source of funding for the AICF Loan Facility determined by the NSW Government in good faith to be used to replace those
bonds, including any guarantee fee payable to the Commonwealth in respect of the bonds (where the bonds are guaranteed by the Commonwealth) or other
source of funding.
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Under the AICF Loan Facility, the Former James Hardie Companies each guarantee the payment of amounts owed by AICF and AICF’s performance of its
obligations under the AICF Loan Facility. Each Obligor has granted the NSW Government a security interest in certain property including cash accounts,
proceeds from insurance claims, payments remitted by the Company to AICF and contractual rights under certain documents including the AFFA. Each Obligor
may not deal with the secured property until all amounts outstanding under the AICF Loan Facility are paid, except as permitted under the terms of the security
interest.

Under the terms of the AICF Loan Facility, each Obligor must, upon receipt of proceeds from insurance claims and payments remitted by the Company under
the AFFA, apply all of such proceeds in repayment of amounts owing under the AICF Loan Facility. NSW may, at its sole discretion, waive or postpone (in such

manner and for such period as it determines) the requirement for the Obligors to apply proceeds of insurance claims and payments remitted by the Company to
repay amounts owed under the AICF Loan Facility to ensure AICF has sufficient liquidity to meet its future cash flow needs.

The Obligors are subject to certain operating covenants under the AICF Loan Facility and the terms of the security interest, including, without limitation, (i)
positive covenants relating to providing corporate reporting documents, providing particular notifications and complying with the terms of the AFFA, and (ii)
negative covenants restricting them from voiding, cancelling, settling, or adversely affecting existing insurance policies, disposing of assets and granting security
to secure any other financial indebtedness, other than in accordance with the terms and conditions of the AICF Loan Facility.

Upon an event of default, NSW may cancel the commitment and declare all amounts outstanding as immediately due and payable. The events of default
include, without limitation, failure to pay or repay amounts due in accordance with the AICF Loan Facility, breach of covenants, misrepresentation, cross default
by an Obligor and an adverse judgment (other than a personal asbestos or Marlew claim) against an Obligor.

12. Derivative Instruments

The Company uses derivatives for risk management purposes and does not engage in speculative activity. A key risk management objective for the Company
is to mitigate interest rate risk associated with the Company’s external credit facilities and foreign currency risk primarily with respect to transactions
denominated in foreign currencies. The determination of whether the Company enters into a derivative transaction to achieve these risk management objectives
depends on a number of factors, including market related factors that impact the extent to which derivative instruments will achieve such risk management
objectives of the Company.

The Company may from time to time enter into interest rate swap contracts to protect against upward movements in US Dollar LIBOR and the associated
interest the Company pays on its external credit facilities. Interest rate swaps are recorded in the financial statements at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recorded on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income in Other income (expense).

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts and enters into hedging relationships from time to time in order to mitigate exposure to foreign currency
fluctuations. Changes in the fair value of forward contracts that are not designated as hedges are recorded in earnings within Other income (expense) at each
measurement date.
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Interest Rate Swaps

For interest rate swap contracts, the Company has agreed to pay fixed interest rates while receiving a floating interest rate. At 31 March 2016 and 2015, the
Company had interest rate swap contracts with a total notional principal of US$100.0 million and US$125.0 million, respectively.

At 31 March 2016, the weighted average fixed interest rate of these contracts is 2.0% and the weighted average remaining life is 3.4 years. These contracts
have a fair value of US$3.7 million and US$3.1 million at 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively, which is included in Accounts payable. For the years ended
31 March 2016, 2015 and 2014, the Company included in Other income (expense) an unrealized loss of US$0.6 million, an unrealized loss of US$2.6 million
and an unrealized gain of US$0.8 million, respectively, on interest rate swap contracts. Included in Interest expense is a realized loss on interest rate swap
contracts of US$1.9 million, US$1.3 million and US$0.6 million for the years ended 31 March 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts and enters into hedging relationships from time to time in order to mitigate exposure to foreign currency
fluctuations. When achievable, these instruments are designated as hedges and treated as a cash flow hedging arrangement for accounting purposes. In
September 2013, the Company entered into foreign currency forward contracts designated as hedges in order to mitigate exposure associated with the
anticipated purchases of production assets denominated in a foreign currency in a future period. During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company elected to
de-designate all of its foreign currency forward contracts that had been previously designated as cash flow hedges, and elected to discontinue hedge
accounting. The foreign currency forward contracts which were previously designated as hedges and de-designated during fiscal year 2015 had a gain classified
in other comprehensive income of US$0.3 million at 31 March 2016 and 2015. The gains are reclassified into earnings in correspondence to the depreciation
schedule of the underlying equipment purchases which were hedged.

Changes in the fair value of forward contracts that are not designated as hedges are recorded in earnings within  Other income (expense) at each measurement
date. As discussed above, these derivatives are typically entered into as economic hedges of changes in currency exchange rates. Gains or losses related to

the derivative are recorded in income, based on the Company’s accounting policy. In general, the earnings effects of the item that represent the economic risk

exposure are recorded in the same caption as the derivative. For the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, the forward contracts not designated as a cash flow

hedging arrangement had an unrealized gain of US$0.9 million and an unrealized loss of US$2.3 million, respectively.
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The notional amount of interest rate swap contracts and foreign currency forward contracts represents the basis upon which payments are calculated and are
reported on a net basis when a legal and enforceable right of set-off exists. The following table sets forth the total outstanding notional amount and the fair value
of the Company’s derivative instruments held at 31 March 2016 and 2015.

Fair Value as of

(Millions of US dollars) Notional Amount 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
31 March 2016 31 March 2015 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Derivatives not accounted for as hedges
Interest rate swap contracts 100.0 125.0 - 3.7 - 3.1
Foreign currency forward contracts 0.4 3.6 - - - 0.2
Total $ 100.4 $ 128.6 $ - $ 3.7 $ - $ 3.3

13. Fair Value Measurements

Assets and liabilities of the Company that are carried at fair value are classified in one of the following three categories:

Level 1 Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the measurement date;
Level 2 Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data for the asset or liability at the measurement date;
Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data used when there is minimal market activity for the asset or liability at the

measurement date.

Fair value measurements of assets and liabilities are assigned a level within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirety.

At 31 March 2016, the Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
trade payables, unsecured revolving credit facility, senior unsecured notes, interest rate swaps and foreign currency forward contracts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted cash and cash equivalents, Trade receivables, Trade payables, Dividend payables and Unsecured Revolving Credit
Facility - The carrying amounts for these items approximates their respective fair values due to the short term nature of these instruments.

Senior unsecured notes - The Company’s senior unsecured notes have an estimated fair value of US$329.1 million at 31 March 2016 based on the trading price
observed in the market at or near the balance sheet date and are categorized as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy.
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Interest rate swaps - The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is calculated based on the fixed rate, notional principal, settlement date and present value of
the future cash inflows and outflows based on the terms of the agreement and the future floating interest rates as determined by a future interest rate yield
curve. The model used to value the interest rate swap contracts is based upon well recognized financial principles, and interest rate yield curves can be
validated through readily observable data by external sources. Although readily observable data is used in the valuations, different valuation methodologies
could have an effect on the estimated fair value. Accordingly, the interest rate swap contracts are categorized as Level 2.

Foreign currency forward contracts - The Company’s foreign currency forward contracts are valued using models that maximize the use of market observable
inputs including interest rate curves and both forward and spot prices for currencies and are categorized as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy. At 31 March
2016, the fair value of the forward currency forward contracts was nil.

The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy, the Company’s financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a
recurring basis at 31 March 2016 according to the valuation techniques the Company used to determine their fair values.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
(Millions of US dollars) 31 March 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Interest rate swap contracts included in Accounts Payable $ 3.7 $ = $ 3.7 $ =
Total Liabilities $ 3.7 $ - $ 3.7 $ -

14. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved from time to time in various legal proceedings and administrative actions related to the normal conduct of its business, including
general liability claims, putative class action lawsuits and litigation concerning its products.

Although it is impossible to predict the outcome of any pending legal proceeding, management believes that such proceedings and actions should not,
individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows, except as
they relate to asbestos and New Zealand product liability claims as described in these consolidated financial statements.

New Zealand Weathertightness Claims

Since fiscal year 2002, the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries have been and continue to be joined in a number of weathertightness claims in New Zealand
that relate to residential buildings (single dwellings and apartment complexes) and a small number of non-residential buildings, primarily constructed from 1998
to 2004. The claims often involve multiple parties and allege that losses were incurred due to excessive moisture penetration of the buildings’ structures. The
claims typically include allegations of poor building design, inadequate certification of plans, inadequate construction review and compliance certification and
deficient work by sub-contractors.

The Company recognizes a liability for both asserted and unasserted New Zealand weathertightness claims in the period in which the loss becomes probable
and estimable. The amount of reasonably
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possible loss is dependent on a number of factors including, without limitation, the specific facts and circumstances unique to each claim brought against the
Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries, the existence of any co-defendants involved in defending the claim, the solvency of such co-defendants (including the
ability of such co-defendants to remain solvent until the related claim is ultimately resolved), the availability of claimant compensation under a government
compensation scheme, the amount of loss estimated to be allocable to the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries and the extent to which the co-defendants and
the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries have access to third-party recoveries to cover a portion of the costs incurred in defending and resolving such actions.
In addition to the above limitations, the total loss incurred is also dependent on the manner and extent to which statutory limitation periods will apply to any
received claims.

Historically, the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries have been joined to these claims as one of several co-defendants, including local government entities
responsible for enforcing building codes and practices, resulting in the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries becoming liable for only a portion of each claim. In
addition, the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries have had access to third-party recoveries to defray a portion of the costs incurred in resolving such claims.
However, in 2015 the Company’s New Zealand subsidiaries were named as the sole defendants in four claims on behalf of multiple defendants, each of which
allege that the subsidiaries’ products were inherently defective.

The Company has established a provision for asserted and unasserted New Zealand weathertightness claims within the current portion of Other liabilities, with
a corresponding estimated receivable for third-party recoveries being recognized within Accounts and other receivables. At 31 March 2016 and 2015, the
amount of the provision for New Zealand weathertightness claims, net of estimated third-party recoveries, was US$1.8 million and US$2.0 million, respectively.

The estimated loss for these matters, net of estimated third-party recoveries, incorporates assumptions that are subject to the foregoing uncertainties and are
principally derived from, but not exclusively based on, historical claims experience together with facts and circumstances unique to each claim. If the nature and
extent of the resolution of claims in future periods differ from the historical claims experience, then the actual amount of loss may be materially higher or lower
than estimated losses accrued at 31 March 2016.

Environmental and Legal

The operations of the Company, like those of other companies engaged in similar businesses, are subject to a number of laws and regulations on air and water
quality, waste handling and disposal. The Company’s policy is to accrue for environmental costs when it is determined that it is probable that an obligation
exists and the amount can be reasonably estimated.
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Operating Leases

As the lessee, the Company principally enters into property, building and equipment leases. The following are future minimum lease payments for non-
cancellable operating leases having a remaining term in excess of one year at 31 March 2016:

Years ending 31 March (Millions of US dollars):

2017 $ 180
2018 15.0
2019 11.8
2020 8.3
2021 33
Thereafter _ 42

Total $ 606

Rental expense amounted to US$16.9 million, US$16.7 million and US$18.0 million for the years ended 31 March 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Capital Commitments

Commitments for the acquisition of plant and equipment and other purchase obligations contracted for but not recognized as liabilities and generally payable
within one year, were nil at 31 March 2016.

15. Income Taxes

Income tax (expense) benefit includes income taxes currently payable and those deferred because of temporary differences between the financial statement
and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Income tax (expense) benefit consists of the following components:

Years Ended 31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015 2014

Income from operations
before income taxes:

Domestic $ 150.1 $ 145.5 $ 141.6
Foreign 180.4 177.1 (87.0)
Total income before income taxes $ 3305 $ 3226 $ 54.6
Income tax expense
Current:
Domestic $ (@126 $ (119 $ 8.9)
Foreign (59.2) (39.3) 9.7)
Current income tax expense (71.8) (51.2) (18.6)
Deferred:
Domestic (5.6) (3.7) (3.3)
Foreign (8.7) 23.6 66.8
Deferred income tax (expense) benefit (14.3) 19.9 63.5
Total income tax (expense) benefit $ @61 § (313 $ 44.9
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Income tax (expense) benefit computed at the statutory rates represents taxes on income applicable to all jurisdictions in which the Company conducts
business, calculated at the statutory income tax rate in each jurisdiction multiplied by the pre-tax income attributable to that jurisdiction.

Income tax (expense) benefit is reconciled to the tax at the statutory rates as follows:

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015 2014
Income tax (expense) benefit at statutory tax rates $ (T9.1) $ (7500 $ 6.2
US state income taxes, net of the federal benefit 3.6) 2.4) (1.8)
Asbestos adjustments (0.8) 48.3 30.2
Expenses not deductible (2.0) (3.4) 2.1)
Non-assessable items 1.9 0.5 0.6
US manufacturing deduction 4.1 2.6 1.2
Foreign taxes on domestic income (5.7) 0.7) -
Amortization of intangibles 2.9 2.8 1.7
Taxes on foreign income (7.4) 4.5) 2.9)
Tax assessment in dispute - - 10.7
Other items 3.6 0.5 1.1
Total income tax (expense) benefit $ @®.1) $ (@313 8§ 44.9
Effective tax rate 26.1% 9.7% (82.2%)
Deferred tax balances consist of the following components:
31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015
Deferred tax assets:
Asbestos liability $ 3849 $ 405.2
Other provisions and accruals 49.0 46.3
Net operating loss carryforwards 24.2 17.0
Foreign tax credit carryforwards 112.4 107.0
Total deferred tax assets 570.5 575.5
Valuation allowance (115.0) (113.0)
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance 455.5 462.5
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciable and amortizable assets (117.4) (112.3)
Other 94) 3.7)
Total deferred tax liabilities (126.8) (116.0)
Net deferred tax assets $ 328.7 $ 346.5

Deferred income taxes include European and Australian net operating loss carry-forwards. At 31 March 2016 the Company had European tax loss carry-
forwards of approximately US$6.8 million and Australian tax loss carry-forwards of approximately US$17.3 million, that are available to offset future taxable
income in the respective jurisdiction. The Company establishes a valuation allowance against a deferred tax asset if it is more likely than not that some portion

or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.
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The European tax loss carry-forwards relate to losses incurred in prior years during the establishment of the European business. At 31 March 2016, the
Company had a valuation allowance against a portion of the European tax loss carry-forwards in respect of which realization is not more likely than not. During
the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company reversed a valuation allowance of US$4.2 million for a portion of its European tax loss carry-forwards for which
realization is now more likely than not. At 31 March 2016, the Company had European tax loss carry-forwards of approximately US$6.8 million that are available
to offset future taxable income, of which US$4.2 million will never expire. Carry-forwards of US$2.6 million will expire in fiscal years 2017 through 2025.

The Australian tax loss carry-forwards primarily result from current and prior year tax deductions for contributions to AICF. James Hardie 117 Pty Limited, the
performing subsidiary under the AFFA, is able to claim a tax deduction for its contributions to AICF over a five-year period commencing in the year the
contribution is incurred. At 31 March 2016, the Company recognized a tax deduction of US$63.0 million (A$85.5 million) for the current year relating to total
contributions to AICF of US$411.4 million (A$427.4 million) incurred in tax years 2012 through 2016.

At 31 March 2016, the Company had foreign tax credit carry-forwards of US$112.4 million that are available to offset future taxes payable. At 31 March 2016,
the Company had a 100% valuation allowance against the foreign tax credit carry-forwards.

In determining the need for and the amount of a valuation allowance in respect of the Company’s asbestos related deferred tax asset, management reviewed
the relevant empirical evidence, including the current and past core earnings of the Australian business and forecast earnings of the Australian business
considering current trends. Although realization of the deferred tax asset will occur over the life of the AFFA, which extends beyond the forecast period for the
Australian business, Australia provides an unlimited carry-forward period for tax losses. Based upon managements’ review, the Company believes that it is
more likely than not that the Company will realize its asbestos related deferred tax asset and that no valuation allowance is necessary as of 31 March 2016. In
the future, based on review of the empirical evidence by management at that time, if management determines that realization of its asbestos related deferred tax
asset is not more likely than not, the Company may need to provide a valuation allowance to reduce the carrying value of the asbestos related deferred tax
asset to its realizable value.

Income taxes payable represents taxes currently payable which are computed at statutory income tax rates applicable to taxable income derived in each
jurisdiction in which the Company conducts business.

At 31 March 2016, the Company had income taxes currently payable of US$4.8 million, after taking into account total income tax and withholding tax paid, net of
refunds received, during the year ended 31 March 2016 of US$57.8 million. Income taxes were paid in Canada, Ireland, New Zealand, the Philippines and the
United States. Withholding taxes were paid or refunded in Australia, Canada, New Zealand, the Philippines and the United States.

At 31 March 2016, the Company intends to indefinitely reinvest the undistributed earnings of approximately US$200 million of a certain subsidiary owned by its
US subsidiary, and has not provided for taxes that would be payable upon remittance of those earnings. The amount of the potential deferred tax liability related
to these undistributed earnings is impracticable to determine at this time.

Due to the size and nature of its business, the Company is subject to ongoing reviews by taxing jurisdictions on various tax matters. The Company accrues for
tax contingencies based upon its best estimate of the taxes ultimately expected to be paid, which it updates over time as more information
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becomes available. Such amounts are included in taxes payable or other non-current liabilities, as appropriate. If the Company ultimately determines that
payment of these amounts is unnecessary, the Company reverses the liability and recognizes a tax benefit during the period in which the Company determines
that the liability is no longer necessary. The Company records additional tax expense in the period in which it determines that the recorded tax liability is less

than the ultimate assessment it expects.

The Company or its subsidiaries files income tax returns in various jurisdictions including Ireland, the United States, Australia, New Zealand, the Philippines and
The Netherlands. The Company is no longer subject to US federal examinations by US Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) for tax years prior to tax year 2013 and

Australian federal examinations by the Australian Taxation Office (“ATQO”) for tax years prior to tax year 2012.

Taxing authorities from various jurisdictions in which the Company operates are in the process of reviewing and auditing the Company’s respective jurisdictional
tax returns for various ranges of years. The Company accrues tax liabilities in connection with ongoing audits and reviews based on knowledge of all relevant
facts and circumstances, taking into account existing tax laws, its experience with previous audits and settlements, the status of current tax examinations and

how the tax authorities view certain issues.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits and interest and penalties are as follows:

(US$ millions) Unrecognized Interest and
tax benefits Penalties
Balance at 31 March 2013 $ 1.5 $ 0.1
Additions for tax positions of the current year 0.1 -
Additions for tax positions of prior year 0.1 -
Settlements paid during the current period (1.2) -
Other reductions for the tax positions of prior periods - (0.1)
Balance at 31 March 2014 $ 0.5 $ -
Additions for tax positions of the current year 42 0.1
Additions for tax positions of prior year 0.2 0.2
Balance at 31 March 2015 $ 4.9 $ 0.3
Additions for tax positions of the current year 0.2 -
Reductions in tax positions of prior year 4.1) (0.3)
Settlements paid during the current period (0.3) -
Balance at 31 March 2016 $ 0.7 $ =

At 31 March 2016, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits and the total amount of interest and penalties accrued by the Company related to unrecognized

tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the tax expense is US$0.7 million and nil, respectively.
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The Company recognizes penalties and interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. During the years ended 31 March 2016
and 2015, income of US$0.3 million and expense of $0.3 million, respectively, relating to interest and penalties was recognized within income tax expense
arising from movements in unrecognized tax benefits.

The liabilities associated with uncertain tax benefits are included in Other liabilities on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

A number of years may elapse before an uncertain tax position is audited or ultimately resolved. It is difficult to predict the ultimate outcome or the timing of
resolution for uncertain tax positions. It is reasonably possible that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits could significantly increase or decrease within the
next twelve months. These changes could result from the completion of ongoing examinations, the expiration of the statute of limitations, or other
circumstances. At this time, an estimate of the range of the reasonably possible change cannot be made.

Interest Payments from Australia Tax Office (‘“ATO")

During the quarter ended 31 March 2012, the ATO provided a refund of US$396.3 million to RCI Pty Ltd (“RCI”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
resulting from RCI's successful appeal of a disputed amended tax assessment related to RCI’'s income tax return for its 1999 fiscal year. The facts and
circumstances relating to RCI's successful appeal of the disputed amended tax assessment were fully disclosed in the notes to the Company’s consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2012.

On 4 November 2013, the ATO notified RCI that RCI was entitled to a final additional amount of interest of A$17.3 million (US$15.4 million) in respect of
amounts paid by RCI to the ATO while the appeal of the disputed amended tax assessment was in process. This final amount of interest was received from the
ATO on 7 January 2014. As the receipt of this interest from the ATO relates to RCI’s successful appeal of its disputed amended tax assessment, the additional

interest, net of tax, is included in Income tax benefit in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2014.

16. Stock-Based Compensation
Total stock-based compensation expense consists of the following:

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015 2014

Liability Awards Expense $ 48 $ 33§ 4.5
Equity Awards Expense 10.3 9.2 8.5
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 151 $ 125  § 13.0

As of 31 March 2016, the unrecorded future stock-based compensation expense related to outstanding equity awards was US$14.0 million after estimated
forfeitures and will be recognized over an estimated weighted average amortization period of 1.5 years.
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2001 Equity Incentive Plan

Under the Company’s 2001 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2001 Plan”), the Company can grant equity awards in the form of nonqualified stock options,
performance awards, restricted stock grants, stock appreciation rights, dividend equivalent rights, phantom stock or other stock-based benefits such as
restricted stock units. The 2001 Plan was first approved by the Company’s shareholders in 2001 and was reapproved to continue until September 2021 at the
2011 annual general meeting. The Company is authorized to issue 45,077,100 shares under the 2001 Plan.

Under the 2001 Plan, grants have been made at fair market value to management and other employees of the Company. Each option confers the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the capital of JHI plc. The options may be exercised as follows: 25% after the first year; 25% after the second year; and 50%
after the third year. All unexercised options expire 10 years from the date of issue or 90 days after the employee ceases to be employed by the Company.

As set out in the plan rules, the exercise prices and the number of shares available on exercise may be adjusted on the occurrence of certain events, including
new issues, share splits, rights issues and capital reconstructions.

Under the 2001 Plan, the Company granted 327,354 and 329,192 restricted stock units to its employees in the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015,
respectively. These restricted stock units may not be sold, transferred, assigned, pledged or otherwise encumbered so long as such units remain restricted. The
Company determines the conditions or restrictions of any restricted stock awards, which include requirements of continued employment. At 31 March 2016,
there were 701,810 restricted stock units outstanding under this plan.

Long-Term Incentive Plan 2006

At the 2006 Annual General Meeting, the Company’s shareholders approved the establishment of a Long-Term Incentive Plan 2006 (the “LTIP”) to provide
incentives to certain members of senior management (“Executives”). The shareholders also approved, in accordance with certain LTIP rules, the issue of
options in the Company to Executives of the Company. At the Company’s 2008 Annual General Meeting, the shareholders amended the LTIP to also allow
restricted stock units to be granted under the LTIP. The LTIP was re-approved by the Company’s shareholders with certain amendments at each of the 2008,
2012 and 2015 Annual General Meetings.

As of 31 March 2016, the Company had granted 10,163,138 restricted stock units under the LTIP. These restricted stock units may not be sold, transferred,
assigned, pledged or otherwise encumbered so long as such units remain restricted. The Company determines the conditions or restrictions of any restricted
stock awards, which may include requirements of continued employment, individual performance or the Company’s financial performance or other criteria.
Restricted stock units expire on vesting or as set out in the grant documents or LTIP rules. At 31 March 2016, there were 3,347,644 restricted stock units
outstanding under the LTIP.

In November 2006 and August 2007, 1,132,000 and 1,016,000 options were granted to Executives, respectively, under the LTIP. The vesting of these equity
awards are subject to ‘performance hurdles’ as outlined in the LTIP rules. Unexercised options expire 10 years from the date of issue unless an Executive
ceases employment with the Company. At 31 March 2016, there were no options outstanding under the LTIP.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s shares available for grant as options, restricted stock units or other equity instruments under the LTIP and 2001
Plan at 31 March 2016, 2015 and 2014:

Shares
Available for

___ Grant
Balance at 31 March 2014 23,947,127
Granted (1,192,225)
New Shares Authorized 2,000,000
Balance at 31 March 2015 24,754,902
Granted (1,410,560)
New Shares Authorized 5,000,000
Forfeitures Available for Re-grant i 74,466
Balance at 31 March 2016 28,418,808

Stock Options

There were no stock options granted during the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. The following table summarizes the Company’s stock options activity
during the noted period:

Outstanding Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Number Price (A$)
Balance at 31 March 2014 i 1,099,276 8.11
Exercised i (587,496) 8.06
Balance at 31 March 2015 i 511,780 8.17
Exercised (333,287) 8.54
Forfeited i (74,466) 7.85
Balance at 31 March 2016 . 104,027 7.22

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised was A$2.9 million and A$3.6 million for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Windfall tax benefits realized in the United States from stock options exercised and included in cash flows from financing activities in the consolidated
statements of cash flows were US$0.4 million, US$1.4 million and US$5.6 million for the years ended 31 March 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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The following table summarizes outstanding and exercisable options under both the 2001 Plan and the LTIP as of 31 March 2016:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Aggregate Average Aggregate
Exercise Remaining Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic
Price (A$) Number Life (in Years) Price (A$) Value (A$) Number Price (A$) Value (A$)
6.38 60,527 1.7 6.38 694,850 60,527 6.38 694,850
8.40 : 43,500 0.6 8.40 411,510 43,500 8.40 _ 411,510
Total ) 104,027 $ 1,106,360 104,027 _$

1,106,360

The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding table represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value based on stock options with an exercise price less than the
Company’s closing stock price of A$17.86 as of 31 March 2016, which would have been received by the option holders had those option holders exercised their
options as of that date.
Restricted Stock Units

The Company estimates the fair value of restricted stock units on the date of grant and recognizes this estimated fair value as compensation expense over the
periods in which the restricted stock vests.

The following table summarizes the Company’s restricted stock unit activity during the noted period:

Weighted
Average Fair
Restricted Value at Grant
Stock Units Date (AS$)
Non-vested at 31 March 2014 3,883,918 717
Granted 1,192,225 11.00
Vested (774,675) 6.63
Forfeited (293,467) 6.90
Non-vested at 31 March 2015 4,008,001 8.44
Granted 1,410,560 14.95
Vested (1,219,352) 7.28
Forfeited (149,755) 9.92
Non-vested at 31 March 2016 4,049,454 11.00

F-44



James Hardie Industries plc
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Restricted Stock Units — service vesting

On 9 December 2015, 327,354 restricted stock units (service vesting) were granted to employees under the 2001 Plan. On 9 December 2014, 329,192
restricted stock units (service vesting) were granted to employees under the 2001 Plan. The fair value of each restricted stock unit (service vesting) is equal to
the market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of the grant, adjusted for the fair value of estimated dividends as the restricted stock unit holder
is not entitled to dividends over the vesting period.

During fiscal year 2016, 228,481 restricted stock units (service vesting) that were previously granted as part of the 2001 Plan became fully vested and the
underlying common stock was issued. During fiscal year 2015, 222,885 restricted stock units (service vesting) that were previously granted as part of the 2001
Plan became fully vested and the underlying common stock was issued.

Restricted Stock Units— performance vesting

The Company granted 503,944 and 403,716 restricted stock units with a performance vesting condition under the LTIP to senior executives and managers of
the Company on 16 September 2015 and 16 September 2014, respectively. The vesting of the restricted stock units is deferred for three years and is subject to
a return on capital employed (“ROCE”) performance hurdle being met. The vesting of the restricted stock units is also subject to negative discretion by the
Board. The Board’s discretion will reflect the Board’s judgment of the quality of the returns balanced against management’s delivery of market share growth and
a scorecard of key qualitative and quantitative performance objectives. During fiscal year 2016, and after exercise of negative discretion by the Board, 331,146
restricted stock units (performance vesting) that were granted on 14 September 2012 as part of the fiscal year 2013 long-term incentive award became fully
vested and the underlying common stock was issued. The remaining 82,794 unvested restricted stock units from this grant were cancelled on 14 September
2015.

The Company granted 266,627 restricted stock units with a performance vesting condition under the LTIP to senior executives and managers of the Company
on 7 June 2012. During fiscal year 2015, 237,239 restricted stock units (performance vesting) that were granted on 7 June 2012 as part of the fiscal year 2012
long-term incentive award became fully vested and the underlying common stock was issued.

When the Board reviews the awards and determines whether any negative discretion should be applied at the vesting date, the award recipients may receive
all, some, or none of their awards. The Board may only exercise negative discretion and may not enhance the maximum award that was originally granted to the
award recipient.

The fair value of each restricted stock unit (performance vesting) is adjusted for changes in JHI plc’s common stock price at each balance sheet date until the
performance conditions are applied at the vesting date.
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Restricted Stock Units — market condition

Under the terms of the LTIP, the Company granted 579,262 and 459,317 restricted stock units (market condition) to senior executives and managers of the
Company on 16 September 2015 and 16 September 2014, respectively. The vesting of these restricted stock units is subject to a market condition as outlined in
the relevant notice of meeting.

The fair value of each of these restricted stock units (market condition) granted under the LTIP is estimated using a binomial lattice model that incorporates a
Monte Carlo simulation (the “Monte Carlo” method). The following table includes the assumptions used for restricted stock grants (market condition) valued
during the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively:

Vesting Condition: Market Market
FY16 FY15

Date of grant 16 Sep 2015 16 Sep 2014
Dividend yield (per annum) 3.8% 4.5%
Expected volatility 36.8% 37.4%
Risk free interest rate 1.5% 1.6%
Expected life in years 3.0 3.0
JHX stock price at grant date (A$) 17.76 12.42
Number of restricted stock units 579,262 459,317

During fiscal year 2016, 659,725 restricted stock units (market condition) that were previously granted became fully vested and the underlying common stock
was issued. During fiscal year 2015, 313,865 restricted stock units (market condition) that were previously granted became fully vested and the underlying
common stock was issued.

Scorecard LTI — cash settled units

Under the terms of the LTIP, the Company granted awards equivalent to 566,936 and 454,179 Scorecard LTI units on 16 September 2015 and 16 September
2014, respectively. These awards provide recipients a cash incentive based on an average 20 trading-day closing price of JHI plc’s common stock price and
each executive’s scorecard rating. The vesting of awards is measured on individual performance conditions based on certain performance measures.
Compensation expense recognized for awards are based on the fair market value of JHI plc’'s common stock on the date of grant and recorded as a liability. The
expense is recognized ratably over the vesting period and the liability is adjusted for subsequent changes in JHI plc’'s common stock price at each balance
sheet date.

On 14 September 2015, 288,552 of the 506,627 Scorecard LTI units that were previously granted on 14 September 2012 as part of the FY2013 long-term
incentive award became fully vested and the balance lapsed as a result of the Board’s exercise of negative discretion. The cash amount paid to award
recipients was based on an average 20 trading-day closing price of JHI plc’s common stock price.

On 6 June 2014, 445,141 of the 716,536 Scorecard LTI units that were previously granted on 7 June 2011 as part of the FY2012 long-term incentive award
became fully vested and the balance lapsed as a result of the Board’s exercise of negative discretion. The cash amount paid to award recipients was based on
an average 10 trading-day closing price of JHI plc’'s common stock price.
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17. Capital Management and Dividends

The following table summarizes the dividends declared or paid during the fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014:

us US$ Total
(Millions of US dollars) Cents/Security Amount A Date Record Date Payment Date
FY 2016 first half dividend 0.09 39.7 19 November 2015 23 December 2015 26 February 2016
FY 2015 special dividend 0.22 92.8 21 May 2015 11 June 2015 7 August 2015
FY 2015 second half dividend 0.27 114.0 21 May 2015 11 June 2015 7 August 2015
FY 2015 first half dividend 0.08 34.2 19 November 2014 23 December 2014 27 February 2015
FY 2014 special dividend 0.20 89.0 22 May 2014 12 June 2014 8 August 2014
FY 2014 second half dividend 0.32 142.3 22 May 2014 12 June 2014 8 August 2014
125 year anniversary special dividend 0.28 124.6 28 February 2014 21 March 2014 30 May 2014
FY 2014 first half dividend 0.08 355 14 November 2013 19 December 2013 28 March 2014
FY 2013 special dividend 0.24 106.1 23 May 2013 28 June 2013 26 July 2013
FY 2013 second half dividend 0.13 57.5 23 May 2013 28 June 2013 26 July 2013

During fiscal year 2016, the Company announced a share buyback program (the “fiscal 2016 program”) to acquire up to 5% of its issued capital in the twelve
months through May 2016. Under this program, the Company repurchased and cancelled 1,653,247 shares of its common stock during the second quarter of
fiscal year 2016. The aggregate cost of the shares repurchased and cancelled was A$30.0 million (US$22.3 million), at an average market price of A$18.14
(US$13.50).

Upon the expiration of the fiscal 2016 program, the Company announced a new share buyback program (the “fiscal 2017 program”) to acquire up to US$100.0
million of its issued capital in the twelve months through May 2017.

Subsequent to 31 March 2016, the Company announced an ordinary dividend of US29.0 cents per security, with a record date of 9 June 2016 and a payment
date of 5 August 2016.

18. Operating Segment Information and Concentrations of Risk

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company changed the name of its USA and Europe Fiber Cement segment to the North America and Europe Fiber
Cement segment to better reflect the segment’s geographic nature; however, the composition of the segment remained the same.

The Company has reported its operating segment information in the format that the operating segment information is available to and evaluated by the Chief
Operating Decision Maker, and includes North America and Europe Fiber Cement, Asia Pacific Fiber Cement and Research and Development. North America
and Europe Fiber Cement manufactures fiber cement interior linings, exterior siding products and related accessories in the United States; these products are
sold in the United States, Canada and Europe. Asia Pacific Fiber Cement includes all fiber cement manufactured in Australia, New Zealand and the Philippines
and sold in Australia, New Zealand, Asia, the Middle East (Israel, Saudi Arabia, Lebanon and the United Arab Emirates) and various Pacific Islands. Research
and Development represents the cost incurred by the research and development centers.
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General Corporate costs primarily consist of officer and employee compensation and related benefits, professional and legal fees, administrative costs and
rental expense, net of rental income, on the Company’s corporate offices.

Operating Segments

The following is the Company’s operating segment information:

Net Sales to Customers
Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015 2014

North America & Europe Fiber Cement $ 1,386.3 $ 1,276.5 $ 1,127.6

Asia Pacific Fiber Cement 341.9 380.4 366.2
Worldwide total $ 1,728.2 $ 1,656.9 $ 1,493.8

Income Before Income Taxes
Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015 2014
North America & Europe Fiber Cement! $ 340.6 $ 285.9 $ 237.0
Asia Pacific Fiber Cement!,6,7 80.9 94.1 81.1
Research and Development! (23.9) (26.0) (24.4)
Segments total 397.6 354.0 293.7
General Corporate2 (43.6) (19.0) (240.6)
Total operating income 354.0 335.0 53.1
Net interest expense3 (25.6) (7.5) (1.1)
Other income (expense) 2.1 (4.9) 2.6
Worldwide total $ 330.5 $ 322.6 $ 54.6

Total Identifiable Assets

31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015
North America & Europe Fiber Cement $ 944.0 $ 959.3
Asia Pacific Fiber Cement 297.4 279.8
Research and Development 13.6 20.7
Segments total 1,255.0 1,259.8
General Corporate 4.5 785.4 784.7
Worldwide total $ 2,040.4 $ 20445
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The following is the Company’s geographical information:

(Millions of US dollars)

Net Sales to Customers
Years Ended 31 March

North America
Australia

New Zealand
Other Countries

Worldwide total

2016 2015 2014
1,348.8 $ 1,238.5 $ 1,094.6
2284 267.7 259.2
61.4 64.7 63.0
89.6 86.0 77.0

1,728.2 $ 1,656.9 $ 1,493.8

Total Identifiable Assets

31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015
North America $ 925.1 $ 956.4
Australia 232.4 223.4
New Zealand 26.5 25.8
Other Countries 71.0 54.2

Segments total 1,255.0 1,259.8
General Corporate 4.5 785.4 784.7

Worldwide total

$ 2,040.4 $ 2,044.5

Research and development expenditures are expensed as incurred and are summarized by segment in the following table:

Years Ending 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015 2014
North America & Europe Fiber Cement $ 6.6 $ 61 $ 96
Asia Pacific Fiber Cement 1.2 1.4 1.3
Research and Developmenta 21.7 24.2 22.2

$ 295 $ 317 $§ 33.1

a The Research and Development segment also included selling, general and administrative expenses of
US$2.2 million, US$1.8 million and US$2.2 million in fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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2 The principal components of General Corporate costs are officer and employee compensation and related benefits, professional and legal fees,
administrative costs, and rental expense on the Company’s corporate offices. Also included in General Corporate costs are the following:

Years Ended 31 March

(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015 2014
Asbestos Adjustments $ 55 § 334 $(195.8)
AICF SG&A expenses 1.7 2.5 2.1
3 The Company does not report net interest expense for each operating segment as operating segments are not held directly accountable for interest

expense. All net interest expense is included in the General Corporate costs. Included in net interest expense is net AICF interest expense (income) of
US$0.3 million, US$(1.4) million and US$(2.9) million in fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

4 The Company does not report deferred tax assets and liabilities for each operating segment as operating segments are not held directly accountable
for deferred income taxes. All deferred income taxes are included in General Corporate costs.

5 Asbestos-related assets at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are US$619.8 million and US$657.3 million, respectively, and are included in the General
Corporate costs.

6 Included in the Asia Pacific Fiber Cement segment for the year ended 31 March 2016 was a gain on the sale of the Australian Pipes business of
US$1.7 million.

7 Included in the Asia Pacific Fiber Cement segment are adjustments to the provision for New Zealand weathertightness claims.

Years Ended 31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015 2014

New Zealand weathertightness claims (expense) / benefit $ @05 $ 43 $ (1.3

Concentrations of Risk

The distribution channels for the Company’s fiber cement products are concentrated. If the Company were to lose one or more of its major customers, there can
be no assurance that the Company will be able to find a replacement. Therefore, the loss of one or more customers could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

We have one customer who contributes greater than 10% of our net sales in each of the past three fiscal years.
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This customer’s accounts receivable represented 8.1% and 6.4% of the Company’s trade accounts receivable at 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively. The
following is gross sales generated by this customer, which is from the North America and Europe Fiber Cement segment:

Years Ended 31 March
(Millions of US dollars) 2016 2015 2014
% % %
Customer A 3 197.0 10.1%  $ 177.4 10.7%  $ 174.2 11.7%

Approximately 22%, 25% and 27% of the Company’s net sales in fiscal year 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, were derived from outside the United States.
Consequently, changes in the value of foreign currencies could significantly affect the consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the
Company’s non-US operations on translation into US dollars.

19. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there was US$0.3 million reclassifications out of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to pension and
post-retirement adjustments.

Pension and Foreign
Post-Retirement Cash Flow Currency
(Millions of US dollars) Benefit Hedges Translation Total
Balance at 31 March 2015 $ (0.3) $ 0.3 $ (0.4) $ (0.4)
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications - - 0.9 0.9
Pension and post-retirement benefit adjustments 0.3 - - 0.3
Net current-period other comprehensive income 0.3 - 0.9 1.2
Balance at 31 March 2016 $ = $ 0.3 $ 0.5 $ 0.8
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Appendix 3F
Final share buy-back notice

Rule 3.84
Appendix 3F
Final share buy-back notice
(except minimum holding buy-back)

Introduced 1/9/99. Origin: Appendices 7D and 7E. Amended 30/9/2001, 11/01/10

Information and documents given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

Name of entity ABN/ARSN

James Hardie Industries plc 097 829 895

We (the entity) give ASX the following information.

Description of buy-back

1 Type of buy-back

Details of all shares/units bought back

2 Number of shares/units bought back
3 Total consideration paid or payable for the shares/units
4 If buy-back is an on-market buy-back - highest and lowest price paid

On-market (announced 21 May 2015)

1,653,247

$29,996,744

highest price: $19.02
date: 16 July 2015

lowest price: $17.30
date: 1 July 2015

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

11/01/2010 Appendix 3F Page 1




Appendix 3F
Final share buy-back notice

Compliance statement

1. The company is in compliance with all Corporations Act requirements relevant to this buy-back.

or, for trusts only:

1. The trust is in compliance with all requirements of the Corporations Act as modified by Class Order 07/422, and of the trust’s constitution, relevant to this buy-back.
2. There is no information that the listing rules require to be disclosed that has not already been disclosed, or is not contained in, or attached to, this form.
Sign here: /s/Natasha Mercer Date: 19 May 2016

(Company secretary)

Print name: Natasha Mercer

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

Appendix 3F Page 2 11/01/2010
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Narreda Grimiey

General Manager

Asbeslos Injuries Compensation Fund Limited
Suite 1, Level 6, 56 Clarence Street

Sydney MSW 2000

Cc  Matthew Marsh, Chief Financial Officer, James Hardie Industries ple
Paul Miller, General Counsel, Department of Premier and Cabinet, The State of
MNew South Wales
The Board of Directors, Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund Limited

Dear Narreda

VALUATION OF ASBESTOS-RELATED DISEASE LIABILITIES OF FORMER JAMES
HARDIE ENTITIES (“THE LIABLE ENTITIES") TO BE MET BY THE AICF TRUST

We are pleased to provide you with cur Annual Actuarial Report relating to the asbestos-
related disease liabilities of the Liable Entities which are to be met by the AICF Trust.

The report is effective as at 31 March 2018 and has taken into account claims dala and
infermation provided to us by AICFL as at 31 March 2016.

If you have any queslions with respect to the contents of this repert, please do not
hesitate to contact us.

Yours sincerely

IEALS
A D, ¥
o«%_‘_ G{
Meil Donlevy MA FIA FIAA Jefferson Gibbs BSc FIA FIAA
Executive, KPMG Actuarial Pty Ltd Exgcutive, KPMG Actuarial Pty Lid

Fellow of the Institute of Acluaries (London)  Fellow of the instifute of Actuaries (London)
Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of
Australia Australia
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Executive Summary

Important Note: Basis of Report

This valuation report (“the Report’) has been prépared by KPMG Actuarial Pty Ltd (ABN
91 144 656 046) (KPMG A jal} in with an */ ded and

Final Funding Agreement in respect of the provision of long-term funding for
compensation arrangements for certain victims of Asbestos-related diseases in
Australia” (hereafter referred to as the “the A Final g Ag )
between James Hardie Industries NV (now known as James Hardie Industries ple)
(hereafter referred lo as “James Hardie), James Hardie 117 Pty Limited, the State of
New South Wales and Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund Limited ("AICFL") which
was signed on 21 November 2008.

This Report is intended to meet the requirements of the Amended Final Funding
A and values the elated disease liabilities of the Liable Entities to be
imet by the AICF Trust.

This Report is not intended to be used for any other purpose and may not be suitable,
and should not be usad, for any other purpese. Opinions and estimatas contained in the
Report constitute our judgment as of the date of the Report.

The information contained in this Repent is of a general nature and is not intended to
address the objectives, financial situation or needs of any particular individual or entity.
Itis g i ion purp only and does net constitute, nor should it be

et as, advice and is not intended to influence a person
in making a decision in refation to any financial product or an interest in a financial
product. No one should act on the informaticn contained in this Report without obtaining
apprepriate professional advice after a thorough examination of the accuracy and

pprop of the i ion contained in this Report having regard lo their
cobjectives, financial situation and needs.

In preparing the Report, KPMG Actuarial has relied on information supplied to it from
varigus sources and has that the i is and in all
material respects. KPMG ial has not indep verified the accuracy or
compleleness of the data and infermation used for this Report.
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Except insofar as liability under statute cannot be excluded, KPMG Actuarial, ite
execulives, directors, employees and agents will not be held liable for any loss or
damage of any kind arising as a consequence of any use of the Report or purported
reliance on the Report including any errors in, or omissions from, the valuation models,
The Report must be read in its enfirety. Individual sections of the Report, including the
Executive Summary, could be misleading if considered in isolation. In particular, the
cpinions expressed in the Report are based on a number of assumptions and
qualifications which are set outin the full Repan.
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Introduction
The Amended Final Funding A requires the letion of an Annual Actuarial
Report evaluating the potential asbest lated disease liabiliies of the Liable Entities
to be met by the AICF Trust. KFMG Actuarial has been retained by AICFL to provide this
Annual Actuarial Report as required under the Final Funding Agreement and

this is detailed in our Engagement Letler dated 26 November 2015.
The Liable Entities are defined as being the following entities:
» Amaca Pty Ltd (formerly James Hardie & Coy);

+« Amaba Pty Ltd (formerly Jsekarb, James Hardie Brakes and Beftter
Brakes); and

+  ABMED Pty Lid (formerly James Hardie Industries Lid).

In addition, th liability for Baryulgil claims is deemed to be a liability of Amaca by virtue
of the James Hardie (Civil Liability) Act 2005 (NSW). Under Part 4 of that Act, Amaca is
liable for the "Marlew Asbestos Claims™ or "Marlew Contribution Claims” as defined in
that Act.

Qur valuation is on a central estimate basis and is intended to be effective as at
31 March 2016. It has been based on claims data and information as at 31 March 2016
provided to us by AICFL.

Qverview of Recent Claims Exy and rison with previ luati
projections

In this section we compare the actual experience in 201516 (referred to in the following
tables as ‘FY18 Actual’) with the projecticns for 201516 that were contained within our
previous valuation report 2t 31 Mareh 2015, We will refer to these projections for 201516
as ‘FY16 Expected” in the tables that follow.

Claim numbers

There have been 397 mesothelioma claims reported in 20150186, a 4% decrease
to the 412 i claims reported in 2014715,

For heli claims (excluding workers ion claims), there have

been 151 claims reperted in 2015/16 compared to 219 claims reported in 2014/15.

The following table shows the comparison of actual experience with that which had been
forecast at the previous valuation.
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Table E.1. Comparison of claim numbers

FY16 Ratio of
FY 16 Actual Actualto  FY15 Actual
Expected
Expected
%)
93 144 B5% 144
Lung Cancer. BT 2 7% 25
ARPD & Other 29 42 B9% 39
Wharf 11 12 92% 11
Workers 29 33 88%
Total 577 658 B8% 665

Average Claim Awards

Average claims awards in 2015/16 have been lower than expectations across all disease
types, with the exception of Wharf claims.

There have been three large mesothelioma claim settlements (being claims in excess of
EH1m in 2006/07 money terms) in 2015/16. This is significantly lower than our
expectations. Total claims ewpendilure on large claims has been 55% below
expectations, reflecting the low number of large claims reperted and settled in 2015/16.

The following table shows the comparison of actual expenence with that which had been
forecast at the previous valuation,

Table E.2. Comparison of average claim size of non-nil claims

FY16 Actual I :.-:Iialr.:l FY15 Actual
Y16 Actual 7 cualto  F) 1.
Expected Expacted

(%) i$)
Mesothelioma 294,048 333,900 88% 313,480
i 99,691 121,900 82% 103.112
Lung Cancer 115,507 143,100 % 139,633
ARPD & Other 98,684 100,700 28% 73863
‘Whart 134,774 106,000 127% 83,225
Waorkers o 148,400 0% 72,800
Mesothelioma Large
Claims (setlied)
Mumber 3 10 30% 7
| Averageclaimsge | 3,170,000 | 2,130,000 145%. 1,940,571
Large claim
| expendiure 9.510.000 | 21,300,000 45% 13,584,000

Iate: FY 15 Actual values are expressed in 2014/15 maney terms. FY16 Actual values and FY16 Expected
wvalues are expressed in 201516 money terms.

CNG TG, Astier, oo e,
o -
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Cashflow expenditure: gross and net

Gross cashflow expendilure, at $154.7m. was 12% below expectations.
Met cashflow expenditure, at $129.0m, was 17% below expectations.
Table E.3. Comparison of cashflow

FY16 Expected

Ratio of Actual
to E

(sM)
|Gross Cashiow 1547 1763 85% 1543
(Insurance unﬂOﬂmRamﬂes; (237 (21.2) 1MZ% 7s
[ mncn scoveron fomiH! @0 00 o 153
flias Castitow Dafore i 1310 1851 B4 1384
m’"" HH{. 1290 1551 83% 1211

Gross cashflow was lower than expectations primarily due to the lower expendilure on
large mesothelioma claims, which were $12 5m favourable to expectations (including
legal costs). The outcome was also affected by the lower average claim settlement sizes
experienced in 2015/16.

Liability Assessment

At 31 March 2016, our proj d central esti of the liabilities of the Liable Entities
{the Discounted Central Eslimate) to be met by the AICF Trust is $1,904.1m (March
2015: 52,142.8m). We have not allowed for the future Operating Expenses of the AICF
Trust or the Liable Entities in the liability assessment.

Table E.4. Compari of central estimate of liabilities

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Sm Sm

| Grass.of Netof
| Netof

recoveries recoveries recoveries recove
| Total uninfiated and
:MM‘.MM oy 18458 20 | 14339 1,565.9
(Infiation sliowance 10884 733 G930 11770
| Tetal inflatod and
und ntod cagh-f 27122 285.3 24269 27429
| Discounting sllewancd (575.0) 52.2) 5228 (800.1}
|Net present value labilities 21372 2331 1,904, 21428
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Cemparison with previous valuation

In the absence of any change to the claim projection assumptions from our
31 March 2015 valuation, other than allowing for the changes in the discount rate, we
would have proj a Di Central Esli ligkility of $2,0308m as at
31 March 2018, i.e. a reduction of $112.2m from our 31 March 2015 valuation resuit.

This decrease of $112.2m is due to:

+ A reduction of $114.0m, being the net impact of expected claims
payments (which reduce the liability) and the “urwind of discount” (which
increases the liability and reflects the fact that cashflows are now one year
nearer and therefore are discounted by one year lass).

+ Anincrease of $1.8m resulting from changes o the yield curve between
31 March 2015 and 31 March 2018,

Qur liability assessment at 31 March 2016 of $1,904.1m represents a decrease of
$126.5m, which arises from changes to the actuarial assumplions.

The decrease of $126.5m is principally a consequence of:

+ Lower average claim sizes and defence legal cost assumplions across
most disease types;

+ A reduction in the assumed number of large mesothelioma claims;

+ A reduction in the proj d number of i claims;

= Lower claims inflation assumptions in the shert-term {through to, and
including, 2019/20); and

« Favourable experience for claims that were pending at 31 March 2015,
offset by

« An allowance for the potential costs of Sullivan vs Gordon awards due to
the amendments to the Wrongs Act in the State of Victoria.

The following chart shows an analysis of the change in our liability assessments from
31 March 2015 to 31 March 2016 on a discounted basis.
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Figure E.1. Analysis of thange in central estimate liability (discounted basis)

o= BE .

E LN

%:::- BE" =
.
AR ER

Noto: Graan bars signal thet this factor has given rise fo an incroasa in the lability whils! light blue bars
SgNaF that IS FACIGr NAS GTVen 56 (0 & reduCtion i o FaLity.

The undiscounted liability as of 31 March 2016 has decreased from $2,588m (based on
the 31 March 2015 valuation) to $2,427m. This represents a reduction of $181m.

il
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Amended Final Funding Agreement calculations

The Amended Final Funding Agreement sets out the basis on which payments will be
made to the AICF Trust.

Additionally, there are a number of other figures specified within the Amended Final
Funding Agreement that we are required 10 calculate, These are:

+ Discounted Central Estimate;
+ Term Central Estimate; and

» Period Acluarial Estimate.

Table E.5. A d Final ding Ag
Di Central Esti {netofl |air
and Other R ies) 19044

Period Actuarial Esti (net of clai ies, gross

of and Cther ) comprising g22.2
Discounted value of cashffow in 201617 164.1
Discounted value of cashffow in 201718 180.2
Discounted valua of cashfiow in 201848 1779

Term Central Estmate (net of cross-claim recovernes, 1.8967

! and Other Recoveries) e

The actual funding amount due at a particular date will depend upon a number of factors,
including:

+ the net asset position of the AICF Trust at that time;

+ the free cash flow amount of the James Hardie Group in the preceding
financial year, and

= the Period Actuarial Estimate in the latest Annual Actuarial Report.
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Uncertainty
Esti of asb lated disease liabilities are subject to considerable uncertainty,

significantly more than personal injury liabilities in relation to other causes, such as CTP
of Workers Compensation claims.

It should therefore be expected that the actuzl emergence of the liabilities will vary from

any estimate, As indicated in Figure E.3, depending on the actual out-tumn of experience
relative to that ly forecast, the variation could ially be sub ial,

Thus, no assurance can be given that the actual liabilities of the Liable Enfities to be met
By the AICF Trust will not ulti exceed the esti ined in this Report. Any
such variation may be significant.

We h:

testing to identify the impact of different assumptions upon
the size of the liabilities. The different i are d d at Section
11.2 of this report.

‘We have not included a sensitivity test for the impact of changes in discount rates
although, as noted in this Report, changes in discount rates can introduce significant
wvolatility to the Di d Central Esti result reported at each y d.

‘We note that these sensitivity test ranges are nat intended to corespond to a specified
probability of sufficiency, nor are they intended to indicate an upper bound or a lower
bound of all possible outcomes.
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Figure E.2. Sensitivity lesting results — Impact around the Discounted Central
Estimate (in $m)

A ap v sy

The single most sensitive assumption shown in the chart is the timing of the peak period
of claims reperting against the Liable Entities. Shifting the assumed peried of peak claims
reporting by a further 2 years for mesothelioma (i.e. assuming that claim reperting begins
to reduce after 2018/19) together with increased claims reporting from 202627 onwards
reiative 1o current actuarial projections, could add approximately $560m (30%) on a
di d basis to our valuation {as shown in the above chart by the scenario labelled
“mesothelioma incidence pattern (2)7).

Table E.6. Summary results of sensitivity analysis ($m)

iscounted  Discounted

Central estimale 24269 1,904.1
Low Scenario 1,659.0 1,350.8
High Scenario 4,708.3 3,432.6

‘Whilst the table above indicates a range arcund the discounted central estimate of
liabilities of -$553m to +$1,528m, the actual cost of liabilities could fall outside that range
on the actual
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Data, Reliances and Limitations
‘We have been provided with the following data by AICFL:
= Claims dataset at 31 March 2016 with individual claims listings;

+ Accounting transactions dataset at 31 March 2016 (which includes
individual claims payment details); and

« Detailed insurance bordereaux information (being a listing of claims filed
wilh the insurers of the Liable Enlities) produced by Randall & Quilter
Investment Holdings as at 31 March 2016.

While we have tested the consistency of the various data sets provided, we have not
ctherwise verified the data nor have we undertaken any auditing of the data at source.
We have relied on the data provided as being lete and in all material
respects. Consequently, should there be material erors or incompleteness in the data,
our assessment could be affected materially.

Executive Summary Not Report

Flease note that this executive summary is intended as a brief overview of our Report.
To properly understand our analysis and the basis of our liability assessment requires
examinatien of our Report in full.
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1  Scope and Purpose
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1.1.1

1.1.2

1123

Introduction

The Final Funding Ags it requires the completion of an Annual
Actuarial Report ing the i lated disease liabilities of
the Liable Entities to be met by the AICF Trust

Liable Entities

The Liable Entities are defined as being the following entities:
» Amaca Pty Ltd (formerly James Hardie & Coy);

«  Amaba Ply Ltd (formerly Jsekarb, James Hardie Brakes and Better
Brakes); and

+  ABNGO Pty Ltd (formerly James Hardie Industries Lid).

I addition, the liability for Baryulgil claims is deemed to be a liability of Amaca
by virtue of the James Hardie (Civil Liability) Act 2005 (NSW). Under Part 4 of
that Act, Amaca is liable for "Marlew Asbestes Claims™ of “Marlew Centribution
Claims” as defined in that Act.

Personal asbestos claims

Under the Amended Final Funding Agreement. the liabilities to be met by the
AICF Trust relate to related disease liabiliies of the Liable
Entities.

Such claims must relate to exposure which took place in Australia and which
have been brought in a Court in Australia.

The precise scope of the liabilities is documented in Section 1.2 and in
Appendix F of this Report,

Purpose of report

KPMG Actuarial has been retained by AICFL to provide an Annual Actuarial
Report as required under the Amended Final Funding Agreement and this is
detailed in our Engagement Letter dated 26 November 2015,

The prigr written consent of KPMG Actuarial is required for any other use of this
Report or the information contained in it.
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1.2

Qur valuation is effective as at 31 March 2016 and has been based on claims
data and information as at 31 March 2016 provided 10 us by AICFL.

Scope of report

We have bean to provide an i as at 31 March
2016 of the asbestos-related disease liabilities of the Liable Entities to be met
by the AICF Trust, consistent with the terms of the Amended Final Funding
Agreement,

The assessment is on a central estmate basis and is based on the claims
experience as at 31 March 2018.

A "central estimate” liability is an esti of the value of
the range of potential future liability cutcomes. In other words, if all the possible
values of the liabilities are exp d as a | distribution, the central
estimate is an estimate of the mean of that distribution.

Itis of note that our ligbility assessment

= Relates to the Liable Entities and Marlew (in relation to Marlew Claims
arising from asbestos mining activilies al Baryulgil)

* s intended lo cover:

- The amount of setilements, judgments or awards for all Personal
Asbestos Claims.

- Claims Legal Costs incurred by the AICF Trust in connection with the
settiement of Personal Asbestos Claims.

+ |5 notintended to cover:

- Personal injury or death claims arising from exposure to asbestos
which tock place outside Australia.

- Personal injury or death claims, arising from exposure to Asbestos,
which are brought in Courts cutside Australia,

- Claims for economic loss, other than any econcmic loss forming part
of an award for damages for personal injury andfor death.

- Claims for loss of property, including these relating to land

remediation,
- The costs of asbestos or asbestos product removal relating to
of pi of used by or on behalf
of the Liable Entities.

+ lIncludes an allowance for:
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- Compensation 1o the NSW Dust Diseases Board or a Workers
Compensation Scheme by way of a claim by such parties for
contribution or reimbursement from the Liable Entities, but only to the
extent that the cost of such claims is within the limits of funding for
such claims as ouliined within the Amended Final Funding
Agreement

- Workers Compensation claims, being claims from former employees
of the Liable Entities, but only to the extent that such liabilities are not
met by a Workers Compensalion Scheme or Policy {see section
1.2.1).

+ Assumes that the preduct and public liability insurance policies of the
Liable Entities will continue 1o respond to claims as and when thay fall
due, We have not made any allowance for the impact of any disputation

ing | R: , nor for any legal costs that may be
incurred in resolving such disputes.

«  Makes no allowance for:

- potential Insurance Recoveries that could be made on product and
public liability insurance policies placed from 1886 onwards which
were placed on a “claims made” basis.

the future Operating Expenses of the Liable Entities or the AICF
Trust. ll for future Oy ing E should be
considered by the management of AICFL.

the inherent uncerainty of the liability assessment. That is, no
addilienal provision (or risk margin) has been included in excess of a
central estimate,

Readers of this Report may refer to cur previous reports which are available
at www.ir.jameshardie.com.au and waww.aicl.org.au.

Workers Compensation

Workers Compensation claims are claims made by former employees of the
Liable Entities, Such pas, currentand future reported claims were insured with,
amongst others, Alianz Australia Limited, QBE and the various State-based
Workers Compensation Schemes.
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Under the Amended Final Funding Agreement, the pant of a future Workers
Compensation claim that is met by a Workers Compensation Scheme or Policy
of the Liable Entities is outside of the AICF Trust. The AICF Trust is, howaver,
to provide for any parl of a claim not covered by a Workers Compensation
Scheme or Policy (2.9. as a result of the existence of imits of indemnity and
policy deductibles on those policies of insurance).

On this basis our liability assessment in relation to Workers Compensation
claims and which relates to the AICF Trust, includes only the amount bemne by
the Liable Entities in excess of the antici ies due from a Worker
Compensation Scheme or Policy.

In making our assessment we have assumed that the Workers Compensation
insurance programme will continue to respond to claims by former employees
of the Liable Entities as and when they fall due. To the extent that they were
not to respond owing to (say) insurer insclvency, Insurer Guarantee Funds may
be available lo meet s bligati

Dust Disease Board and Other Reimbursements

There exists a right under Section BE (Reimbursement Provisions) of the Dust
Diseases Act 1842 for the NSW Dust Diseases Board ("DDB’) to recover
certain costs from common law ing the of the
claimant.

This e of cost is implicitly i within our liability assessment as
the claims awards made in recent periods and in recent setllements contain

for DOB rei it where i f currently
reporied open claims have an allowance within their case estimates for the
costs of DDB where relevant and

The Amended Final Funding Agreement indicates that the AICF Trust is
intended to meet Personal Asbestos Claims and that claims by the ODB or a
Warkers C ion Scheme for rei will only be met up to a
certain specified limit (2ggregated across the DDB and Workers Compensation
Schemes), being:

+ In the first financial year (2006/07) a limit of $750,000 applied;

« Inrespectof each financial year thereafter, that limit is indexed annually
in ling with the Consumer Price Index. At 31 March 2016, the annual
limit is $954,936;

o There is an overall unindexed aggregate ¢ap of $30m;
+ AL31 March 2016, AICF has paid out 57,603,015 10 the DDB.
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1.2.3

1.24

1.2.5

The cashfiow and liability figures contained within this Report have already
that of any rei that will not be met by the
AICF Trust owing to the application of these limits and caps.

Baryulgil {"Marlew Claims')

“Marlew Asbestos Claims” and “Marlew Contribution Claims” are deemed to be
ligkilities of Amaca, These claims specifically include:

« Claims made against Amaca Pty Ltd or ABNBO resulting from their past
ownership of the mine: and, in the case of Amaca. includes claims made
in relation to the joint venture (Ast Mines Pty Lid) i with
‘Wunderlich in 1244 to begin mining at Baryulgil.

+ Claims made against the subsequent owner of the mine (following its
sale by James Hardie Industries to Woodsreef in 1976), being Marlew
Mining Pty Ltd ("Marlew’) which is in liuidation, are to be met by the
AICF Trust except where such claims are Excluded Marlew Claims,
which are recoverable by the Claimant from other sources.

These claims are discussed further in Section 5.7,
Risk Margins

are required to hold, and many non-
insurance companies elect to hold, insurance and selfinsurance claims
provisions at a level above the central estimate basis to reflect the uncertainty
attaching 1o the liability assessment and to include an allowance in respect of
that uncertainty.

A risk margin is an additional amount held, above the central estimate, so as to
increase the likelihood of adequacy of the provisions to meet the ultimate cost
of settlement of those liabilities.

We nole that the Amended Final Funding Agreement envisages the ongoing
financing of the AICF Trust is to be based on a “central estimate” approach and
that the Annual Actuarial Report should provide a Discounted Central Estimate
valuation.

Accordingly, we have made no allowance for any risk margins within this
Report.

Discounting

We have d ined a Di d Central Est in this Report by

discounting {to 31 March 2016) the projected future cashflows using yields on
Commonwealth Government Bonds.
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c . the Di Central Esti at 31 March 20168 would

1.3

1.3.1

normally represent an ameunt of money which, if fully provided in advance {i.e.
as of 31 March 2016} and invesled in risk-free assets {such as Commonwealth
Government Bonds) of term and currency appropriate to the liabilities, would
g the Y inceme such that (together with the ¢apital
value of those assets) it would be expected to be sufficient to pay for the
liabilities as they fall due,

To the extent that the actual investments are:

« of different terms; andior

« in different currencies; and/or

« provide different expected rates of retumn
investment profits or losses would emerge,
One of the uncerainties in our valuation is the fact that fixed interest
Commonwealth Government Bonds do nat exist at most of the durations of our
cashfiow projection
This means we need to take a long-term view on bond yields that is not
measured by market-observable rates of return.
We continue to note that the actual funding mechanism under the Amended
Final Funding Agreement only provides for up to three years' worth of projected
Claims and Claims Legal Costs expenditure and one year's worth of Operating
Expenses at any one time.

Areas of potential exposure

As identified in Section 1.2, there are other potential scurces of claims exposure
beyond those directly considered within this Report. However, in a number of
cases they are unquantifiable even if they have the potential to generate claims.
This is especially the case for those sources of fulure claim where there has
been no evidence of claims o dale.

General areas of potential exposure

Areas of potential changes in claims exposure we have not explicitly allowed
for in our valuation include, but are not limited to:

+ Future signficant indivi and p ting judicial
decisions;
»  Signifi medical
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+ Unimpaired claims, i.e. claims for fear, stress, pure nervous shock of
psychological iliness. In this regard, we note the 201011 decisions by
the Supreme Court (in relation to two cases: Tamaresis v Amaca and
Gelea v Amaca) which indicated that the AICF Trust was not required
to meet the cost of nervous shock claims brought by individuals who
have not been exposed to asbeslos;

s« A change in the basis of for pleural
plaques for which no associated physical impairment is exhitited;

« A proliferation (compared to past and current lavels of activity) of “third-
wave” claims, i.e. claims arising as a result of indirect exposure such as
home renovation, washing clothes of family members that worked with
asbestos, or from workers involved in the removal of asbestos or the

AT =

g

+ Changes in legiclation, especially those relating to tort reform for
asbestos sufferers. Examples include the amendments under the
Wrengs Actin Victoria (as noted in Section 1.3.3 of this Report) and the
current consultation by the Law Reform Commission in Western
Australia in relation to damages for gratuitous services and provisional
damages,

. ion of new, or elimination of existing, heads of damage;

. y and agg or punitive (being
awarded for personal injuries caused as a result of negligence or
reckless conduct);

« Changes in the basis of apportionment of awards for agbestos-related
diseases for claimants who have smoked (we note the decisions in
Amaca v Ellis [2010] HCA 5 and Evans v Queanbeyan City Council
[2010] NSWDDT 7 which we understand are consistent with the
previous decision in Judd v Amaca [2002] NSWDOT 25);

« Changes lo taxation; and

+ Fulure ies of other ast claim gefendants (i.e. olher liable
manufacturers er distributors).

Nonetheless, implicit allowance is made in respect of some of these items in

the allowance for superimposed inflation included in our liability assessment.

Furthermare, 1o the extent that some of these have emerged in past claims
they are in our pi
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1.3.2 New Zealand and other OVerseas exposures

1.3.3

1.3.4

We have made no allowance for the risk of further development in relation to
New Zealand exposures and the rights of claims from New Zealand claimants
in Auslralian courts (as per Frost vs. Amaca Py Ltd (2005), NSWDDT 36
although this decision was successfully appealed by Amaca in August 2008)
nor for the risk of additi i} from o . This is because, as noted
in Section 1.2, the AICF Trust is not required to meet the cost of these claims
as they are Excluded Claims.

In relation to claimants where exposures have invalved more than one country
(2.9, UK and Australia). we have assumed that the AICF Trust will only meet
that part of the cost which is attri to the i lated

Victorian amendments to the Wrongs Act

In 2015, the State of Victoria implemented amendments to the Wrongs Act (the
Wrongs Amendment Act 2015) 1o incorporate the payment of Sullivan vs
Gorden awards. These amendments came into force on 19 November 2015,
The Department of Justice and Regulation of Victoria has recently advised
AICF that itis making o the current that apply to Dust
Diseases, namely the Wrongs (Part VB) (Dust and Tobacco-Related Claims)
Regulations 2006.

We are advised that the effect of the various amendments is that from 10 May
2018, the AICF Trust will be required to pay for Sulivan vs Gordon awards (1o
the extent applicable) in relation to claims brought against the Liable Entities in
Victaria,

Such awards would then constitute Payable Liabilities under the Amended Final
Funding Agreement. Therefore, we have made allowance for these awards in
cur valuation. We have allowad for such amounts over all fulure years over
which claims are projected 1o emerge and settle.

Third-wave claims

We have made for lled “third: " claims. These are defined
as claims for personal injury and / or death arising from asbestos exposure
during home renovations by individuals or to builders invelved in such
rencvaticns, Such claims are allowed for within the prejections to the extent to
which they have arisen to date and to the extent our exposure medel factors in
these exposures in its projection
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1.5

We have notallowed for a significant additional surge in third-wave claims (over
and above current levels of activity) in the future arising from renovations, but
conversely we have not allowed for a tempering of those third-wave claims
already included within our projection as a result of improved education of
individuals as to the risks of such home rencvations, or of any lecal Councils of
State Governments passing laws in this regard.

It should be noted that claims for the cost of asbestos or asbestos product
remaval from homes and properties or any claims for economic loss arising
frem asbestos or asbestos preducts being within such homes and properies is
not required to be met by the AICF Trust

Data reliances and limitations

KPMG Actuarial has relied upon the accuracy and completeness of the data
with which it has been provided. KPMG Actuarial has not verified the accuracy
or completeness of the data, although we have undertaken steps to test its
consistency with dala previously received. However, KPMG Actuarial has
placed reliance on the data previously ived, and y provided, as
being accurate and complete in all material respects.

Uncertainty

It must be that esti of lated disease liabilities are
subject to considerable uncertainty.

This is due to the fact that the ultimate disposition of future claims will be subject
to the outcame of events that have not yet accurred. Examples of these events,
as noted in Section 1.3, include jury decisions, court i ions, legislati

i i i medical public
and social and economic

attitudes, p ial additional third:
conditions such as inflation.

Therefore, it should be expected that the actual emergence of the liabilities will
vary, perhaps materially, frem any estimate. Thus, no assurance can be given
that the actual liabilities of the Lisble Enlities to be met by the AICF Trust will
not ulti ly exceed the esti ined herein. Any such variation may
be significant.
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1.6 Distribution and use

1.7

The purpose of this Report is as stated in Section 1.1.
This Report should not be used for any purpose other than these spacified

This Report will be provided to the Board and management of AICFL. This
Report will also be provided to the Board and management of James Hardie,
the NSW Government and to Ernst & Young intheir capacity as auditors to both
James Hardie and AICFL.

We understand that this Report will be filed with the ASX and placed on James
Hardie's website in its entirety

We understand that this Report will also be placed on AICFL's website in its
entirsty.

KPMG Actuarial consents to this Report being made available to the above-
menticned parties and for the Report to be distributed in the manner described
above.

To the extent permitted by law, neither KPMG Actuarial nor its Executives,
directors or employees will be responsible to any third parties for the
consequences of any actions they take based upon the opinions expressed
with this Report, including any use of or purported reliance upen this Report not
contemplated in Section 1.2. Any reliance placed is that party's sole
responsibility.

Where distribution of this Report is permitted by KPMG Actuarial, the Report

may only be distributed in its entirety and jud, its about the
and comments drawn from this Report should only be made after considering
the Reportin its entirety and with Y COr with KPMG Act I

Readers are also advised to refer to the “Important Note: Basis of Report”
section at the front of the Execulive Summary of this Report

Date labelling convention used in this Report

Imour analyses throeughout this Report (unless otherwise stated), the “year” we
refer 1o aligns with the financial year of AICFL and James Hardie and runs from
1 April to 31 March,

A “2008" notified claim would be a claim notified in the peried 1 April 2008 to
31 March 2009. This might also be refarred to as “2008/08" or "FY09".
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1.8

1.9

Similarly, a “2015" claim settlement would be a claim settied in the period 1
April 2015 to 31 March 2016. This might also be referred lo as “2015/16" or
“FY16”

Author of the report

This Report is authored by Neil Donlevy, an Executive of KPMG Actuarial Pty
Ltd, a Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries (London) and a Fellow of the Institute
of Actuaries of Australia,

This Report is d by Jeff Gibbs, an E: ive of KPMG Actuarial
Pty Ltd, a Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries (London) and a Fellow of the
Institute of Acluaries of Australia.

In relation to this Report, the primary regulator for both Neil Donlevy and
Jefferson Gibbs is the Institute of Actuaries of Australia,

Pr ds and

This Report details a valuation of the outstanding claims liabilities of entities
which hold liabilities with fealures similar to general insurance liabilities as self-
insured entities, and which have purchased related insurance protection.

I preparing this Report, we have plied with the Py i 300
of the Inslitute of Actuaries of Australia ("PS3007), “Valvation of General
Insurance Claims”.

However, as we note in Section 1.2, this Report does not include an allowance
for the future Operating Expenses of the AICF Trust (which are estimated by
AICFL) and nor does it include any allowance for a risk margin to reflect the
inherent uncertainty in the liability assessment.
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1.10 Control processes and review

This waluation report and the underlying analyses have been subject to
technical review and internal peer review.

The technical review focuses on ensuring that the valuation models and

ling claims i that are carried out are performed
correclly and that the calculations are being correclly applied. The technical
review also focuses on ensuring that the data that is being used has been
reconciled insofar as possible,

Internal peer review involves a review of the approach, the methods, the
assumplions and the p ional ji applied.

Both the technical review and interal peer review processes are applied to the
Report as well as the valuation models.

1.11 Funding position of the AICF Trust

This Report does net analyse nor provide any opinion on the current, of
prospective, funding position of the AICF Trust, nor of its likely funding needs
and its potential use of the loan facility pravided by the NSW

This is because to do 50 within this Report would require consideration,
estimation and documentation of the future financial performance of James
Hardie.

This Report only provides analysis and opinion on the estimates of the future
expenditure to be met by the AICF Trust.

The cashflow estimates contained in this Report assume that all claims against
the Liable Entities will continue to be paid in full as and when they fall due,

1.12 Basis of preparation of Report

We have been advised by the management of AICFL to prepare the Report on
a “going concern” basis (i e. we should assume that AICFL will be able to meet
any shortfall in the cost of the liabilities of the Liable Entities as they fall due).
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2.1 Data provided to KPMG Actuarial
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We have been provided with the following data by AICFL:
+ Claims dataset at 31 March 2016 with individual claims listings;

+ Accounting transactions dataset at 31 March 2016 (which includes
individuzal claims payment details); and

« Detailed ir 1 (being a listing of claims
filed with the insurers of the Lisble Entities) produced by Randall &
Quilter Investment Holdings as al 31 March 2016,

We have allowed for the benefits of the product and public liability insurance

policies of the Liable Entities based on information provided to us by AICFL
relating to the i s structure, ge and layers.

We have also considered the claims data listings which formed the basis of our
previous valualion assessments,

The data structures for the claims and accounting databases provided to us by
AICFL as of 31 March 2016 are detailed in Appendix E.

Data limitations

We have tested the consistency of the various data sels provided to us at
different valuation dates. Section 2.3 outlines the nature of the testing
undertaken.

However, we have not otherwise verified the data and have instead relied on
the data provided as being plete and in all material respects.

We have relied upon the robustngss of AICFL's internal administration and
syslems as 10 the completeness of he data provided,

Consequently, should there be material errors or incompleteness in the data,
cur assessment could alsc be affected materially.




]
kj:hb Valuation of the asbostos-related disease

cutting through complaxity liabilities of the Liable Entities to be met by the AICF Trust
Effective a5 at 31 March 2016
19 May 2016

2.3 Data reconciliation and testing
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We have performed a reconciliation of the data provided at 31 March 2016 with
the data provided at 31 March 2015.

We have undertaken a number of tesls and ions to test the
of the data to the extent possible, noting the limitations outlined above.

with previt lustion's data
Neh a iliation of the claims as at 31 March 2016
with that provided at 31 March 2015,
Qur findings are:
+ Claims notifications: There have been two claims with a report date prior

1o 31 March 2015 thal were not present in the database at 31 March
2015. No claims changed notification date between the two databases.

+ Portfolio category: Five claims changed category, Of these, one related
to claims reported in 2014/15, one related to 2013/14 and the remainder
related to older penods of notification.

= Settlement date: There have been three claims with a settlement date
prior to 31 March 2015 that were nol showing as being settled in the
database at 31 March 2015 One additional claim changed its
settlement date.

Changing and ping data is not p or to be considered as
adverse. Indeed, changing data is common to all claims administration
systems. We do not consider the number or extent of the changes noted above
to be unreasonable, nor do we consider the changes to be malerial to the
valuation.

R iliation of ¢laims settl b claims and ing
databases
The accounting extract ins the following fields:

» Damages —which are gross of cross-claim recoveries,;
« Costs;

« DDB reimbursements:

= Other costs;

«  Payments to Medicare; and

+ Defence legal costs.
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The claims extract the fields:

+ Damages —which in some cases are net of cross-claim recoveries, and
which in others are gross of cross-claim recoveries. We are able lo
identify which records are gross of cross-claims recoveries and which
records are net of cross-claim recoveries. We have then restated all
damages data to be gross of cross-claim recoveries;

« Costs;

+ DDB reimbursemants;

= Other costs (Consulting costs and payments to Medicare); and
+ Defence legal costs.

We have mapped the financial data between the two dalabases into
standardised groupings as follows:

Table 21: Grouping of financial data from claims and accounting

databases

Camages (grovs of crovs-coms) pluw 008 |

ph g | A P

Aswd Dratas) Medore

‘Couts phee Othet Jese Modicare (from sccourting |Q‘
Coats / OPar dzatane] s plos Conpubing.
Deterae kagol costs |M~a legalzoaty
Noto: Rocovary amounis are availobie from the occounting dafabose
We have compared the pay records b the claims database and the

accounting database from the earliest date 1o the current file position.

Table 2.2 shows the results of this reconciliation for all claim transactions to
date.
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Table 2.2: Comparison of amounts from claims and accounting databases

($m)
(Damages (gross of recoveries,
|esiuding medicare) 1.366.9 | Domogos (gross of receverion] 13758
Conts 391 |Cosls 06
oos 121 |DDB 124
Car (ine Medicare) 58 Conmuling 23
Medicare 32
Detence legal couts 167.2 | Dofonce logal costs 1676
Tetal Value 1,581.1 Total Value 1,600.9
Slandardisation
Aoard plus Medicare pus DDB 13822 | Avard plus Medicare phus DDB 13814
Costs | Ofwr 417 |Costs | Oar 419
Defence legal costs 167.2 | Defence legal costs 1676
Tetal Value 1,591.1 Total Value 1.600.9

The standardisation is the most relevant comparison because, as noted earlier,
the two database extracts allocate the information (particularly in relation to
Medicare) in slightly different ways.
Once the star has been ), the two reconcile
closely — with reconciliation differences totalling approximately $9.8m or 0.6%
{31 March 2015 $8.3m).
Qur approach for each claim record has been to take the maximum value of the
two databases for each claim record. This resulls in the following overall totals
being used in our analysis:

«  $1,391.9m for the claims award compenent;

+  542.5m for the costs / other compeonent; and

+  $167.8m for the defence legal costs component.

This approach, of taking the maximum value for each claims record, may result
in some minor prudence in our overall analysis although the amount of
P is not i to be si in the context of the size of the
potential liabilities and the underlying uncertainty in any valuation estimating
future claims costs over the next 40 years or more.
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2.4 Data conclusion

We have not verified the underlying data nor have we undertaken “auditing at
source”. No material data issues have been identified and notified to us by the
Approved Auditor of AICFL (Ernst & Young) during their lesting,

We have tested the data for internal consistency with the data provided at the
previous valuation {31 March 2015).
Based on that testing and reconciliation, and subject to the limitations described
in Section 1.4, we have formed the view that:
« Generally, the data is consistent between valuations, with any
differences in the data being readily explainable,

« The financial data appears lo reconcile reasonably between the two
data sources (the claims dataset and the accounting dataset),

= Any data issues that have emerged are not significant in refation to the
size of the liabilities; and

« Therefore, the data is appropriate for use for the purposes of this
Report.
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3 Valuation Methodology and Approach

31

3.2

Previous valuation work and methodology changes

We have, in broad terms, maintai the core i gy adopted
at our previous valuation at 31 Mareh 2015.

Overview of current methodology

The methodelogy involves assessing the liabilities in two separate components,
being:
« Allowance for the cost of setfling claims which have already been
reported but have not yet been settled (‘pending claims”); and

* Allowance for the cost of setliing claims which have not yet been
reported (“Incurred But Not Reported” or “IBNR” claims)

For pending claims, we have used the case estimates (where available) with
some adjusiments to reflect the extent to which the case estmates (on
average) lend to overstate the ultimate cost. For IBNR claims we have used
what can best be described as an "average cost per claim method”,

In brief, the overall may be ised as follows:

« Project the future number of claims expected to be reportad in each
future year by disease type (for product and public liability) and for
Workers Compensation and wharf claims taking into account the

p d future incid of mesotheli and other di and also
ihe past rate of co-joining of the Liable Entities;

* Analyse past average attritional claim costs of non-nil claims in mid
201516 money terms. We have defined attritional claims to be claims
which are less than $1m in 2008/07 money terms. We estimate a
baseline attritional non-nil average claim cost in mid 201516 money
terms. This represents the Liable Entities’ share of a claim rather than
the tolal claim For Workers C ion claims, the
average cost represents cnly that part of a claim which is bome by the
Liable Entities {i.e. it is net of any insurance proceeds from a Workers
Compensation Scheme or Policy);
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« Analyse past historical average plaintiffiether and defendant legal costs
for non-nil claim settlements;

+ Analyse past historical average defendant legal costs for nil claim
sellements;

» Eslimate alarge claims loading” for mescthelioma claims by estimating
the frequency, or incidence rate. and average claim size and legal cost
sizes of such claims (being claims which are in excess of $1m in
2008/07 money terms);

« Project the pattern and incidence of future claims settiements from the
claims reporting profile projected. This is done by using a setliement

pattern derived from lion of past i of the pattern of
delay between claim reperting and claim setilement for each disease
type;

« Estimate the proportion of claims which will be setlled with no liability
against the Liable Enfities by reference to past proportions of claims
settied for nil claim cost (we refer to this as the “nil settliement rate”);

+ Inflate average claim, plaintififother and defence legal costs and large
claim costs to the date of setilement of claims allowing for base inflation
and (where applicable) suparimposed inflation;

+ Multiply the claims numbers which are expected to be settled for non-
nil amounts in a period by the inflated average non-nil claim costs
(including the “arge claims loading”) and plaintififother and defence
legal costs for that peried;

* Make aliowance in defence legal costs for that proportion of settled
claims which are expected to be settled for no liability but for which
defence costs will be incurred;

+ Inflate average defence legal cosls of nil claims to the date of settlement
of claims allowing for base inflation;

*  Multiply the claims numbers which are expected to be settied for nil
amounts in a period by the inflated average defence legal costs for nil
claims for that period;

+ Add the expected claims and legal payments relating lo pending claims
(after aliowance for the potential savings on case estimates) afier
making for the pattern of pending
claims;
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* Thig gives the projected future gross cashflow for each future financial
year,

+ Adjust the projected gross cashfiow for the impact of the annual and
aggregate caps on DDB reimbursements;

« Estimate the recoveries resulting from cross-claims made by the Liable
Entities against other parties (“cross-claim recoveries”),;

+ Project| R ies to establish the net

+ Discount the cashflows using a yield curve derived from yields on
Commonwealth Government Fixed Interest Bonds at the valuation date
to arrive at our present value [iablity assessment.

It should be noted that this description is an outline and is not intended to be
exhaustive in consideration of all the stages we consider or all investigations
we undertake, Those other stages are outlined in more detail elsewhere in this
Report and readers are advised to refer to those sections for a more detailed
understanding of the precess undertaken.

As discussed , the liabilities are i on a central
basis.

Disease type and class subdivision

Claims records exciuded from our analysis

We have excluded cross-claims brought by the Liable Entities against other
Where the laim is brought as part of the main proceedings

the claim is autematically counted in our analysis of the number of claims.

However, where the cross-claim by the Liable Entities is severed from the main

P the exi: ofa record in the claims dataset does not

indicate an additional claim (or liability against the Liable Entities). In these

circumstances such ¢laims records are not counted in our analysis.

We have also excluded “insurance recovery” claims recerds. This is because
theil recovery record is asep record that exists for ciaims records
where an insurance recovery is due. In other words, the claim against the Liable
Enlity has already been included in cur analysis and the insurance recovery
record exists for operational purposes only. We have, however, made separate,
explicit allowance in the valuation for future insurance recoveries.
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3.3.2 Categories of claim

233

We have sub-divided the remaining claims into the following groups:
+ Product and Public Liability;

* ‘Workers Compensation, being claims by former employees of the
Liable Entities; and

+ Wharf claims, being claims by individuals whose occupations involved

working on the docks of wharves, or where part of their exposure related
to wharves.

We have sep the Warkers Gomp iion claims from product and public
liability claims because claim payments from Workers Compensation claims do
not generate recoveries under the product and public liability insurance cover,
0 thatin order to value those insurance policies we need to separately identify
the cashflows from preduct and public liability claims and the cashfiows from
Werkers Compensation claims,

We have separated out wharfside workers claims because such claims are

likely to have a different and incid profile d with product
and public liability claims.

Categories of disease
For preduct and public liabiity claims, we have separalely analysed the
individual disease types.

We have split the data by disease type because there is sufficient volume of
claims to do so, because different disease types display substantially different
average claim sizes, and because the incidence pattern of future notifications
is expected to vary between the different disease types.

We have not divided the Workers Compensation or wharf claims data by
disease type, given their low financial significance and the reduced credibility
of the data if sub-divided by disease type (given the low number of claims).
For the purposes of our analysis, we have allocated each claim once and
therefore to one disease only. We have selected the following order of priority,
based on the relative severity of the disease:

« Mesothelioma;

* Lung cancer / Other cancer;

« Asbestosis; and then

+ Asbestos-Related Pleural Disease and Other ("ARPD & Other’).

21
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3.4

This means that if a product or public liability claim has mesothelioma as one
of its listed diseases, il is counted 2s a mesothelioma claim. If a product or
public liability claim has lung cancer or other cancer as one of its listed diseases
{but not mesothelioma), it is counted as a lung cancer claim. If a product or
public liability claim has asbestesis as one of its listed diseases, it is only
counted as asb is if it has no ref to helioma, lung cancer or
other cancer as one of its diseases,

Numbers of future claims notifications

To project the pattern of incidence of claims against the Liable Entities, we have
constructed a model which utilises the following inputs:

+ The exposure to asbestos in Australia, adjusted to allow for the Liable
Entities’ particular incidence of usage, noting that for the period to 1987
they had approximately a stable market share, but thereafter were not
involved in asbestos products;

« The average period over which claimants are typically exposed; and

« The statistical gistribution of the latency period from average exposure
for each disease type, together with the underlying parameters (the
mean and the standard deviation) of the latency model,

the ji peak incidence of mesothelioma is not
equal to the peak year of production (or consumption) plus the average latency
of mesothelioma.

Instead, the projected peak of claims reporting derived from our model is a

function of the overall shape of the exp and the full distribution of the
latency period. In statisti inology, the proj claims incidence curve
isan i of the isti istribution of i and

the statistical distribution of the latency period,

Furthermore, the nofification pattern will not be symmetrically distributed
around the peak year. The notification pattern is derived from the combined
impact of the exposure moedel 2nd the latency model. The exposure model is
net a symmetrical distribution; whereas the assumed latency model is a
symmetrical distribution.

The following chart shows the timeline of exposure, latency, diagnosis and
claims reporting.
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Figure 3.1: lllustration of timeline of exposure, latency and claim reporting
(example shown is for mesothelioma)
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3.4.1 Exposure Mode!

We have construcled a proxy for an “exposure model” by reference lo statistics
showing the levels of Australian usage of asbestos.

We do not have detailed individual exposura information for the Liable Entilies,
its products or where the products were used and how many people were
exposed 1o those products. However, given the market share of James Hardie
over the years (through to 1987) and its relative slability, we have used a
national pattern of usage as a reasonable proxy for the Liable Entities'
exposure.

We start by constructing an exposure index from the annual consumption of
asbestos within Australia from 1900-2002. We split this between the various
asbestos types and by year of consumption.

We have not allowed for multiple exposures with respect o the Liable Entities
from each unit of asbestes consumed, e.q. where the Liable Entities were both
mining and milling the same asbestos. While there was some (moderale)
mining at Baryulgil, in relative terms it is not significant. In any event, we have

made sep: explicit all for mining ities at Baryulgil within our
liability assessment.
Figure 3.2 shows of the p ion and ption of in

Australia in the period 1930 to 2002,

It can be seen that the exposure, being measured in consumption, appeared to
peak in the early-1970s 1o mid-1970s. |t can 2lso be seen that for Australia as
a whole, asbestos consumption continued at significant levels until the mid-
19805 and then began Lo fall through to 2002,
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Figure 3.2: C and pr indices - lia 1930-2002
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Source' World Minaral Statistics Datasal, British ical Survey, com
& Virta, USGS Website Anual Yearbook
The deta underlying this chart is shonm in Appendix D.

The “medelled consumption” is derived as the consumption averaged over the
previous eight years, i.e. from the implied start date of exposure to the average
date of exposure,

This selection of eight years is based on the analysis contained in Section 6
which shows that a typical claimant has an average exposure period of 16 years
and that the average date of exposure is therefore typically eight years after the
start date of exposura.

It is the "modelled consumplion™ which is used, together with an assumption
about the statistical distribution of the latency pericd, as a basis for projecting
future mesothelioma claim numbers,

There is an implicit assumption within the use of the “modslied consumption”
to derive the level of future claim notifications that:

»  the consumption of asbestos is directly correlated with, and is a suitable
proxy for, the number (and extent of exposure) of pecple exposed lo
asbestos in any year; and

+ fthe rate of inci of indivi ping an refated
disease arising from exposure 1o asbestos is the same for each
P year and is indep of the type of asbestos used or the

age of the individuals exposed.

24
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34.2 Latency mode!

343

Qur assumption is that the latency pattern (from the average date of exposure)
for all disease types is statistically distributed with a normal distribution.

The paramelers (i.e. the mean and iation) of the distribution have
been set by refl to previous work undertaken by Professor Berry et al’,
by Jim Leigh et al® and by Yeung et al®,

The parameters for the mean and, in particular, for the standard deviation have
also been set laking into account the claims experience of the Liable Entilies lo
date.

The paramelers vary by disease type.
The analysis supporting the of these is ised in
Section 6.2,

Projecting the claims notification cunve using the exposure and latency model

Our methodology is to take each year of exposure, using ‘modelled
consumption” of asbestos in tennage for that year, and project an index of the
number of claims we project to emerge in each future reporting year resulting
frem that exposure year.

The latency period is 10 be istri with @ mean and 2
standard deviation which vary by disease type,

This means thal for any given exposure year, the peak incidence of reporting
claims would be (in the case of mesothelioma) 35 years after the average
exposure date from that exposure year,

We then aggregate the claims nolification index curves projected for each
exposure year 1o produce an overall curve which shows the index of claim
notifications arising from all exposure periods.

' Malignant pleyral and pertoneal mesothelioma in former miners and millers of crocdolite at Wittenoom,
Westem Australia; G Berry, M H de Klerk et al (2004)

2 Malignant Mescthelioma in Austratia. 1945-2000. J Leigh et al (2002)

* Distnoution of Mesothelioma Gases. in Diftarent Occupabonal Groups and Indusiries, 1979-1985 P
Young, A Regors, A Johnson (1569)
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The curve is as an ingex ¢ is used as a proxy

344

345

measure for the number of individuals exposed and because we don't know
what proportion of those people who were exposed will develop asbestos-
related discases.

Therefore the methodelogy produces a shape of the number of claims, rather
than an absolute level of the number of claims 1o be reported.

This methodology provides not only the shape of claims reporting as an index
but it also projects the implied peak year(s) of incidence for each disease type
and the rate of decay in claims reporting levels after the peak year of incidence.
We allow for each of the diseases having different average latency periods.
This results in different projected peak years and incidence patterns for the
different diseases.

These are summarised in Sections 6.2 and 6.3.

Calibrating the curve index to current reporting experience

We take the claim curve index and then calibrate the number of notifications in
each future year by reference to the recent levels of claims reperting and the
number of claims we have assumed for the 201617 financial year.

This approach implicitly assumes that:

+ Thne future rate of inci of lated ifesting
as a resull of a past exposure lo asbestos will remain stable;

» The pattern of di and the delay b diagnosis and reporting
remain stable;

* The “propensity to claim” by individuals will remain stable; and
= The rate of co-joining the Liable Entities in claims will remain stable.

Changes to any of these factors over time will result in changes to the actual
pattern of incidence of claims reporting compared with that derived in Section
343

Qur assumptions for the base number of claims projected to be reported in
2016/17 are summarised in Sections 4.4 and 5.6.
Model adjustmenis made at 31 March 2014 for mesothelioma claims

As a consequence of heightened mesothelioma claims reporting cbserved in
2013/14 (and which has continued thereaftar), we made some modifications lo
the future incidence pattern for mesothelioma in our 31 March 2014 valuation.
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3.5

36
361

The changes weare most pronounced for the period of claims reporting through
to, and including, 2016/17 and the changes are documented more exlensively
in our Annual Actuarial Report effective at 31 March 2014.

We have maintained those modifications to the incidence pattern.

Incidence of claim settlements from future claim notifications

We derive a pattern by ysing tri of the of
i and claims pay by delay from the year of notification.
From these t pattern analyses, we have esti d the pace at which

claims notified in the future will settfe, and used this to project the future
number, and menelary amount, of setliements in each financial year for each
disease type.

are ised in Section 9.6,

Qur analysis and

Average claim costs of IBNR claims

Altritional clgims

We define a large claim as one fer which the award is greater than or equal to
§1m in 2008/07 money terms (which equates to approximately $1.42m in mid
2015/16 money terms).

We define an attritional claim as a non-nil, non-large claim. We define a nil claim
as one for which the award payable by the relevant Liable Entity is zero,

We have eslimated the following five components to the average cost
assessment:

» Average award (sometimes including plaintiff legal costs) of a non-nil
“atiritional” ¢laim.

« Average plaintiff legal / other costs of a non-nil “attritional” claim.
»  Average defence legal costs of a non-nil “atiritional” claim.

« Average defence legal costs of anil claim,

« Large claim awards and legal cost allowances.

All of our analyses have been constructed using past average awards, which
have been inflated to mid 2015/16 money terms using a historical base inflation
index {of 4% per annum). This allows for basic inflation effects when identifying
trends in historical average setth We then ing a p i
average cost in mid 2015116 money terms.
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3.7

We perform the same analysis for the defence legal costs for nil and non-nil
claims and for plaintiff legal / other costs in respect of non-nil claims (together
“Claims Legal Costs").

Our analysis and assumptions are summarised in Section 7.

Large claims leading

We analyse the historical incidence rate of large claims (being measured as the
ratio of the number of large claims to the total number of non-nil claims). and
the average claim size and legal costs of these claims.

We have i a prospective i rate and an cost in mid
2015/16 money terms to arrive at a “per claim” loading (being the average large
claim cost multiplied by the large claim incidence rate per claim) being the
additional amount we need to 2dd to cur attritional average claim size to allow
for large claims.

QOur analysis and assumptions are summarised in Seclion 7.8,

Future inflation of average claim sizes

Allowance for future claim cost inflation is made. This is medeled as a
combination of base inflation plus superimposed inflation. This enables us to
project future average settlement costs in each future year, which can then be
applied lo the IBMR claims numbers as they seltle in each fulure year.

Qur analysis and assumptions in relation to claims inflation are summarised in
Sections 9.2 and 9.3,

Proportion of claims settled for nil amounts

We apply a "nil settlement rate” to the overall number of settlements to eslimate
the number of claims which will be settled for nil claim cost (i.e. other than in
relation to defence legal costs) and those which will be settied for a non-nil
claim cost

The prospective nil rate is esti by reference to the analysis of
past trends in the rate of nil settlements.

Qur analysis and ion: are ised in Section 8
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3.8 Pending claims

381

382

383

Definition of panding claims
AL31 March 2018, there were 484 claims (31 March 2015: 532) for which claim
awards have not yet been fully settied by the Liable Enlities,
Additionally, there are a number of other claims for which defence legal costs
have not yet been settled, even though the awards have been settled.
We have adopted three definitions of setilement status:

+ 'Where there is a closure date, there are not expected to be any further

award or legal costs incurred.

« Where there is no closure date but the claim has a setiiement date,
there is the il of futher legal cosls, even
though the claim award has been settled.

+ ‘Where there is no settlement date, there is the possibility of award,
plaintiff legal costs and defendant legal costs being incurred.

Evaluating the liability for pending claims

The excess amount of the liabilty for pending claims, over the case estimates
held, is what the insurance industry terms Incurred But Not Enough Reported
(IBNER7).

Depending on the case estimation p dure of a and the nature of
the liabilities, IBMER can be either pesitive or negative, with a negative IBNER
implying that the ultimate cost of settling claims will be less than case estimates,
i.e. that there is some degree of redundancy in case estimates.

Findings

Our analysis has indicated that there is a degree of redundancy in case
estimates, i.e. a negative IBNER.

The comparison of current case estimates with actuarially-projected future
settlement costs for claims reported to date suggests that polential savings
frem case estimates in relation to the award compenent could be of the order
of 25%.

AICFL's own analysis also suggests that historically there have also been
savings which have typically varied between 20% and 30%.
Furthermore, we have assessed whether the cost of claims reported up to and

including 31 March 2016 has (or imp pared to our prior
estimate (as at 31 March 2015).
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The table below shows that there has been no deterioration compared 1o the
estimates we previously adopled and are currenlly adopting (both of which
have already made allowance for a 25% saving on case estimates). This
analysis lends further support to the view that the allowance we have made for
the extent of in case esti of 25% is and is borne
out by the actual experience.

We have maintained cur assumption for the level of redundancy in case
estimates on currently reported claims at 25% at this valuation (March 2015:
28%). This assumption is only applied to the case estimates for the claim
award, i.e. itis not applied to plaintifflother costs or defence costs.

Table 3.1: Change in cost of claims during 201516 financial year ($m) =
claim award component only

Current year Priof year reported

Figuros in $millions = £ Total
Estimates fot pending claims 2131 larch

2015 o) oo M5 “E
Paid arnounts in year B0 31 March 2016 & 58 1z
e A i i I |

2015 funs F ﬂ' L2 | %7 | To9
Incurred Cost in the financial year 1273 (105 158

The table above shows that there has been a $10.8m saving in the case
estimates for claims that were reported prior to 31 March 2015,

It should be noted that making allowance for savings from case estimates is
expected to have a meore significant impact on the near term cash flows and a
lesser impact on the longer-term cashflows, with more than 95% of the cost of
pending claims expected to be settled within the next six years.

Insurance Recoveries

Insurance Recoveries are defined as proceeds which are estimated to be
recoverable under the product and public liability insurance policies of the
Liable Entities, and therefore exclude any such proceeds from a Workers
Compensation Scheme or Pelicy in which the Liable Entities participate or
which the Liable Entities hold.

In applying the i P we ider only the proj qross
cashfiows relating to product and public liability claims.

We split out product liability cashflows from public liability cashflows as they are
covered by different sections of the insurance policy under different bases:
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+ Product liability claims are covered by an aggregate policy which
provides cover for all preduct liability claims costs attached to any one
year up lo an overall aggregate limit for that year, and

« Public liability claims are covered by an “each and every loss” policy
which provides cover for each public liability claim up to an individual
claim limit for that year.

Histerical analysis of the claims data suggests that approximately 97.5% of all
liability claims by cost have been product liability claims,

We make no allowance for the Workers C i in

the Insurance ies, as the i pregs only provid
insurance cover to product and public liability exposures.

Programme overview

Until 31 March 1885, the Liable Entities had in place General and Products
liability insurance policias with a $1m primary policy layer.

In addition, until 31 May 1886, the Liable Entities maintained further excess
“umbrella” insurance policies, with varying retentions and policy limits, Thatis,
the ingurance policies paid all costs arising from claims with exposure in a
specified year from the retention up to the relevant policy limit. All claim costs
in relation to a given exposure year in excess of the limit would be retained by
the Liable Entities.

Preduct liability claims were insured under these insurance policies on an “in
the aggregate” basis whilsl public liability claims were insured on an “each and
every loss” basis.

These insurance policies were placed amongst a number of insurance
providers on a claims occurring basis,

From 31 May 1886, the insurance policies were placed on a claims made basis
in relation to asbestos-related product and public liability cover.

In summary, the insurance policies were placed as follows:

= For the period up to June 1976, the insurance policies were written on
a claims cceurring basis. The insurance was provided by QBE but the
cover provided by these policies was commuted in June 2000 for 3
consideration of $3.1m per annum for the following 15 years (through
10 30 June 2014).
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For the period from June 1976 to 31 May 1986, the insurance policies
were written on a claims occuring basis. CE Heath acted as the
underwriling agent and insured the risk in Auslralia and alsa into Lioyd's
of London and the London Market. However, during this period CE

Heath Underwriting & Ir (A lia) Pty Ltd (CEH U&l) also
insured some of the risk, reir ing their pl on a i
basis.

For the period 31 May 1985 1o 31 March 1988, the insurance policies
were wiilten on a claims-made basis. CE Heath acled as the
underwriting agent and insured the risk into Lloyd's of London and the
London Market.

For the period 31 March 1889 to 31 March 1987, the insurance policies
were written on a claims-made basis. However, CE Heath Casualty &
General Insurance Ltd (later HIH Casualty & General) acted as the
insurer of the programme and reinsured it on a facultative basis inlo
Lloyd's of London and the London Market CE Heath Casualty &
General Insurance Ltd retained some share on some of the layars_

32.9.2 Modslling insurance recoveries on the claims occurring programme

Qur methodology for projecting the future i ies 1o be
by AICFL invelves the following steps:

Identify the current contract positions for each insurance policy year.
This assumes that all monies dus have been collected, and does not
allow for the impact of commutations that have taken place,

Allocate the projected fulure gross o indivi ir

policy years using an allocation basis that has been determined by
reference to the exposure methodology used te project future claim
numbers and also using a “pericd of exposure” and “time on risk”
allocation.

This gives a prejection of how the insurance programme is utilised over
time.

This method allows us to:

luate the total i due by year;

determine how the insurance recoveries due will be assigned to each
layer and therefore to each insurer, and
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3.9.4

385

206

+ identify and allow for when the individual layers are projected to be fully
exhausted.

We then make an it djustment Lo the proj r ies to exclude
those projected fulure insurance recoveries that are assigned to the
participations of insurers who have already commuted their coverage with
AICFL and the Liable Enlities or insurars who have settied the coverage by way
of a Scheme of Arrangement

Commutations and HIH

Commutations have been entered into by AICFL, but these commutations have
involved the payment of a lump sum amount, rather than an annual cashflow
amount paid over a period of time. In these ci it we have d
that the insurance liabiities of that company to the Liable Entities have been
fully discharged and no further recoveries will fall due

We have assumed that all monies have been paid in relation to insurance
recoveries for the claims occurring period from HIH. Any future proceeds from
HIH are not expected to be material.

We have made no allowance or adjustment for any future commutations.
Schemes of Arangement

For the claims occurring period, where a ciaim filed against a company under
a Scheme of has been and made, we have
assumed that the insurance liabilities of that company to the Liable Entities
have been fully discharged and no further recoveries fall due,

Unpaid insurance recoveres

We have not included within our liability esti any for ir
recoveries under the claims occurring period that are due but have not yet been
collected ("unpaid balances”). We are advised that such monies amount o
appreximately $5m at 31 March 2016,

These amounts are more appropriately dealt with as being dabtors of AICFL.

Claims made insurance protection from 31 May 1986 onwards

Insurance protection purchased from 31 May 1986 onwards was placed on a
“glaims made” basis and as such may nol provide proteclion or recoveries
against the cost of future claim notifications made by claimants against the
Liable Entities.

For the purpose of this Report, we have made no allowance for the value of
insurance policies placed from 1986 onwards in our liability assessment.
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3.9.7 Bad and doublful debt on

310

We have made allowance for bad and doubtful debls on future Insurance
R within our ion by use of the default rates specified in Appendix
A. These have been sourced from Standard & Poors’ 2014 Annual Global
Corporate Default Study and Rating Transitions, April 2015 and they are based
on bond default rates,

We have considered the credit rating of the insurers of the Liable Entities as at
March 2016 and applied the relevant credit rafing default rates to the expected
future cashflows by year, treaty and insurer.

Where additienal information regarding the expected payout rales of solvent
and insol h of A is le, we have instead taken the
expected payout rates to assess the credit risk allowance to be made in our
liability assessment.

Cross-claim recoveries

A cross-claim can be brought by, or against, one or more Liable Entities. Cross-
claims brought against a Liable Entity ("Contribution Claims") are included in
our analysis of the claims experience,

Cross-claims brought by a Liable Entity relate to circumslances where the

Liable Entity seeks to join (as a cross-defendant) another party te the claim in

which the Liable Entity is already joined.

To the extent that the Liable Entilies are successful in joining such other parties

to a claim, the contribution to the settlement by the Liable Entities will reduce

accordingly.

Our approach in the valuation has been to separately value the rate of recovery

{"eross-claims recovery rate’) as a percentage of the gross award based on
istori of such ies.

Cur analysis and i are ised in Section 9.5.
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3.11 Discounting cashflows

Cashflows are discounted on the basis of yields available at the valuation date
on Commonwealth of Australia fixed interest Government Bonds
{*Commonwealth Government Bonds™) of varying coupon rates and durations
to maturity (matched to the lability with a long-t di it rate
of 6.00% per annum assumed.

It should be recognised that the yield curves and therefore the discount rates
applied can vary considerably between valuations and can, and do, contribute
significant volatility to the present value of the liability at different valuation

dates.

There have been minor i in yields on G d
Government Bonds in the last twelve months,

Qur 1o the of the rates is ur from the

approach adopted at 31 March 2015, and is:

+ For years 110 15, zero coupon spot rates were determined by reference
to the prices, coupons and durations of Commenwealth Government
Bonds;

« For years 19 and onwards, we have selected a uniform long-term
discount rate of 6.00% per annum; and

« For years 17 and 18, we have selected spot rates that “linearly
interpolate” between the year-16 rate and the year-19 rate (of 8.00%).

Qur are ised in Section 9.4,
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4  Claims Experience: Mesothelioma Claim Numbers

4.1

Overview

The following chart shows the number of mesothelioma claims reparted by year
of notification.

Figure 4.1: Number of theli claims reported i

Vear of notification

Nota: Throughou! Sections 4 to 8, the date convention used in tables and charts is thal (for
oxample) 200808 indicatos the Snanciel year ninning from 1 Apal 2008 to 31 March 2009
Furthormore, unloss oleady idntifying a calendar yoar, the fabel "2008"in charts or tables would
indicate the Snancial year running from 1 Apal 2008 1o 31 March 2003,

After three successive years of reductions in claims reperting from 2008/09 to
2011112, the number of i claims i d i cver the
subsequent three years, rising from 258 in 2011/12 to 412 in 2014/15.

Claims reporting in 2015/16 moderated slightly to 387 claims, and was broadly
in line with expeclations of 400 claims,
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4.1.7  Monthly analysis of notifications

We have examined the number of mesothelioma claims reported on a monthly
basis to better understand the nature of the claims experience observed on an
annual basis.

Figure 4.2: Monthly notifications of mesothelioma claims

Itis observed that:

« The number of claims reported in 2015/16 (387 cleims) has been 1%
below our previous expectations (400 claims) and 4% below the level
observed in 201415 (412 claims).

» In January 2016, AICF received 18 mesothelioma claims, the lowest
number received over the 201516 year and the lowest number reported
in a given month since December 2012,

+ In Movember 2015, AICFL received 45 mesothelioma claims, the
highest number ever received in one month,

« In 201518, eight months of the year had 30 or more claims reported
and three months had 40 or more claims in the month,
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4.1.2 Roliing averages
We have reviewed the number of mesothelioma claims reported on a monthly
basis and reviewed the rolling 3-month, 6-month and 12-month averages in
recent periods.
Figure 4.3. Rolling lised gt of heli claim
notifications
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It can be seen that the current annualised relling averages at 31 March 2018
are between 332 (3-month average) and 397 (12-month average).

Qver the past two years, the 3-month, & month and 12-month averages have
increased, ranging from 314 to 480 claims per annum.
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4.2 Profile of mesothelioma claims
4.2 Claims by State
We have analysed the number of theli claim by the State

inwhich the claim is filed.
Figure 4.4: Number of mesothelioma claims by State

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 200
Year of notification
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Hi NSW 50% of all claims reported. Since
2004/2005 this ion has ined and i i stable, with
NSW now centributing around 45% of all claims by number (although a higher
propertion of mesothelioma claims by cost).

Itis of note that for 2015/16 relative to 2014/15, claims reporting increased in
NSW, Victoria and Queensiand; whilst claims reporting fell in WA and SA.
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4.2.2 Direct claims and cross-claims
The following chart shows the number of claims nolified by year of notification
and separately as between claims brought by claimants (which we refer to as
‘direct claims’) and claims brought by other defendants, some of which are
brought a number of years after the claim was first nolified (these claims we
refer 1o as ‘cross claims’).
Figure 4.5: Number of mesothelioma claims by type of claim

mDinect claims W Crossclaiers

It can be seen that the increase in ¢laim numbers that were observedin 2012/13
was primarily a function of a higher number of cross-claims being brought by
other corporations and by State and Federal Government Entities.

The higher level of cross claims has continued with the number of cross claims
reported in the last three financial years at a similar level to 201213, This adds
further support to our valuation assumption made at 31 March 2013 that an
increased rate of co-joini laiming should be d to be a
permanent feature of the claims experience.

NSW is currently the primary source of cross claims (making up approximately
65% of the total number of cress claims in 2015/16).

Im 2013/14, there was a material increase in the number of direct claims most
notably from NSW, SA and Wa. This higher level of direct claims continued in
2014/15 and in 201516 (although noting a slight decrease in direct claims
reported in 201516 driven by a decrease in SA and WA),
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4.2.3 Number of defendants

The following chart shows the number of claims nolified by year of notification
and by number of defendants.

Figure 4.6: Number of mesothelioma claims by number of defendants
(direct claims only)
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The number of claims reported involving only the Liable Enlities (i.e. single-
defendant claims) has seen a slight decrease in 2015/16, following two
successive years of material increases (in absolute terms),

Claims in which the Liable Entities are the only defendants to the claim are
typically associaled with higher average claim sizes whilst claims involving
multiple defendants typically involve the Liable Enfities paying 60% or less of
the total settlement (see Section 7.2),
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4.2.4  Age profite of claimants

The following chart shows the proportion of claims notified by year of
notification and by age of claimant.

Figure 4.7: Number of mesothelioma claims by age of claimant
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The prepontion of claims reported involving claimants over the age of 70 has
gradually increased, evident by the downwards trends in the chart from left to
right.

In absolute terms, the number of claims ansing from claimants aged 70 years
or older rose by 93% from 140 in 2011/12 to 270 in 2015M6.

The number of claims arising from claimanls aged 60 years or younger rose by
19% from 27 in 2011/12 to 32 in 201516,

The growth in overall heli claim bers has theref

arisen from claimants aged 70 or older.

The higher proportion (and number) of claims involving claimants over 70 years
of age has been a contributor to the stability in average claim sizes experienced
in the last ten years (thereby acting to offset other claims inflation drivers) and
the reductions in average claim sizes in the last three years,
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4.2.5 Delay from cdiagnosis to notification
The chart below measures the time-lag (in days) from diagnosis to notification.
The chart shows that direct claims are rted quickly than 1

Direct claims have typically taken between 5 months and & months to be
d after di is of heli
P

Figure 4.8: Delay from di is of heli to of claim
against the Liable Enfities
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In 2014715, there was a speeding up in reporting of claims. This was more
noticeable in the first three quarters of the financial year, and may have in part
been to concems pertaining to the impl tation of the Appl d
Payment Scheme (which was announced on 15 September 2014). On 27
February 2015, AICFL announced that it would not be proceeding with the
implementation of the Approved Payment Scheme after it reached agreement
with the NSW Government to amend the lean facility provided to AICFL by the
NSW Government.

In 2015116, the delay from diagnosis 1o notification has reverted to a similar
level 1o that observed in 2013/14.
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4.3 External statistics on mesotheli claims i

The following chart compares the total number of mesothelioma cases reported
(diagnosed) nationally to the number of mesothelioma claims received by the
Liable Entities,

The “year” is calendar year for the national cases (i.e. 2012 is the year running

frem 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2012); whilst for the Liable Entities it is
the financial year (i.e. 2012 is the year running from 1 April 2012 to 31 March

2013).

It should be noted that the two sels of data to different

of year and so are not direclly comparable and some cauficn should be
exercised.

Figure 4.9: Number of heli cases reported nationall: pared

to the number of claims received by the Liable Entities
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Sources Australion Cancor Incidence and Martally book for Masotheloms, Ausiralian Insbtute
of Heatth and Welfare, updaled February 2014 for 2000-2010

Annual Repor! of the Austraian Masothalema Registny fer 2011 and enwards

The annual number of mesothelioma cases diagnosed nationally was relatively
stable for the period 2007 to 2014 varying between 661 to 713 cases,

Im calendar year 2014, the number of cases diagnosed nationally fell to 641.

It is notable that the 2013 calendar year saw an increase of 101 incidents from
575 (as rep inthe 2013 A ian M i Registry Report) to 676
(as reported in the 2014 Australian Mesothelioma Registry Report).
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As 8 consequence, it is possible that the national level of mesothelioma for
2014 has an element of under-reporting.

It sheuld be noted that not all cases of mesothelioma result in a claim being
brought in Common Law. Furthermore, even if a claim is brought, not all claims
will involve the Liable Entities.

Looking at the experience in NSW in more detail, the following chart compares
the number of cases of mesothelioma in NSW with the number of claims
brought in the Dust Diseases Board of Mew South Wales (DDB) and the number
of claims brought against the Liable Entiies under common law.

For the DDB data, the “year” is financial year (i.e. 2012 is the year running from
1 July 2012 1o 30 June 2013).

It should be noted that the three sets of data correspend to different definitions
of year and s0 are not direclly comparable and some caulion should be
exercised,

Figure 4.10: Number of theli cases reported in NSW
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Sources: NSW Contrai Gancer Registry Roporting Module, 2010 for 2003-2008.
Australian Masothoioma Registry for 2011-2014.

Total number of cases in NSW nof identifed for 2010,

Wrkers Compansation {Dust Diseases) Boord Annusl Repod, 2014115 (Appendix 16).

From 2012/13 through to 2014/15, there has been a steady increase in both
the number and proportion of claims that the Liable Entities had brought against
them compared o the total number of cases of mesothelioma in NSW in total.
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4.4 Base i ion for of i claims
o Iaim exp in 201518 ined statle at the level observed over
the prior three years. Given the assumption made in our March 2013 valuation
{that this feature of lai xperi may i into future years),

experience to date since has provided support for this decision

The actual claims experience in 2015M186 has been in line with expectalions for
201516 in relation to overall mesothelioma claim numbers and thus has
provided no evidence for a higher level of claims reporting being assumed in
2016/17. Equally, the experience has provided no support for a reduction in the
levels of claims reporting to be assumed

In this context, we have maintained our assumption of 400 claims for 201617,

There remains material uncertainty in relation to this assumption and it is
possible that claims activity could increase next year, or fall next year.
Depending on the cutcome, further changes to the valuation assumptions and

therefore to the valuation results may be necessary in future periods. Such
changes could be material,

As a consequence of the above noled uncenainties, further volatility in relation
to the valuation result should be anlicipated for at least the next few years.
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5 Claims Experience: Claim numbers (non-

5.1

5.2

mesothelioma)

Overview

The table telow shows the number of claims reported by year of notification
and by disease category.

Table 5.1: Number of claims by disease type

uar of podlestion. abriios g Cancar. D G it ke

E 0 El ® v W
ol ® ® o % I
0 0 * 2 “ »
e 2 El E & &
e "3 2 I & n
Frd i % 3 7 “
basl m # Ll I ®
o " 5 o n @
ol o & & 3 @
e e o * kl =
xa " " * & ®»
2 -] n » 7 n
an w » 5 % =
o s F » n i
s Iy " » n '

Ty e £ ] s e

Ao 20 ) ) a %1

Asbestosis claims

For asbestosis, the three years of claims reporting from 2006/07 to 2008/09
saw claims reporting activity reasonably stable, at between 161 and 171 claims.
The years 200910 to 2012/14 saw claims reporting reduce, varying between
110 and 140 claims.

In 2014115, claims reporting increased to 144 claims although this reverted
back to 83 claims in 201516,

The experience in 2015/18 was the lowest level of asbestosis claims reported
since 2002/03.

There is some evidence thal the high level of claims reporting in 2014/15 was
due in part to an leration of claim lod and that this had
consequential effects to the low level of claims reporting in 2015/18.

Asa in ing our for 2016/17, we have taken the
average of the last bwo years as & base level.
We have d 120 asb is claime will be reported in 2018/17.
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5.3  Lung cancer claims

5.4

5.5

The number of lung cancer claims reported has typically been between 25 and
40 claims per annum,

However, reporting in 2010/11 and 2011/12 was substantially lower, at 13 and
15 claims respectively.

In 2014/15, the number of claims reported was 25. In 2015/16, the number of
claims reported has fallen to 18.

We have assumed 24 lung cancer claims will be reported in 201617,

ARPD & Other claims

The number of ARPD & Other claims, has typically been between 30 and 45
over the last nine years, although in 2013/14 the number of claims reported
was the highest observed historically, at 49 claims.

In 2014/15, the number of claims reported was 39. In 2015/16, the number of
claims reported has fallen to 29,

We have assumed 38 ARPD & Other claims will be reported in 2016/17.

Workers Compensation and Wharf claims

The number of G licn claims, i ing those met in full by the
Liable Entities’ Workers Cempensation insurers, has histerically exhibited
some degree of volatility. However ¢laims reperting activity has been relatively
slable in the most recent six years ranging from 27 claims to 34 claims,

In 2015/16 there were 29 claims reported, in 2014/15 there were 34 claims
reported and in 2013/14 there were 32 claims reported.

We have d 33 Work Comp ion claims will be reported in
201617,

It should be noted that the financial impact of this source of claim is not
substantial to the Liable Entities given the proportion of claims which are setiled
for nil liability against the Liable Entities (typically above 80%), which results
from the insurance arrangements in place.

For Wharf claims, there have been 11 claims reporied in each of the last two
years. We have assumed 12 claims will be notified in 2016M7. Again, the
financial impact of this source of ¢laim is not currently significant.
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56 Summary of base claims i i ing
mesothelioma)

Informing & view on the of claims proj to be reported in 201617,

5.7

we have taken into account the emerging experience inthe latest financial year
and a revised view of the expected numbers of claims reported based on recent
trends.

As outlined in ions 4 and 5, our ions as to the number of claims to
be reported in 2016/17 are as follows:

Table 5.2: Claim numbers experience and assumptions for 2016/17
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Annugiised figures do nel make alfowance for any seesonalily of reporling.
Thay by tha ha'. by & factor of 2.
201516 Expocied is the assumption selected for 2015416 in our previous valuation repor.

Baryulgil
Almost half of the claims settled which relate to asbestos mining activities at
ylgil (as di i in Section 1.2.3) have been settled with no

ligkility against the Liable Entities: and for the remaining settled claims, the
Liable Entities have typically borme one-third to one-half of the settlement
amount, reflecting the contribution by other defendants to the overall setilement
(including those which have since been placed in liquidation).

For the of our ion, we have esti there to be 12 future
claims rep ) ising 6 ioma claims, 3 other product and public
liability claims and 3 Workers Compensation claims.

We have assumed average claims and legal costs, net of Workers
Compensation insurances, breadly in line with those described in Section 7.

Our projected liability assessment at 31 March 2016 of the additional provision
(for claims nol yet reporled) that could potentially be required is an
undiscounted liability of $3.7m and a discounted liability of $3.1m, all of which
is deemed to be a liability of Amaca.
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6  Exposure and Latency Experience and Incidence

6.1
61.1

61.2

Pattern Assumptions

Exposure information
Average exposure period

The following chart shows the derivation of, and support for, the assertion that
claims have resulted from, on average, approximately 16 years of exposure.

Figure 6.1: Mix of claims by duration of exposure (years)
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It can be seen that generally the average duration of exposure has varied
betwean 14 years and 18 years and is curmently 15.5 years.

Exposure informalion from claims notified to date

We have revi the actual exp infe i i for claims notified
to date. This has been conducted by using the exposure daltes stored in the
claims database al an individual claim level and identifying the number of
person-years of exposure in each exposure year. We have reviewed the pattern
of exposure for each of the disease types separately, although we note that
they all tend to follow a similar pattern.
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Figure 6.2: Exposure (person-years) of all Liable Entities’ claimants to
date
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Mate: This chart has included worker and wharf claims using the disease types related to those
claims.

The chart shows that, currently, the peak year of exposure for claims reported
to date is in 1970. It should be recognised that there is a degree of bias in this
analysis in that the claims notified to date will tend to have arisen from the
earlier periods of exposure.

Qver time, we expact the right-hand side of this curve to develop and the peak
year of exposure 10 trend towards the early-1970s to mid-1970s, and an
increase in the absclute level at all pericds of exposure as more claims are
notified and the associated exposures from these are included in the analysis.

The low level of from 1887 (about 5% of the total)
is not unexpected given that all products ceased being manufactured by the
Liabie Entilies by 1987. The exposure after thal date likely results frem usage
of preducts already produced and sold before that date.

The chart above is a cumulative chart of the position to date and does not show
temporal trends in the allocation of claims to exposure years.

For example, one would expect that more recently reported claims should be
associated with, on average, later exposures; and that claims reported in future
years would continue that trend towards later exposure pericds.
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6.2

To understand better these temporal trends, we have modelled claimants’
exposures for each past claim report year. The chart below shows the analysis
for mesothelioma claims onky.

Figure 6.3: Exposure (person years) of all mesothelioma claimants to date
by report year and exposure period
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As can be seen in the chart above, there has been a general increasing shift
towards the exposure period after 1970, evident by the downwards trends in
the chart from left to right indicating that an increasing proportion of the
claimants’ exposure relates to more recent exposure periads,

For example, pre-1970 exposures made up 55% of mescthelioma claims
exposures in 2005/08 but only 35% of claims exposures in 2015/18

We would expect that such a trend should continue for some time o come and

that an increasing proportion of the exposure (in relation 10 fulure reported
claims) will relate to the period 1981/82 to 1985/85.

Latency period of reported claims

Qur latency medel for mesclhelioma assumes the latency period from the
average date of exposure is normally distributed with @ mean latency of 35
years and a standard deviation of 10 years.

We have analysed the actual latency period of the reported claims of the Liable
Entities in order lo test the validity of these assumptions.

We have measured the average actual latency peried from the average date of
exposure o the date of notification of a claim,
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In strict epidemiclogical terms, the latency period should be measured from the
date of first exposure to the date of diagnosis.

Because our model utilises latency assumptions from the average date of
exposure, the latency period reported in the following charls is not directly
camparable with that referred to in epidemiclogical literature.

As indicated in Section &, the average pericd of exposure for claimants against
the Liable Entities is approximately 16 years. This means the actual latency
period from the dale of first exposure is approximately 8 years greater than
indicated in the following charts.

Furthermere, given that the date of notification lags the date of diagnosis by
approximately & to 8 menths for heli and by approxi ly 2 years
for ner-mesothelioma disease types, the latency trends shown in the following
charls might slighlly overstate the latency to diagnosis.

The charts below show the average latency observed for claims reported in
each repont year from 2000/01 to 201516, and the 25th percentile and 75th
percentile chsenvations.

Figure 6.4: Latency of mesothelioma claims
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The above chart indicates that the observed average latency peried from the
average exp! is pproxi 43 years for

Epidemiological studies tend to suggest that the observed latency period (from
first exposure) for mesothelioma is between 4 and 75 years, with an average
latency of arcund 35 to 40 years and an implied standard deviation of
approximately 11 years.
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Given the average period of exposure is 16 years, thisimplies our mean latency
assumplion from the date of first exposure is approximately 43 years (being 35
+ ¥*16). Qur mode! therefore generally accords with epidemiolegical literature
and, if anything, slightly longer ies than epidemiclogical studies
suggest.

Al present, given that we are approximately 40 to 45 years after the main peried
of exp , claims ly being d reflect a broad mix of claims of
varying latency periods. Accordingly, any analysis of the observed average
latency peried of reported claims during the most recent 5 to 10 report years:

+ Should provide a good indicater of the underlying average latency
period of each disease type; and

+ Should have shown an upwards trend given the reduction in exposure
in the late 1970 and 1980s.

Qver the past ten years, the observed average latency of mesothelioma claims
reported in a report year has increased from 37 years to 43 years, increasing
at a rate of about 0.6 years with every year that passes.

The observed average latency of claims reported in future report years should
also be expected to show a further upward trend in the coming years

The y observed iation of the latency periodis 7.5 years.

The claims experience to date and the assumptions selected seem to accord
with epidemiclegical research in relation 10 mesothelioma, once the relevant
adjustments to standardise onto a consistent terminology are made.

The trend in latency periods for other disease types is shown in the following
charts,
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Figure 6.5: Latency of asbestosis claims
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Figure 6.6: Latency of lung cancer claims
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Figure 6.7: Latency of ARPD & Other claims
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The average cbserved latency periods for the other disease types show a more
surprising trend, appearing to be longer than epidemiclogical literature has
tended to suggest.

A summary of our underlying latency assumptions by disease type are shown
below. The mean and standard deviation values quoted are applied to a normal
distibution modal for the latency period.

Table 6.1: latency from
average date of exposure to date of notification

Standard
Mean latency  deviation of
{years) latency (years)

These assumptions are unchanged from the previous valuation.

An indication of how different ions would affect the incidence curve and
therefore the number of IBNR claims is as follows:

* Ahigher mean latency period would increase the peak period of claims
reporting (i.e. a higher number of IBNR claims).




]
M Valuation of the asbostos-related disease

Sulling [nagh Sonymiy liabilities of the Liable Entities to be met by the AICF Trust

Effective a5 at 31 March 2016
19 May 2016

6.3
6.3.1

632

+ A lower standard deviation would lead to a faster decay in the number
of claims being reported after the peak period of claims reponing (i.e.
fewer IBNR claims).

Modelled peak year of claims

Based on he application of our exposure model and our latency model, and
the i contained explicitly or implicitly within those models, as
described in detail in Section 3.4, the peak year of notification of claims
reporling against the Liable Entities for each disease type (excluding
mesothelioma) is modelled to be as follows:

Table 6.2: Modelled peak year of claim notifications

Current valuation Previous valuation
i 2008/09

2008/00
201001 2010111
2007108 2007/08
2000001 2000101
2007108 - 2007/08
These 1S are and reflect no o the

exposure data and no changes to the latency model assumplions at this time.

We note that whilst the “modelled peak” derived from our model is as shown
above, this does not automatically translate to, nor does it imply that, the
“highest claims reporling year” will be those years. This is because variation
from year to year is expected due to normal 'stalistical variation’ in claim
numbers.

P fal  future i i and impact on future valuations for
mesothalioma claims reporting
At 31 March 2014, we modified the inci patiern for to

reflect the heig d claims raporting that d in 2013/14. We adopted a
peak period of reporting of 2014/15 to 201617,
That change in incidence pattern has been maintained at the current valuation

given thal actual experience has been broadly in line with expectations for
2015186,

Should mesothelioma claims reporting continue to escalate, further valuation
rasponses in fulure years may be nacessary.
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6.4
6.4.1

Such responses would also likely lead 10 the need to make additional

adjusiments to the longer-lerm incidence pattern assumptions and those

changes could be material to the valuation result.

The experience from 2012/13 to 2015/16 has created additional uncerainty in

setting valuation assumptions fer mesothelioma claim numbers and this means

that we expect additional valuation volatility for the next few years,

That additional volatility is likely to remain until such time as sufficient

experience has been gathered to determine if the recent claims experience was
al of is a more feature of future levels of mesothelioma

claims reporting.

Pattern of future claim notifications assumed

Mesothelioma
The following chart shows the pattern of future notifications which have resulted
frem the of our ay as in Section 8.3

Figure 6.8: Projected future claim notifications for mesothelioma
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6.4.2 Otherdisease types

We have projected the future number of claim notifications from the curve we
have derived using our exposure model and our latency model. We have
applied this curve to the base number of claims we have estimated for each
diseass type for 201617 as summarised in Section 5.8,

The following chart shows the pattern of future notifications which have resulted
frem the application of our exposure and latency model and the recalibration of
the curve to our revised expectations of claims reporting activity for 2016/17.

Figure 6.9: Projected future claim notifications for other disease types
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7 Claims Experience: Average Claims Costs and

71

Average Legal Costs

Overview

We have analysed the average claim awards, average plaintififother cosls and
average defendant legal costs by disease type in arriving at our valuation
assumplions.

The table below shows how the average settlement cost for non-nil attritional
claims has varied by client settiement year. All data have been converted into
mid 2015/16 money terms using a historical base inflation index of 4% per
annum,

We refer to these amounts as “inflated average attritional awards" in the charts
and tables that follow.

The average amounts shown hereafter relate to the average amount of the
contribution made by the Liable Entities, and does not reflect the total award
payable to the plaintiff unless this is clearly stated to be the case,

In particular, for Workers Compensation the average award reflects the
average contribution by the Liable Entities for ¢laims in which they are joined
but relates only to that amount of the award determined against the Liable
Entities which is not met by a Workers Compensation Scheme or Policy.
Table 7.1: Average attritional non-nil claim award (inflated to mid 2015/16
money terms)

Chent Setthenont Mesothelomn  Asbestosls  Lung Cancer ARPD & Othwr
Year
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7.2 Mesothelioma claims

In setting our ption for ioma, we have i average
attritional awards over the past 3, 4 and 5 years.

Figure 7.1: Average attritional awards (inflated to mid 2015/16 monay
terms) and number of non-nil claims settlements for mesothelioma claims
(excluding large claims)
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The chart shows the historical variabilty in average claim sizes for
mesothelioma, ie. from $284,000 to $351.000 in mid 201518 money terms.

The average of the past three years is $314,000; the average of the past four
years is $317,000 and the average of the past five years is $319,000.

The experience in 2015/16 was 12% below expectations.

Taking all of the above factors into consideration, we have adopted a valuation
assumplion of $320,000 for mesothelioma claims in mid 2015/16 money terms,

This P a4% ion in inflati i terms.
We have been advised by AICF that changes te the Wrongs Act in Victeria will
result in damages being ded for gratui services (also referred to as

Sullivan vs. Gordon) (see Section 1.3.3 of this report for further explanation).

We have allowed for this impact by applying an additional loading of
approximately $70,000 per claim for Victorian claims, based on past experience
of the cost of Sullivan vs Gerdon in NSW. As claims from Victoria contribute
around 30% of mesothelioma claims by number, this has resulted in an overall
loading of $20,000 per claim across all mesothelioma claims.
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Accordingly, our overall average size assumption for mesothelioma claims is
$340,000.

Table 7.2: A ge i claims pti

Claim sattlement year
Valuation Report 2014116 201616

31-Mar-15
31-Mar-16

Note: 2014715 setliomonts oro In 2014115 dollars whilst 201516 solfemants are in 201516
doliars:

Itis worth noting the variation between the cost of direct claims and cross claims
and batween the number of defendants in a “direct claim”.

Figure 7.2: Average attritional awards (inflated to mid 2015116 money
terms) split between Direct claims and Cross claims
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Figure 7.3: g awards to mid 2015/16 money
terms) by number of defendants for Direct claims
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Average mesothelioma claim sizes payable by the Liable Entities have fallen in
recent years. It can be seen from the above charts that this has occurred both
for single-defendant cases (where the Liable Entilies pay 100% of the award)
and multi-defendant cases (where the Liable entities are on average paying less
than 80% of the total amount awarded to the claimant).

The reduction in average claim sizes is primarily a result of the lower proportions
of mesothelioma clamants under the age of 60 (see Figure 4.7 of this report).

This has resulted in a lower proportion of mescthelioma claims costing $500,000
or more. The variability of average mesothelioma claim sizes by decade of age
is shown in Figure 9.4 of this report.
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7.3  Asbestosis claims

For asbestosis, it can be seen from Table 7.1 that the period since 2003/04 has
had volalile average claim size experience, with average claim sizes ranging
frem $100,000 to $163.000 (in mid 2015/16 money terms).

Figure 7.4: Average awards (inflated to mid 201516 money terms) and
number of non-nil claims settlements for asbestosis claims
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The average of the past three years is $103,000; the average of the past four
years is $112,000 and the average of the past five years is $115,000.

In setting an assumption, we also note there has been one asbestosis claim
settled for mere than $1.6m in 2015/16 money terms (i.e. it is a “large claim”
and is not shown in the above analysis).

Taking all of the above factors into consideration, we have adopted a valuation

assumplion of $115,000 for asbestosis claims in mid 2015/16 money terms,
This i P ts a 6% di in inflati j terms.

Table 7.3: a claims

Claim settlement year
Valuation Report 2014118 2015116

Neto: 2014015 sotllomonts ore in 207475 collars whilst 201516 setifomonts are in 201818
dellars
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7.4  Lung cancer claims

The average award for lung cancer claims has exhibited some volatility in the
past five years, although this is not unexpected given the small volume of claim
settlements (approximately 15 to 30 claims per annum).

Figure 7.5: Average awards (inflated to mid 201516 money terms) and
number of nen-nil claims settlements for lung cancer claims
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The average of the past three years is $122,000; the average of the past four
years is $124,000 and the average of the past five years is $128,000.

Al this valuation, we have adopled an average award size of $130,000, which
troadly represents the average observed experience in recent years but also
takes into consideration the historic volatility in average cost of this disease
type. This ion represents a d of 5% in inflation-adj d terms
from our previous assumption

Table 7.4: Average lung cancer claims assumptions

Claim settlement year

Valuation Report 2014115 2015016
31-Mar-15 135,000 143,100
[ 31-Mar-16 | wa 130000 |
Nota: 2014715 settioments are in 201445 dollars whilst 201516 settlements are in 2015/16

oliars.
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7.5 ARPD & Other claims

The average award size over the past nine years has been relatively stable,
with the exceplion of the low average award sizes observed in 2007/08 and
2014115,

Figure 7.6: Average awards (inflated to mid 201516 money terms) and
number of non-nil claims settlements for ARPD & Other claims.
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For ARPD & Other claims, the average of the past three years is $93,000; the
average of the past four years is $94,000 and the average of the past five years
is $87,000.

Taking all of the above faclors into consideration, we have adopted a valuation
assumplion of 595,000 for ARPD & Other claims in mid 2015/16 money terms.
This il ts a 6% di in inflati djusted terms.

Table 7.5: Average ARPD & Other claims assumptions

Claim settlement year

Valuation Report 201415 2015/16
31-Mar-15 95,000 100,700
31-Mar-16 wa 95,000

Neta: 2014015 selllomands ave in 201445 dellars whilst 2015710 settlements are in 2018176
oeliars
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7.6 Workers Compensation claims

The average award for non-nil Workers Compensalion claims has shown a
large degree of volatility.

Figure 7.7: Average awards (inflated to mid 2015/16 money terms) and
number of non-nil claims for G claims
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It should be noted that the high average claim size in 2011/12 is due to one
claim of $300,000 (in 2011712 values). Furthermore, we understand that this
claim payment was able to be recovered from the workers compensation
insurer at a later date,

There have been no non-nil claims settled in 2015/16.

At this valuation, we have adopted an average award size of $147 500, which
is broadly unchanged from our previous valuation.

This assumption is not material 1o the averall liability given the high praporion
of claims which are settlied with no retained liability against the Liable Entities.

Table 7.6: A ge Wi Comp lion claims P
Claim settlement year
Valuation Report 2014115 2016/16
3-Mar-15 140,000 148,400
31:Mar-16 wa 147,500

Nota: 2074115 setllaments are in 201445 dollars whilst 201516 settlemants are in 201516
dollars.
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7.7 Wharf claims

For wharf claims, the average of the past three years has been $112,000; the
average of the past four years has been $100,000 and the average of the past
five years has been $99,000.

Figure 7.8: Average awards (inflated to mid 201516 money terms) and
number of non-nil claims settlements for wharf claims
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The experience in 2008/09 was impacted by one large claim of almost
$600,000 (in 2008/09 values). In the absence of this claim, the average claim
size for that year would have been $117,000.

We have adopted a valuation assumption of $106,000 in mid 2015/16 money
terms which is ged from our previ valuation in inflati dj
terms. Given the small volume of wharf claims, this assumption is not financially
significant to the overall results.

Table 7.7: Average wharf claims assumplions

Claim settlement year

Valuation Report 2014115 2015016
31-Mar-15 100,000 106,000
[ 31-Mar-16 | wa I 106,000 |

Nota: 2014715 seillomants are in 201445 dollars whilst 2015716 seiffements are in 201816
oliars.
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7.8 Mesothelioma large claim size and incidence rates

There have been 63 mesothelioma claims settled with awards in excess of $1m
in 2006/07 money terms. All of these claims are product and public liability
claimg.,

Figure 7.9: Distributicn of individual large ¢laims by settiement year
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Inaggregate these claims have been settied for $134.7m in mid 2015/16 money
terms, at an average cost of approximately $2.14m. There have been two
claims of more than $5.0m each in mid 2015/16 money terms.

Al the 31 March 2016 valuation, there are no large mesothelioma claims that
are open

In selecting a large claim incidence rate, or expected annual number of large
claims, we have analysed the number of large claims by year of notification.

The chart below shows the number of claims that are currently assessed as
large. We have separately shown the number of claims that have been settled
and the number of claims that are yet to settle but are currently anticipated to
be setiled as a large claim; although we note that at this valuation, there are no
such pending large claims.
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Figure 7.10: Number of mesothelioma large claims by year of natification
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We have assumed a future large claim incidence rate of 2.00% over all future

years. This equates to an assumption of 8 large claims being received in

2016/17. The incidence rate assumplion is reduced from our assumption of

2.50% atthe previous valuaticn,

For the average large claim size, we have adopted a valuation assumption of

€2.14m in mid 2015/18 meney terms which is in line with our previcus

assumplion in inflation-adjusted terms.

Implicitly, this allows for the occasional $5.0m claim atan incidence rate broadiy
lent to past experi (approxis one such claim every five years).

As a consequence, the overall claim cost loading per nen-nil mesothelioma
claim {excluding legal cost allowances) to make allowance for large claims is
£42,800 (being 2.00% x $2,140,000). This is a 20% reduction from our previous
valuation assumption of $53, 265 (in 2015/16 money terms) (being calculated
as 2.50% x $2,010,000 x 1.06).

In relation to legal costs, we have made an additional allowance for plaintiff
legal costs to allow for those instances where such costs are made additional
to, rather than included with, the claims award and also for defence costs.

The actual incidence of, and setlement of large claims is not readily

P and iations will accur from year to year due to random
fluctuations because of the small numbers of large claims (between 5 and 10
per annum).
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7.9

For other disease types, we observe that there has been (in 2015118) one
asbeslosis claim which exceeds the “large claims threshold”. We have made
implicit allowance for this claim in setting our attritional claim size assumption

for that disease type.

Summary average claim cost assumptions

The ing table a of our average claim cost assumptions
atthis ion, and those atthe p valuation,
Table 7.8: Summary average claim cost assumptions
Previous
Valuation Valustion
Asbestosis 115,000 121,900
Lung Cancer 130,000 143,100
ARPD & Other 5,000 100,700
Wharf 108,000 108,000
Workers Compensation 147,500 148.400
Average Size: Average Size:
Mescthelioma Large $2.14m, $2.13m.
Claims (award only) Frequency: Frequency:
2:00% 2.50%

Nota: Both the cumen! valuslion assumption and the provious valustion assumption are
axprossad in 201516 monty larms,
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7.10 Defence legal costs
7.10.1 Non-nil claims

The average defence legal costs for non-nil claims by setiiement year have
been relatively stable over the last ten years for mesothelioma, asbestosis and
ARPD & Other.

The average defence cosls for lung cancer have shown a greater degree of
variability, although this is not unexpected given the small velume of claim
settlements (approximately 15 to 30 claims per annum).

Figure 7.11: Average defence legal costs (inflated to mid 201516 money
terms) for non-nil claims settlements by settlement year
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Nota: The chart does net indlude average defance costs for Whar' and Werker daims dua fo the
smaller number of elaims invelved and the varabiily that 0xists 85 & CoNSequence.

For mesothelioma and asbestesis, defence legal costs have averaged between
£16,000 and $20.000 over the past three to five years.

For lung cancer, the average of the past three years is $14,000; the average of
the past four years is $15,000 and the average of the past five years is §18,000.

For ARPD & Other, the average of the past three to five years is around
$19,000.
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7.10.2 Nil claims

The average defence legal costs for nil claims by settlement year has been
volatile for all disease types.

For mesothelioma, the volalility is a consequence of low nil settlement rate,
meaning that there may be 20 to 30 nil claims in any year.

For the cther disease types, the number of nil claims might typically be of the
order of 10 claims per annum for each disease type.

Figure 7.12: Average defence legal costs (inflated to mid 201516 money
terms) for nil claims settlements by settlement year
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Nete: The chart does nel include average defance costs for Whar' and Warker caims due to the
smailer number of olaims inveived and the variabiily [hat exists 85 a consequence.

7.10.3 Large claims

We have made a sep for legal costs of $80,000 per
large claim.

The average defence legal costs across all 63 large claims has been $143,000
although this has generally been trending downwards over time.
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1 Y o legal costs
The following lable provides s summary of our defendant legal costs
assumplions at this valuation, and those d at the previ I

Table 7.9: Summary average defendant legal costs assumptions

Current Valuation vious Valuation
Non Hil i i

Note: Both the cumen! valuslion assumption and the previous valushion assumplion are
GXPrOSEOd in 201516 monGy loms.
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8 Claims Experience: Nil Settlement Rates

8.1 Overview

We have analysed the nil settlement rates, being the number of nil settlements
expressed as a percentage of the total number of setliements (nil and non-nil).

The table below shows the observed nil settlement rates by disease type and
by settiement year.

Table 8.1: Nil settlement rates

Ashastosis  Lung Cancer

sEawERyzyEzy

$EIEHPISSEIIR
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8.2 Mesothelioma claims

The following chart shows the number of claims settled for nil cost, the total
number of claims setiled and the implied nil settliement rate for each settllement

year.
Figure 8.1: i nil claims
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In idering the future nil settl rale ion, we note the foll

The nil setlement rate for the past three years has averaged 6.1%. for
the past four years has averaged 6.8% and for the past five years has
averaged 7.2%. Each of these is significanlly impacted by the 3% rale
observed in 2013/14.

The nil setilement rate for the 2013714 year at 3% has been the lowest
nil setilement rate observed historically,

« During the past six years, the nil setflement rate has exhibited
considerably volatility varying between 3% and 10%.

The nil settlement rate for 2015/16 was 6.3% and compared with our
assumption (at 31 March 2015) of 7.5%.

Taking all of these factors into i ion, we have a future nil
settlement rate of 7.0%, a from our p i plion of
7.5%.
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8.3 Asbestosis claims
As with , the hi: i 15 nil settliement rate has been
volatile,
Figure 8.2: nil claims.
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In idering the future nil rate ption, we note the

+ The nil settlement rate for the past three years has averaged %, for
the past four years has averaged 11% and for the past five years has
averaged 10%.

+ The nil setlement rate for 2015/16 at 6% is the lowest nil setlement
rate in the past 12 years, noting that the nil setllement rate for 2010/11
‘was also at 6%.

Taking all of these factors into consideration, we have d a future nil
settlement rate of 8 5%, a d from our previ fuati lion of
9.0%.
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8.4 Lung cancer claims

Given the small volumes of claims, volalility in the nil setllement rate for lung
cancer claims is to be expected.

Figure 8.3: Lung cancer nil claims experience
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In idering the future nil rate ion, we note the

The nil settlement rata for the past three years has averaged 12%, for
the past four years has averaged 14% and for the past five years has
averaged 16%. Each of these is significantly impacted by the 3% rate
observed in 201314,

The nil setilement rate for the 2013714 year at 3% has been the lowest
nil settlement rate in the past 15 years;

* During the past six years, the nil settlement rate has exhibited
consicerably volatility varying between 3% and 41%.

The nil settlement rate for 2015/16 was 25% and this compared with
our assumption (at 31 March 2015) of 15%.

Taking all of these factors into i ion, we have a future nil
settlement rate of 20%, an increase from our previous assumplion of 15%.
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8.5 ARPD & Other claims

As with other disease types, there has been significant volatility in the historical
nil settlement rate, given the lew numbers of claims for this disease.

Figure 8.4: ARPD & Other nil claims experience
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The nil settlement rate for the past three years has averaged 10%, for the past

four years has averaged 13% and fer the past five years has averaged 13%.

We have selected 13% as our nil setlement rate assumption, This is
from our previ i ion of 13%.
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8.6 Workers Compensation claims

The nil setiement rates for Workers Compensation claims have been high and
reflect the portion of claims whose costs are fully met by a Workers
Cempensation Scheme or Policy. The proportion of such claims which are fully
met by insurance has been relatively slable since 1997/98, typically varying
between 80% and 100%.

The nil setlement rate has been in excess of 0% for seven of the past ten
years, and it has been above 0% for nine out of the past ten years,

Figure 8.5: Workers Compensation nil claims experience

150 100%
oo
7 0% !
E % 13
° ® % g
T %
%W e
] sl |
» 0%
1%
o

o
03 04 2005 2005 2007 2008 2000 F010 2001 N2 N3 204 015

Sattlamant yaar

of rd clwimes seftiments e

We have selected 97% as our nil settlement rate assumption, an increase from
our previous valuation assumption of 95%,

The cverall financial impact of this assumption is not material.
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8.7 Wharf claims

During the past six years, the nil setllement rate has exhibited considerably
volatility for wharf claims, varying between 0% and 40%.

The nil settlement rate for the past three years has averaged 12%. for (he past
four years it has averaged 18% and for the past five years it has averaged 17%.

Figure 8.6: Wharf nil claims experience
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We have anil rate ion of 18%, a from

our previous valuation assumption of 20%.

Given the low volume of claims activity for wharf claims, this assumplion is
highly subjective but is alse not material to the overall liability assessment,
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8.8 Summary assumptions

The following table provides a summary of our nil settlement rate assumptions

at this val and those d at the previous valuation.
Table 8.2: y nil rate
Current Previous
Valuation Valuation
Mesothelioma 7.0% 7.5%
Asbestosis 8.5% 9.0%
Lung Cancer 20.0% 15.0%
ARPD & Cther 13.0% 13.0%
Wharf 18.0% 20.0%
Workers Compensation 7.0% 95.0%
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9 Economic and Other Assumptions

91

9.2

8.21

Overview

The two main ic assumplions

quired for cur ion are:

+ The underlying claims inflaticn assumptions adopled to project the
future claims settlement amounts and related costs.

« The discount rate adopted for the present value determinations.
These are considered in turn in Sections 9.2 to 9.4,
We also discuss the basis of derivation of other assumptions, being:

+ The cross-claim recovery rate: and

* The pattern of settiement of fulure reported claims and pending claims.

Claims inflation

We are required to make assumptions about the future rate of inflation of claims
costs. We have adopted a standard Australian actuaial claims inflation model
for liabilities of the type considered in this report that is based on:
= An underlying, or base, rale of general economic inflation relevant o
the liabilities, in this case based on wage/salary (eamings) inflation; and
+ A rate of superimposed inflation, i.e. the rate at which claims costs
inflation exceeds base inflation.
Base inflation basis
Ideally, we would aim to derive our long term base inflation assumptions based
on observable market indicators or other econemic benchmarks. Unfortunately,
such indicators and benchmarks typically focus on inflation measures such as
CPI {e.g. CPl index bond yields and RBA inflation targels).

We have derived our base inflation assumption from CPl based indicators
together with long term CFI / AWOTE ralativities.

8.2.2 CPlassumption

We have i two indi for our CPI
* Market implied CPI measures.
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+ RBA CPI inflation targets,
We have measured the financial market implied expectations of the longer-term

rate of CPI by to the gap the yield on C: !l
Government Bonds and the real yield on Commonwealth Government CPI
index-linked bonds.

The chart below shows the yields available for 10-year Commonwealth
Govemnment Bonds and Index-linked bonds. The gap between the two
represents the implied market expectation for CFI at the time.

Figure 9.1: Trends in Bond Yields
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It can be seen that the implied rate of CPI has varied between 1.5% per annum
and 4.2% per annum during the past 10 years,

At 31 March 2016, the effective annual yigld on long-term Commonweaith
Government Bonds was 2.6% per annum (31 March 2015 2.5% per annum)
and the equivalent effective real yield on long-term index-linked bonds was
approximately 1.1% per annum (31 March 2015: 0.6% per annum). This implies
current market expectations for the long-term rate of CPI are of the order of
1.5% per annum.

In censidering this resull we note thal:

« The yield on both neminal and CPI-linked Commonwaalth Government
Bonds is driven by supply and demand. The yields on beth, and their
rélativity, are subject to some volatility.
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+ The RBA's long lerm target is for CPI to be maintained between 2% and
3% per annum.

+ The implied CPI rate stayed consistently above 3.2% per annum from
March 2006 to September 2008, peaking at almost 4.2% in May 2008,

»  Since October 2008, the implied rate of CPI has remained below 3.0%
per annum,

+ Since April 2015, the implied rate of CP1 has generally decreased from
alevel of 1.9% in Aprl 2015 to 1.5% in March 2016

Weighing this evidence together suggests a long term CFI inflation benchmark
of 2.50% to 3.00% per annum, albeit thatin the near term rates might be lower

Wages (AWOTE) / CPI relativity

The following chart summarises the annualised rate of AWOTE and CPI
inflatien, and their relativity, for the 1971 to 2015 peried. The years shown in
the chart are calendar years.

Figure 9.2: Trends in CPI and AWOTE
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In censidering the above, we note:

= The pericd from 1895 reflects largely 2 conlinucus period of economic
growth which may not be reflective of longer term trends.




]
kj:hb Valuation of the asbostos-related disease

utking thnoaph Sompinay: liabilities of the Liable: Entities to be met by the AIGF Trust
Effective a5 ot 31 March 2016
19 May 2016

+ The longer periods cover a range of business cycles, albeit that the
peariod from 1971 includes the unique events of the early 1970's (i.e.
general inflationary pressures, both locally and worldwide, and the
impact of high oil prices owing to the Oil Crisis in 1973).

Allowing for these factors, the historical data suggests a CPl / AWOTE relativity,
or gap, of approximately 1.75% tc 2.00% per annum.

Given a longer term CPI benchmark of 2.50% to 3.00%, this suggests a longer-
term wage inflation (AWOTE) assumption of 4.25% tlo 5.00% p.a.

8.2.4 Impact of claimant ageing and non-AWQTE inflation effects

The overall age profile of claimants is expected to rise over fulure years with
the censequent impact that, other factors held constant, claim amounts should
tend to increase more slowly than average wage inflation (exciuding any
societal ag. in age). This is due o both reduced
compensation for years of income or life lost, and a tendency for post-
retirement age benefits to increase at a rate closer to CPI than AWOTE.

Furthermore, we note that:

* some heads of damage, such as general damages and compensation
for loss of expectation of life, would typically be expecied to increase at
CPl or lower;

« other heads of damage, including loss of eamings, would be expected
1o increase al AWOTE (ignoring the ageing effect): and

= medical expenses and care cosls would be expecied lo increase in line
with medical cost inflation which in recent years has been considerably
in excess of AWOTE.
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Figure 9.3: Age profile of mesothelioma claimants by report year
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The chart indicates that the median age of mesothelioma claimants is

increasing

The claims experience does not indicate a considerable increase in the number
{or proportion) of younger claimants. By way of illustration, the proportion of
claimants below the age of 80 has reduced from 24% in 2003/04 to 8% in

2015/18.

The chart indicates that the trend for all of the lines in the graph is upwards,
indicating that the age profile of claimants is typically increasing.

The chart also indicates that the median age of claimants is increasing by
approximately 0.51 years each year, with the median age now in excess of 73

years.

Figure 9.4 shows how average claim size varies by decade of age.
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Figure 9.4: L] claim by decade

of age (inflated to mid-2015/16 money terms)

L0 ¢
L0000
e
L0000 1
LT
e -

l .
ot .
0 . 0.8

0.0 0.5 PR

Avernge wward

2090 0. 100
e tand of cisinant

The analysis suggests thal the average mesothelioma award reduces by

i 30% for each i ing decade of age when considering the
typical age range of the claimants (i.e, over 60 years of age), although it can be
seen that the rate of reduction in award sizes by decade of age decreases after
€0 years of age.

Weighing these various factors togather, and allowing for the relative mix of
claims batween and we ider thal a
reasonable assumption for the deflationary allowance for the impact of
increases in the average age of claimants upon average sizes is approximately
0.75% to 1.00% per annum.

Taking all of these factors into account, we have adopted a long-term base
inflaticn assumption of 4.25% per annum, This assumplion is therefore set after
having taken into account the negative effect of ageing upen claims awards.

This is from our previous leng-t ion for base inflation.

8.2.5 Adjustrnants to base inflation assurmptions in the short term

With the cumrent prevailing economic conditions, including lower yields and
implied lower cutlook for inflation measures, we consider it appropriate to select
lower short term assumptions for base inflation.

In the short term, we have reduced the base inflation adepted for 2016/17 and
2017/18 by 75 basis points relative to the longer-term assumplions (i.e. 3.5%
per annum).
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9.3
8.3.1

For 2018/2019 we have reduced the base inflation assumplion by 50 basis
points relative to the longer-term assumptions (i.e. 3.75% per annum), and for
2019720 we have reduced the base inflation assumption by 25 basis points
relative to the longer-term assumptions (i.e. 4.00% per annum).

We have assumed that the long-term rates of base inflation will apply from
2020/21 onwards.

Table 9.1 summarizes the base inflation assumptions we have selected for the
current and previous valuations

Table 9.1: Base inflation assumptions

Current Previous

Valuation Valuation
201518 na 3.75%
201617 3.50% 4.00%
201718 3.50% 4.25%
201819 3T5% 4.25%
2019720 4.00% 4.25%
Long-lerm 4.25% 4.25%

These assumptions apply both to claims awards and legal costs.

Superimposed inflation
Overview

Superimposed inflation is a term used by actuaries to measure the rate at which
claims escalate in excess of a base (usually wage) inflation measure.

As a result, superimposed infiation is a “catch-all” for a range of potential factors
affecting claims costs, including (but not limited to):

« Courts making compensation payments in relation to new heads of

damage;

+ Courts changing the levels of compensation paid for exisling heads of
damage;

«  Ad in medical ~for le, this could lead to
higher medical treatmant costs (e.g. the cost of the use of new drug
treatments);

* Allowance for medical costs to rise faster than wages because of the
use of enhanced medical technolegies;
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* Changes in life expectancy.

« Changes in retirement age — this would have the potential to increase
future ecanomic loss awards;

» Changes in the relative share of the liability to be borne by the Liable
Entities” (which we refer to as “the conlribution rate”) and changes in
the number of defendants joined in claims; and

+ Changes in the mix of claims costs by different heads of damage.

Additionally, we have considered the potential for these factors to be offsetlo
some extent by:

+ The potential for existing heads of damage to be removed, or for the
contraction of these heads of damage; and

+ Tne effect of an ageing population of claimants on the rate of infiation
of gverall damages, a compenent of which relates Lo economic loss. We
have already made some allowance for this by way of an adjustment to
the base inflation assumptlion.

Whilst the future rate of superimposed inflation is uncenain, and net predictable
from one year to the next, it is of nota that the average claim costs appear to
have been relatively stable in recent years (after adjusting for wage inflation).

However, the g of new or exp g heads of damage does not tend
to proceed smoothly but progresses in “steps”, depending on the outcome of
and other

8.3.2 Analysis of past rates of supenimposed inflation

We have reviewed the rate of inflation of claims costs by settlement year for the
past 18 years for mesothelioma claims. We have assessed this by analysing
uninflated claim costs and therefore Figure 9.5 measures the trend in the total
rate of claims inflation.

Figure 9.5 can then be used to determing the rate of inflation of claim awards
over and above base inflation (ie. measuring the rate of superimposed
inflation) in any one year or an i rate of i inflation over
a longer term, The rate of inflation of claims costs measured by this chart
therefore includes the negative effect of ageing upon claim awards.
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Figure 9.5: Average mesothelioma awards of the Liable Entities
(uninflated)
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From Figure 9.5, wa have the following observations in relation to the rate of
total claim inflation (i.e. including both base inflation and superimposed
inflation) of the Liable Entities’ share of claims awards:

+ Between 1998/99 and 2001/02, claims inflation of the Liable Entities'
share of mesothelioma claims awards averaged approximately 22.9%
per annum,

+  Between 2001/02 and 2008/09, ciaims inflation of the Liable Entiies’
share of mesothelioma claims awards averaged approximately 0.7%
per annum,

= Between 2008/09 and 201518, claims inflation of the Lisble Entities'
share of mesothelioma claims awards averaged approximately 1.4%
per annum,

+ The average rate of claims inflation of the Liable Entities' share of
mesothelioma  claims  awards  from 1998/99 to 2018M6 was
approximately 4.58% per annum, This would imply superimposed
inflation of around 0.25% per annum,

The actuarial approach for this report is to take an average view for
supermposed inflation to be applied over the leng-term, noting that there will
necessarily be deviations frem this average on an annual basis and that
cashfiows are projected for the next 50 or more years
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9.4

Furthermere, in considering the fulure rate of claim inflation, we have had
regard to some of the recent court decisions and the impact they can have
either directly or indirectly upon claim as well as a relatively lower
level of large claim setements in the most recent year.

Weighing all of the evidence together, and in particular recognising that the

period since 2001/02 has generally been benign and may not therefore be
flective of a long icn, we have adopted an assumed long-term

rate of future superimposed inflation of claims awards of 2.25% per annum.

This is from our pi

There is no superimposed inflation applied to legal costs.

The outcome of this assumption is a imposed inflation all " of

i $300m on a di central esti basis. The majority of
this " infiation arises in the projected cashfiows from
2020 to 2040,

Di rates: Ci Ith bond zero coupon yields

We have calculaled the zero coupon yield curve at 31 March 2016 underlying
the prices, and durati of C: Ith G: Bonds for
the purpose of discounting the liabilities for this report.

The use of such di rates is with Australian

practice for such liabilities, is in accordance with the Institute of Actuaries of
A lia's d PS300 and is also consistent with our
ur ing of the A ian accounting

The chart below shows the assumptions for the current valuation and the
previous valuation.
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Figure 9.6: Zero coupon yield curve by duration
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9.5 Cross-claim recovery rates
The following chart shows how the experi of clai ies has
varied over the last five years, both in monetary terms and expressed as a
percentage of gross payments.
Figure 9.7: Ci laim recovery
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Cross claim recoveries have reduced year on year since 2012/13, both in
absolute terms and as a percentage of gross payments.
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9.6

We have assumed that future levels of cross-claim recoveries will be 1.5% of
claims awards.

This is a d from the previ valuation ion of 2.0% at 31 March
2015,

Settlement Patterns

Triangulation methods are used to derive the past pattern of settement of
claims and are used in forming a view on future settlement patterns.

The following triangles provide an ill i ple of how we perform this:
Figure 9.8: Settlement pattern derivation for mesothelioma claims:
paid as % of ultimate cost
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Figure 9.9: Settlement pattern for claims:

paid as % of ultimate cost
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We have eslimated the seltlement pattern for future claim reporling as follows:
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Table 9.2: Settlement pattern of claims awards by delay from claim

reporting
Delay years}  Mesothelioma NM’.
mesothelioma
1 30.0% 50.0%
2 4.0% 12.08%
3 1.0% 2.0%
4 0.5% 0.5%
5 0.5% 0.5%
6 0.5% 1.0%
7 0.0% 1.0
3 0.0% 0.5%
9 0.5% 0.5%

These assumed setllements patlermns have been modified slightly since our
previous valuation, resulting in an assumption of a slight speeding up of both
heli and i claim setl
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10 Valuation Results

10.1

Central estimate liability

At 31 March 2018, our projected cenlral estimate of the liabilities of the Liable
Entities (the Discounted Central Estimate) to be met by the AICF Trust is
$1,904.1m (March 2015: $2,142.8m).

We have not allowed for the future Operaling Expenses of the AICF Trust or
the Liable Entities in the lizbility assessment.

The following table shows a summary of our central estimate liability

and P the current Wt with our p
Table 10.1: C i of central esti of liabilities
31 March 2016
3m $m

Gross of Kt of

insuranee Insurance insurance Netof insurance
| recoverior | tecoveres | recoverss racovaries
Tetal yninfiated and |
loma v vese | 2o 1435 15859
Infaten alkowarce 10064 I 733 3.0 1,110
Tetal inNated and
léea po amez | us2 24200 27429
Discounting alowance (575.0) | 52.2) (S22 8 (600.1)
Notpressntvalue labiiios | 24372 | 2334 15044 21028
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10.2 Comparison with p

In the absence of any change to the claim prejection assumptions from our
31 March 2015 valuation, other than allowing for the changes in the discount
rate, we would have projected a Di d Central Esti liability of
$2,0306m as at 31 March 2018, ie. a reduction of $1122m from our
31 March 2015 valuation result.

This decrease of $112.2m is due to;

+ A reduction of $114.0m, being the net impact of expected claims
payments (which reduce the liability) and the “unwind of discount”
(which increases the liability and reflects the fact that cashflows are now
one year nearer and therefore are discounted by one year less).

+  Ani of $1.8m g from ges to the yield curve between
31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016

Qur liability assessment at 31 March 2016 of 51,804, 1m represents a decrease
of $126.5m, which arises from changes to the actuarial assumptions.

The decrease of $128.5m is principally a consequance of:

* Lower average claim sizes and defence legal cost assumptions across
most disease types;

= Areduction in the assumed number of large mesothelioma claims;
. A in the proj number of ioma claims;

+ Lower claims inflation assumptions in the short-term (through to, and
including, 2019:20); and

+ Favourable experience for claims that were pending at 31 March 2015.
offset by

+ An allowance for the potential costs of Sullivan vs Gordon awards due
to the amendments to the Wrongs Act in the State of Victoria.

The following chart shows an analysis of the changein our liability assessments
from 31 March 2016 to 31 March 2016 on a discounted basis,

a7
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Figure 10.1: Analysis of change in central estimate liability (discounted
basis)
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The following chart shows an analysis of the change in our liability assessments
from March 2015 to March 2016 on an undiscounted basis.

Figure 10.2: Analysis of change in central estii liability
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The undiscounted liability as of 31 March 2018 has decreased from 52 588m
(based on the 31 March 2015 valuation) to $2427m. This represents a
decrease of $161m.
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10.3 Comparison of valuation results since 30 September 2006

We have analysed how our valuation results have changed since the Initial
Report (as defined in the A ded Final Funding Ag at30
2006,

The table below shows the results over time.

We have used the inflated and i results as the P We
consider this to be the most appropriate assessment as it removes the impacts
of changes in discount rates and the “urwind of the discount™.

Table 10.2: Comparison of valuation results since 30 September 2006
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The table shows that whilst there have been some years where there have

been increases and some years where there have been decreases arising from
to ial valuation ions. over the period from 20 September

2006 1o 31 March 2016 the valuation has deteriorated by $125m (4% of the

valuation contained in the Initial Report).

Interms of net cashflows, sctual net payments of $867m have been made since

30 Sep 2008. This comp. with an esti of $342m projected for
the same period (1 October 2006 to 31 March 2016) in the valuation at 30
September 2006,

After allowing for removal of the beneficial impact of HIH and other
commutations ($73m), actual net cashfiows have been approximately
£2m (0.2%) below those projected in the valuation at 30 September 2008,
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10.4 Cashflow projections
10.4.1 Histoncal cashffow expenditure

The following chart shows the monthly rate of expenditure by AICF relating to
lated claim over the pasl ning years.

Figure 10.3: Historical claim-related expenditure of the Liable Entities
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Gross cashflow payments in the 12 months to 31 March 2016 were $154.7m
(FY15: §154.3m).

Actual net cashflow in 201516 ($120.0m) was $26.1m (17%) lower than the
net cashflow prejected for 2015/18 ($155.1m) in our 31 March 2015 valuation
report.

In the of the HIH p . actual net was 524.1m (16%)
lower than the net cashflow projected for 2015716,

10.4.2 Future cashflow projections

Figure 10.4 shows the projected net cashflows underlying eur current valuation

and the projected net cashfiow projecti derlying our pi luation at

21 March 2015.

We have also indicated the actual annual net cashfiows for 2l financial years

since 2000/01 (the green bars) and the level of the actual net cashflows in the
b of HIH i ion proceeds (the purple bars represent

the incremental amount of those proceeds).
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Figure 10.4: Annual cashflow projections - inflated and undiscounted
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The projected inflated and undiscounted cashflows underlying this chart are
documented in Appendix B.

Given the extremely long-tailed nature of asbestos-related liabilties, a small
change in an individual ion can have a signi impact upon the
cashfiow profile of the liabilities.
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10.5 Amended Final Funding Agreement calculations
The A ded Final Funding Ag sets out the basis on which payments
will be made to the AICF Trust,

Additionally, there are a number of olher figures specified within the Amended
Final Funding Ag! that we are required to These are:

+ Discounted Central Estimate;

+ Term Central Estimate; and

+ Pericd Actuarial Estimate,
Table 10.3: Amended Final Funding Agreement calculations
= ]|

Eﬁscuunled Central Eslimate (net of cross-claim recoveries, 1.904.1
;Immmnoe and Other Recoveries) Lok

| Period Actuarial Esmate {nel of cross-claim recoveries, gross 5232
|of and Other -

Discounted value of cashflow in 201647 164.1

Dissgunted value of cashilow in 201748 180.2

Discountad value of cashilow in 201819 17eg

| Term Central Estimate (net of cross-claim recoveries, [ 1,896.7
|Insurance and Other i .

The actual funding amount dug at a particular date will depend upon & number
of factors, including:

« the net asset position of the AICF Trust at that time;

+ the free cash flow amount of the James Hardie Group in the preceding
financial year; and

+ the Period Actuarial Estimate in the latest Annual Actuarial Report.
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10.6 Insurance Recoveries

Our liability valuation has made allowance for a discounted central estimate of
Insurance Recoveries of $233.1m.

This estimate is comprised as follows:
Table 10.4: Insurance recoveries at 31 March 2016

Undigcounted central  Discounted contral

estimat estimate
27122 20372
s =20
%2 ek
8.2 1286
o1 0.3
5.3 231
24269 19041
108% 1%
22% 20%
2187
The combined bad and doublful debt rate is 2.0% on a discounted basis (2015:

3.4%).

Tha continued reduction in the rate of bad debt reflects the beneficial impact of
the cellection activity in relation to HIH since 2012/13 and the resolution of a
Scheme of Arrangament for an insolvent insurer.

The AICF Facility Agreement requires the Approved Actuary to calculate the
discounted central estimale value of centain Insurance Policies, being those
specified in Schedule 5 of the AICF Facility Agreement.

At 31 March 2016, the discounted central estimate of the Insurance Policies,
as specified in Schedule 5 of the AICF Facility Agreement, is $219 7m (March
2015: $237.9m).
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11 Uncertainty
11.1 Overview

There is uncertainty involved in any valuation of the liabilities of an insurance
campany of a self-insurer. The sources of such uncerainty include, but are nat
limited to:
« Parameter error - this is the risk that the parameters and assumptions
chosen ulimately prove not to be reflective of future experience.

+ Model error = this is the risk that the model selected for the valuation of
the liabilties ultimately proves not to be adequate for the projection of
the liabilities.

+ Legal and social developments — this is the risk that the legal
environment in which claims are settled changes relative to its current
and historical position thereby causing significantly different awards.

* Future actual rates of inflation being different from that assumed.
+ The general ecenomic envirenment being different from that assumed.

= Potential sources of axposure — this is the risk thal there exist sources
of exposure which are as yet unknown or unquantifiable, or for which
no liabilties have yet been observed, but which may trigger fulure
claims,

In the case of these inties are bated by the
extremaly long latency period from exposure to onset of disease and
notification of a claim. Asbestos-related claims often take in excess of 40 years
from original exposure to become notified and then settled, compared with an
average delay from exposure to settlement of 4-5 years for many other
compensaticn-type liabilites such as Comprehensive Third-Party injury
liabilities or other Werkers Compensation liabilities.

Specific forms of uncertainty relating to related disease i
include:
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+ The difficulty in guantifying the extent and pattern of past asbestos
exposures and the number and incidence of the ultimate number of lives
that may be aflecled by asbestos relaled diseases arising from such
past asbestos exposures;

=+ The timing of the peak level and future pattern of incidence of claims

for 3 i in light of the high level of claims
reporting activity in 2008/08, the lower levels of activity through to
201112 and the significant i in claims reporting in the next

three years lhrough to 2014/15;

= The propensity of individuals affected by diseases arising from such
exposure to file common law claims against defendants;

= The extent to which the Liable Entities will be joined in such fulure
common law claims;

+ The fact that the ultimate severity of the impact of the disease and the
quantum of the claims that will be awarded will be subject to the
outcome of gvents that have not yet occurred, including:

- medical and epidemiclogical developments, including those
relating to life expectancy in general;

- court inlerpretations;

legislative changes;

changes to the form and range of benefits for which

compensation may be awarded (“heads of damage”);

public attitudes to claiming;

the potential for fulure procedural reforms in NSW and other

States affecting the legal costs incurred in managing and

setting claims;

- potential third-wave exposures; and

social and economic conditions such as inflation.

11.2 Sensitivity testing

As we have noted above, there are many sources of uncertainty. Actuaries
often perform “sensitivity testing” to identify the impact of different assumptions
on future experience, lhereby providing an indication of the degree of
parameter o risk 10 which the i is
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Sensitivity testing may be considered as being a mechanism for testing “what
will the liabilities be if instead of choesing [x] for assumption [a] we choose [y]?"
It is also a mechanism for identifying how the result will change if experience
turns out different in a particular way relative te that which underlies the central

P As such, it provi an of the level of
variability inherent in the valuation.

We have performed some sensitivity tests of the results of our central estimate
ion. We have itivity tested the ing factors:

« number of claims notified: 10% above and below our central estimate
assumption (e.g. equating to 360 and 440 mesothelioma claims).

* average claim cost of @ non-nil claim. 5% above and below our
central estimate assumption.

+ nil sefilement rate: 2 percentage points above and below cur central
estimate assumption.

* superimposed inflation: being 0% per annum or 4% per annum over
all future years.

+ mesothelioma incidence pattern. we have tested two separale
atternative culcomes.

- Paftern 1 lakes our cenlral estimate pattern through lo
2025/28 but assumes an increased rate of joining of the
Liable Entities from 2026/27 onwards.

Paltern 2 takes patlern 1 and shifts it out by a further two
years, i.2, mesothelioma claims reporting does not begin to
reduce until after 2018/19. This also herefore impacts the
incidence pattem for all years after 201819,

There are other factors which influence the liability assessment and which could
be sensitivity tested, including:

+ The cross-claim recovery rate;

« The variation in timing of claim notifications (but with no change in the
overall number of notifications); and

= The pattern and delay of claim settl from claim notifi

We have not sensitivity tested these factors, viewing them as being of less
financial significance individually.
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11.3

We have not sensitivity tested the value of Insurance Recoveries as
uncerainties typically relate to legal risk and disputation risk, and it is not
ible to p isea itivity test in an manner.

We have not included a sensitivity test for the impact of changes in discount

rates although, as noted in this Report, in i rates cani
significant volatility to the Di Central Esti result rep ateach
year-end.

Results of sensitivity testing

The chart below shows the impact of various individual sensitivity tests on the
D ted Central Esti of the liabilities, and of a bined itivity test
of a number of factors.

Although we have tested multiple scenarios of each assumplicn, one cannot
gauge an overall potential range by simply adding these tests together.
Accordingly, we have prepared a range based on a combination of factors.

Figure 11.1: Sensitivity testing results — Impact around the Discounted
Central Estimate {in $m)

~--n-i =
PREPRAPENY| ==
[ ]
] m
| 1
e T
m.m,.,.I =
Ve i e | —
cosnonr| ]
- - 0 - - o -

107




M Valuation of the asbostos-related disease

Sulling [nagh Sonymiy liabilities of the Liable Entities to be met by the AICF Trust
Effoctive as at 31 Margh 2016
19 May 2016

Figure 11.2: Sensitivity testing results — Impact around the undiscounted
central estimate {in $m)
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The single most sensitive assumption shown in the chart is the peak period of
claims reporting against the Liable Enlities. Shifting the assumed period of peak
claimg reporting by a further 2 years for mesolhelioma from that currently
assumed of 2016/17 (i.e. assuming that claim reporting begins to reduce after
2018/19) together with increased claims reporting from 2028/27 onwards
relative to current ial projecti could add app by $560m (30%)
on a discounted basis to our valuation (as shown in Figure 11,1 by the scenario
labelled “mesothelioma incidence pattern (2)7).

Table 11.1: Summary results of sensitivity analysis ($m)

Undiscounted  Discounted

Central eslimate 24269 1,904.1
Low Scenario 1659.0 1.350.8
High Scenario 4,708.3 34328
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Whilst the table above indicates a range around the discounted central estimate
of liabilities of -$353m to +31,528m, the actual cost of lizbilities could fall outside
that range depending on the actual experience.

We further nole that these sensitivity test ranges are not intended to correspond
toa ified p ility of i ner are they intended to indicate an
upper bound or a lower bound of all possible outcomes,
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A Credit rating default rates by duration
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Standard & Poors’ 2014 Annual Global Corperate Default Study and Rating Transitions, April 2015,
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L relates to Lioyds' of London and Equitas; NR relates to companies which are Not Rated; R relates to companies which have been subject 1o

F y Action
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D Australian asbestos consumption and production data:
1930-2002

Figures in this table are in 000's metric tonnes.
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Accruals File
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F  Glossary of terms used in the Amended Final Funding
Agreement

The following provides a glossary of terms which are referenced in the Amended Final
Funding Agreement and upon which we have relied in preparing our report.

The operation of these definitions cannct be considered in isolation but instead need
1o be considerad in the context of the totality of the Amended Final Funding Agreement.
AICF means the trustee of the Asbestos Injuries Coempensation Fund from time to time,
in its capacity as trustee, initially being Asbestos Injuries Compensation Fund Limited,
AICF Funded Liability means:

(a) any Proven Claim;

(b} Operaling Expenses;

(] Claims Legal Costs;

{d} any claim that was made or brought in legal proceedings against a
Former James Hardie Company commenced before 1 December 2005

(e} Statutory Recoveries within the meaning and subject to the limits set
outin the Amended Final Funding Agreement;

[} a claim or category of claim which James Hardie and the NSW
Government agree in writing is a “AICF Funded Liability" or a category
of "AICF Funded Liability”.

but in the cases of paragraphs (a), (¢) and (d) excludes any such liabilities or claims to
the extent that they have been recovered or are recoverable under a Worker's
Compensation Scheme or Policy.

Claims Legal Costs means all costs, charges, expenses and cutgoeings incurred o
expected to be borne by AICF or the Fermer James Hardie Companies, in respect of
legal advisors, other advisors, expernts, court proceedings and other dispute resolution
metheds in conneclion with Personal Asbestos Claims and Marlew Claims but in all
cases ing any costs i asa of ing a Proven Claim.
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Concurrent Wrongdoer in relation to a personal injury or death claim for damages
under common law or other law (excluding any law introduced or i d in breach of
the restrictions on adverse regulatory or legislative aclion against the James Hardie
Group under the Amended Final Funding Agreement, and which breach has been
notified to the NSW Government in accordance with Amended Final Funding
Agreement), means a person whose acls or omissions, logether with the acts or
omigsions of one or more Fermer James Hardie Companies or Marlew or any member
of the James Hardie Group (whether or not together with any other persons) caused,
independently of each other or jointly, the damage or l0ss to another person thatis the
subject of that claim,

Contribution Clalm means a cross-claim or other claim under commen law or other

law Juding any law introduced or in breach of the restrictions on adverse

regulatory or legisiative action against the James Hardie Group under the Amended

Final Funding Agreement, and which breach has been nolified 1o the NSW
in with Final Funding Ag .

{a) for contribution by a Concurrent Wrongdoer against a Former James
Hardie Company or a member of the James Hardie Group in relation to
facts or circumstances which give rise to a right of a person to make a
Persenal Asbestos Claim or a Marlew Claim; or
(b} by another person who is entitled under common law (including by way
of contract) to be subrogated to such a first mentioned cross-claim or
other claim;
Discounted Central Estimate means the central estimate of the present value
{determined using the discount rate used within the relevant actuarial report) of the
liabilities of the Former James Hardie Companies and Marlew in respect of expected
Proven Claims and Claims Legal Cosls, calculated in accordance with the Amended
Final Funding Agreement.
Excluded Claims are any of the following liabiliies of the Former James Hardie
Companias:
(i) personal injury or death claims arising from exposure to Asbestos
oulside Australia;
(it} personal injury or death claims arising from exposure to Asbestos made
outside Australia;
(iii) claims for economic loss (other than any economic loss forming part of
the calculation of an award of damages for personal injury or death) or
loss of property, including those refating to land remediation and/or
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Asbestos or Asbestos products removal, arising out of or in connection
with Asb or Asb 4 " d. sold. distributed or
used by or on behalf of the Liable Entities;

{iv) any Excluded Marlew Claim;
V) any liabilities of the Liable Entities other than AICF Funded Liabilities.
Excluded Marlew Claim means a Marlew Claim:

{a) covered by the indemnities granted by the Minister of Mineral
Resources under the deed between the Minister, Fuller Earthmaoving
Pty Limited and James Hardie Industries Limited dated 11 March 1996;
or

(b} by a current or former employee of Marlew in relation to an exposure to
Asbestos in the course of such employment to the extent:

(i) the loss is recoverable under a Worker's Compensation Scheme
or Policy; or

(i) the Claimant is not unable to recover damages from a Marlew
Joint Tortfeasor in accordance with the Marlew Legislation;

5] by an individual who was or is an employee of a person other than
Marlew arising from exposure to Asbestos in the course of such
amployment by that other person where such loss is recoverable from
that persen or under a Worker's Compensation Scheme or Pelicy; or

{d) in which another defendant (or its insurer) is a Marlew Joint Tortfeasor
from whom the plaintiff is entiled to recover compensation in
proceedings in the Dust Diseases Tribunal, and the Claimant is not
unabie 1o recover damages from that Marlew Joint Tonfeasor in
accordance with the Marlew Legislation.

Former James Hardie Companies means Amaca, Amaba and ABN 80,

and Other means any proceeds which may reasonably be

ted to be d or ble for the account of a Former James Hardie
Company or lo result in the satisfaction (in whele or part) of a liability of a Former
James Hardie Company (of any natura) to a third party, under any product liability
insurance policy or public liability insurance policy or commutation of such policy of
under any cther contract, including any contract of indemnity, but excluding any such
amount recovered or recoverable under a Worker's Compensation Scheme or Policy.

Liable Entities see Former James Hardie Companies.

119




kping

cutting through complaxity

Valuation of the asbostos-related disease

Liabilities of the Liable Entilies to be mel by the AICF Trust
Effective a5 at 31 March 2016

19 May 2016

Marlew means Marlew Mining Pty Ltd {in liquidation), ACN 000 049 850, previcusly
known as Asbestos Mines Pty Ltd,

Marlew Clalm means, subject to the limitation on Statutory Recoveries, a claim which
satisfies one of the following paragraphs and which is not an Excluded Marlew Claim:

(a}

(b}

any present or future personal injury or death claim by an individual or

the legal p | rep ive of an individual, for d: under
common law or other law (excluding any law introduced or i din
breach of the ictions on adverse reg v or legislative action

against the James Hardie Group under the Amended Final Funding
Agreement, and which breach has been nofified to the NSW
G in with  the Final Funding
Agreement) which:

(i) arose or arises from exposure to Asbestos in the Baryulgil
region from Asbestos Mining Activities at Baryulgil conducted by
Marlew, provided that:

A the individual's exp: to Asb d wholly
within Australia; or

e where the individual has been exposed lo Ash both
within and outside Australia, the amount of damages
included in the Marlew Claim shall be limited to the
amount to the ion of the
which caused or contributed to the loss or damage giving
rise to the Marlew Claim which cccurred in Australia;

({0} is commenced in New South \Wales in the Dust Diseases
Tribunal; and

(i) is or could have been made against Marlew had Marlew not
been in external administration or wound up, or could be made
against Marlew on the assumption (other than as contemplated
under the Marlew legislation) that Marlew will not be in the future
in external administration;

any claim made under ion to relati islation by arelat
of a deceased individual (or personal representative of such a relative)
or (where permifled by law) the legal personal representative of a
deceased individual in each case where the individual, but for such
individual's death, would have been entitled to bring a claim of the kind
describad in paragraph (a); or
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{c) a Contribution Claim relating to a claim described in paragraphs (a) or
(b).
Marlew Joint Tortfeasor means any parson who is or would be jointly and severally
ligble with Marlew in respect of a Marlew Claim, had Marlew not been in external
administration or wound up, or on the assumgption that Marlew will not in the fulure be,
in external administration or wound up other than as contemplated under the Marlew
Legislation.

Payable Liability means any of the following:
(a) any Proven Claim (whether arising before or after the date of this dead);
(b} Operating Expenses;
{c) Claims Legal Costs;

(d) any liability of a Former James Hardie Company to the AICFL, however
anising, in respect of any amounts paid by the AICFL in respect of any
liability or etherwise on behalf of the Former James Hardie Company;

() any claim that was made or brought in legal proceedings against a
Former James Hardie Company commenced before 1 December 2005;

if if regulations are made pursuant lo section 30 of the Transaction
Legislation and if and o the extent the AICFL and James Hardie have
notified the NSW Government that any such liability is to be included in
the scope of Payable Liability, any liability of a Former James Hardie
Company to pay ameunts received by it from an insurer in respect of a
liability to & third party incurred by it for which it is or was insured under
a contract of insurance entered into before 2 December 2005, and

(a) Statutory Recoveries within the meaning and subject to the limits set
outin the Amended Final Funding Agreement,

butin the cases of paragraphs (a), (¢) and (g) excludes any such liabilities or claims to
the extent that they have been recovered or are recoverable under a Worker's
Compensation Scheme or Policy.

Period Actuarial Estimate means, in respect of a pericd, the central estimate of the

present value (determined using the discount rate used in the relevant actuarial report)

of the liabilites of the Former James Hardie Companies and Marlew in respect of

expected Proven Claims and Claims Legal Costs (in @ach case which are reasonably

expected to become payable in that pericd), befere allowing for Insurance and Other
. calculated in with the Final Funding Agreement.
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Personal Asbestos Claim means any present or future personal injury or death ¢laim
by an individual or the legal p il ive of an individual, for d

under common law or under other law (excluding any law intreduced or imposed in
breach of the restrictions on adverse regulatory or legisiative action against the James
Hardie Group under the Amended Final Funding Agreement, and which breach has
been notified to the NSW Government under the Amended Final Funding Agreement)
which:

(a) arnises from exposure to Asbestos occurning in Australia, provided that:

(i) the individual's exposure lo Asbestos occurred wholly within
Auslralia; or

(i) where the individual has been exposed to Asbestos both within

and outside Australia, damages included in the Marlew Claim

shall be limited to the amount attributable to the proportion of

the which caused or ibuted to the loss or damage
giving rise to the Personal Asbestos Claim which occurred in
Australia;

(b} is made in proceedings in an Australian court or tribunal; and
(] is made against:
(i} all or any of the Liable Entities; or

(i} any member of the James Hardie Group from time to lime;

{d} any claim made under p ion to relat gislation by a relative
of a deceased individual {or personal representative of such a relative)
orf (where permitted by law) the legal personal representative of a
deceased individual in each case where the individual, but for such
individual's death, would have been entitled to bring a claim of the kind
described in paragraph (a); or
(e} a Contribution Claim made in relation to a claim described in paragraph
(8) or (B)
but excludes all claims covered by a Worker's Compensation Scheme or Policy.
Proven Claim means a proven Personal Asbestos Claim in respect of which final
judgment has been given against, or a binding settlement has been entered into by, a
Former James Hardie Company, 1o the extent to which that entity incurs liability under
that judgment or settlement, or a Proven Marlew Claim.
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Statutory Recoveries means any statutory entitlement of the NSW Govermnment or

any Other Government or any governmental agency or authority of any such

government ("Relevant Body) to impose liablity on or to recover an amount of

amounts from any person in respect of any payments made or to be made or benefits

provided by a Relevant Bedy in respect of claims (other than as a defendant or in
it of any claim, including a laim or claim for contribution).

Term means the peniod

[0} from the date on which the pringi igations under the
Final Funding Agreement will commence to 31 March 2045,

(i} as may be extended in accordance with the terms of the Amended Final
Funding Agreement,
Term Central Estimate means the central estimate of the present value (determined
using the discount rate used in the relevant Annual Actuarial Report) of the liabilities
of the Former James Hardie Companies and Marlew in respect of expected Proven
Claims and Claims Legal Costs (in each case reasonably expacted to become payable
in the relevant period) after allowing for Insurance and Other Recoveries during that
pericd, from and including the day following the end of the Financial Year preceding
that Payment Date up to and including the last day of the Term (excluding any
ic or i of the Term, unless or until the Term has been
extended)

Workers Compensation Scheme or Policy means any of the following:
{a) any worker's compensation scheme established by any law of the
Commonwealth or of any State or Territory;
(b} any fund established to cover liabilities under insurance policies upon
the actual or prospective insolvency of the insurer (including without
the Insurer Fund i under the Worker's
Compensation Act 1987 (NSW)); and

{c) any policy of insurance issued under or pursuant to such a scheme,
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Motification of dividend / distribution

Announcement Summary

Entity name
JAMES HARDIE INDUSTRIES PLC

Security on which the Distribution will be paid
JHX - CHESS DEPOSITARY INTERESTS 1:1

Announcement Type
MNew announcement

Date of this announcement
Thursday May 19, 2016

Distribution Amount
UsSD 0.29000000

Ex Date
Wednesday June 8, 2016

Record Date
Thursday June 9, 2016

Payment Date
Friday August 5, 2016

Refer to below for full details of the announcement

Announcement Details

Part 1 - Entity and announcement details

1.1 Name of +Entity
JAMES HARDIE INDUSTRIES PLC

Registration Number
1.2 Registered Number Type
ARBEN QO7E29855

1.3 ASX issuer code
JHX

1.4 The announcement is

Mew announcement

1.5 Date of this announcement
Thursday May 19, 2016

1.6 ASX +Security Code
JHX

Motification of dividend / distribution e



8 Notification of dividend / distribution

ASX +Security Description
CHESS DEPOSITARY INTERESTS 1:1

Part 2A - All dividends/distributions basic details

2A.1 Type of dividend/distribution

Ordinary

2A.2 The Dividend/distribution:

relates to a period of six months

2A.3 The dividend/distribution relates to the financial reporting or payment period ending
endedfending (date)

Thursday March 31, 2016

2A.4 +Record Date
Thursday June 9, 2016

2A.5 Ex Date
Wednesday June 8, 2016

2A.6 Payment Date

Fricday August 5, 2016

2A.T Are any of the below approvals required for the dividend/distribution before business day 0

of the timetable?

* Security holder approval

* Court approval

* Lodgement of court order with +ASIC

* ACCC approval

* FIRB approval

* Another approvalicondition external to the entity required befare business day 0 of the
timetable for the dividend/distribution.

Mo

2A.8 Currency in which the dividendidistribution is made (“primary currency™)
USD - US Dellar

2A.9 Total dividend/distribution payment amount
per +security (in primary currency) for all
dividends/distributions notified in this form

USD 0.28000000

2A.9a AUD equivalent to total
dividendfidistribution amount per +security
2A.9b If AUD equivalent not known, date for
infermation to be released

Friday June 10, 2016

Estimated or Actual?
Actual

Motification of dividend / distribution

2i4



8 Notification of dividend / distribution

2A.10 Does the entity have arrangements
relating to the currency in which the
dividend/distribution is paid to securityholders
that it wishes to disclose to the market?

Yes

2A.11 Does the entity have a securities plan for
dividends/distributions on this +security?

We do not have a securities plan for
dividends/distributions on this security

2A.12 Does the +entity have tax component
information apart from franking?

MNo

2A.13 Withholding tax rate applicable to the dividend/distribution
20.000000

Part 2B - Currency Information

2B.1 Does the antity default to payment in certain currencies dependent upon certain attributes
such as the banking instruction or registered address of the +securityholder? (For example NZD
to residents of New Zealand andior USD to residents of the U.S.A)).

No

2B.2 Please provide a description of your currency arrangements

The dvidend is payable in Australian currency unless the secuntyholder elects otherwise,

Part 3A - Ordinary dividend/distribution

3A.1 Is the ordinary dividend/distribution 3A.1a Ordinary dividend/distribution estimated
estimated at this time? amount per +security

No UsD
3A.1b Ordinary Dividend/distribution amount per
SECUFity

USD 0.28000000

3A.2 Is the ordinary dividend/distribution

franked?

No

3A.3 Percentage of ordinary
dividend/distribution that is franked

0.0000 %

3A.4 Ordinary dividend/distribution franked 3A.5 Percentage amount of dividend which is
amount per +security unfranked

USD 0.00000000 100.0000 %

Motification of dividend / distribution 314



a Notification of dividend / distribution

3A.6 Ordinary dividend/distribution unfranked
amount per +security excluding conduit foreign
income amount

USD 0.28000000

Part 5 - Further information

5.1 Please provide any further information applicable to this dividend/distribution

5.2 Additional information for inclusion in the Announcement Summary

Motification of dividend / distribution
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